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At a glance

Asset under Active Custody Net worth

Custody Clients base

INR 4800+ INR

1,42,568.15 899.60

CRORE CRORE

Profit after tax Employees Shareholders
base

INR 192 8100

204.63

CRORE

Established in 2005, Orbis Financial Corporation Limited [*Orbis’ or "We']

is one of India's leading Non-Bank Custody service providers, uniguely
positioned as the only custodian offering a comprehensive suite of custodial
and allied services under a unified platform. Regulated by the Securities

and Exchange Board of India [SEBI}, our core services include Custody,

Fund Accounting, Professional Clearing Member [PCM] Services, Depository
Services, Trusteeship, and Registrar & Transfer Agent [RTA).

With almost 2 decades of experience, we serve a diverse base of over 4800 clients including
Foreign Portfolio Investors [FPls), Foreign Direct Investors [FDIs], Alternative Investment
Funds [AlFs), Portfolio Managers [PMs ], Mutual Funds, Foreign Banks, NRIs, DCls, Domestic

Institutions,

and Retail Brokers.

Orbis has two wholly owned subsidiaries: Orbis Trusteeship Services Private Limited
[OTSPL) and Orbis Financial Services [IFSC) Private Limited [OFSPL]). OTSPL has been active
in providing Fund Administration and Trusteeship Services from Gurugram and GIFT City.
OFSPL, incorporated under GIFT IFSC, is poised to expand our services to include Lending,
Guarantees, and Professional Clearing Services in the International Financial Services

Ecosystem.

18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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Our growth has been driven by strong client relationships, robust execution, and a
commitment to technology led innovation. We have built a secure, scalable, and automated
infrastructure offering real time reporting and analytics through platforms such as Orbis
Online and Hawkeye RMS5. Dur systems, including Advent Geneva, Zicuro and Microsoft
Dynamics NAVISION, streamline operations, ensure compliance, and mitipate operational risk.

We are SEBI registered across multiple verticals: Custodian, PCM, DP [with ‘NSDU and "COSL),
RTA, and DDP for FPl onboarding. ODur services are structured across key verticals:

End to end Clearing across Seamless Comprehensive RTA
safekeeping, trade NSE, BSE, NCOEX, dematerialisation functions including
processing, demat and MCX for and trade ISIN management

services, and Various asset settlement and corporate
corporate actions. classes actions

For Debenwres, NAV calculations, KYC/AML
AlFs, PE funds, capital gain compliance and
and Escrow reports, and end 1o end account
Arrangements regulztory filings management

We are proud to have been recognised with the “Leading Custodian and Clearing Member
- Achieving over 90% market share in Institutional commodities segment” by MCX in 2025
and hold certifications including IS0 27001:2013, IS0 22301:2012, and IS0 9001-2015.
Backed by marquee investors, our diverse and experienced Board of Directors ensures
sound governance and strategic puidance.

5 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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Dear Shareholders,

It is with great pride and gratitude that |
present to you the Annual Report for the
financial year 2024—25. As we conclude
another eventful year, | extend my heartfeh
appreciation to all our stakeholders for
your unwavering support and trust in our
Company. Your confidence continues to be
the cornerstone of our sustained progress.

Over the past year, we have successfully
navigated the complexities of the evolving
Indian financial landscape. Despite

the regulatory headwinds and global
economic uncertainties, our Company
has demonstrated resilience, stability,
and strategic foresight. Our continued
commitment to the Indian capital markets
and proactive alipnment with regulatory
expectations have enabled us to maintain
strict adherence to compliance with SEBI
and RBI guidelines, including the stringent
norms on cyber resilience.

Our focus on digital transformation,
operational excellence, and customer-
centric innovation has further reinforced
our leadership position. These initiatives
have not only enhanced client experience
but also strengthened our competitive edge
in a rapidly changing environment.

| am pleased to report that our financial
performance in FY 202425 has been
robust. The Company achieved a total
income of Rs, 560.22 crore, as compared
to Rs. 431 42 crore in the previous year,
reflecting a year-on-year growth of 29.86%.
Our Assets Under Custody [AUC) increased
to Rs. 1,42,569.15, marking a 15.5% growth
and underscoring the deepening trust
placed in us by investors and institutions
alike.

These achievements are a testament to
the dedication, expertise, and integrity of
our people. | extend my sincere gratitude
to our employees for their unwavering
commitment and to our clients for their
continued trust and partnership.

As we reflect on the year under review, | am
reminded that trust is not just avalue, itis

the foundation of everything we do. It is
earmned in every transaction, every service
delivered, and every promise fulfilled.

As we look to the future, we reaffirm our
commitment to nurturing this trust. It will
remain the driving force behind our success
and our most valued assel.

Beyond business performance, we

remain steadfast in our responsibilities

as a corporate citizen. This year, our
CSRinitiatives have made meaningful
contributions in the areas of healthcare,
education, livelihoods, and community
development. We view CSR not as an
obligation, but as a purposeful opportunity
to create enduring impact and leave a

positive legacy.

Locking ahead, we are committed to
sustainable prowth, value creation, and
excellence in povernance. We will continue
to invest in technology, adapt to emerging
opportunities, and stay true to our core
values of integrity, innovation, and client-
centricity.

Thank you for your continued support,

trust, and confidence. Topether, we will
embrace the future with optimism and
determination.

Sincerely,

ATUL GUPTA
Founder & Executive Chairman

18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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Dear Shareholders & Stakeholders

It is with great pride and gratitude

that | present to you the 19" Annual
Report of Orbis Financial Corporation
Limited. FY 2024—25 has been a year
of deep consaolidation, consistent
growth, and strategic execution. In an
increasingly dynamic regulatory and
market environment, Orbis has further
strengthened its standing as a trusted,
client-centric, and technolopy-led custedian
with a zero-conflict business model.

We have continued to invest in what truly
differentiates Orbis our position as a
comprehensive, SEBl-regulated platform
offering integrated custody, clearing, fund
accounting, RTA, and designated depository
participant services. Qur seamless single-
window solution has become a gateway

for both domestic and international
institutional investors including FPls, FDIs,
AlFs, and PMs to access and navigate India's
capital markets efficiently and securely. Our
zero-conflict operating model staying away
from broking, advisory, wealth management
or lending enables us to deliver unbiased,

transparent, and focused services, aligning
fully with the interests of our clients.

Over the period of last five years, our
journey has been both fulfilling and
transformative. We have grown our client
base and assets under custody [AUC) at a
CAGR of approximately 42.96%, reaching

As we look ahead, we remain
focused on long-term value
creation. Dur commitment to
ethical conduct, transparent
operations, and client-first service
continues to guide our decision-
making. With a stable and
well-capitalized balance sheet,
diversified revenue streams,

and strong risk management
processes, Orbis is well-
positioned to harness the next
phase of growth in India's evolving
capital markets landscape. »

1,42,600 by the end of FY 2025. Our
revenues have grown at a 59.52% CAGR, and
profitability has expanded by 89.33% CAGR
during this period underscoring the results
of strategic investments and operating
leverage.

Governance and compliance remain at

the core of our operations. Under constant
supervision by SEBI, our processes whether
in client onboarding, transaction handling,
or reporting — adhere to the highest
standards. We maintain full audit trails,
enforce asset segregation, and are backed
by robust cybersecurity infrastructure

to ensure operational transparency and
resilience. Dur approach is driven by
risk-mitigation frameworks that include
comprehensive due dilipence, continuous
KYL, investor monitoring, and strict
adherence to regulatory norms. These
principles not only safepuard our operations
but ensure that Orbis continues tobe a
reliable and trusted partner to our clients.

Dur growing presence in GIFT City through
our subsidiary, Orbis Financial Services
[IFSC) Private Limited opens doorsto a
wider global investor base and we expect
further momentum as the ecosustem there
matures with policy support. The regulatory
framework is stabilizing, enabling us to
focus on innovation, automation, and
sealability.

Technology is a key enabler across Drbis,
powering platforms like Zicuro, NAV 2016,
Rising Back Office, Hawkeye RMS, and
Advent Geneva, a portfolio management
and accounting system used by asset
managers, hedge funds, and institutional
investors. These systems ensure scalable,
precise, and seamless operations while
delivering differentiated client experiences
through tools like our Orbis Online Portal,
OMS, CRM, and digital onboarding platforms.
As automation and Al evolve, we remain
committed to investing in future-ready
solutions to stay agile and dependable.

The year also saw our teams participate
actively in industry wide forums, regulatory
consultations, and technical committees,
reaffirming our thought leadership role

18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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in the custodial and fund administration
ecosystem. We are proud to be viewed as
a partner of choice, not just for our clients,
but also for repulators and exchanges
seeking informed insights on policy and
infrastructure development.

As we look ahead, we remain focused on
long-term value creation. Jur commitment

to ethical conduct, transparent operations,

and client-first service continues to

guide our decision-making. With a stable
and well-capitalized balance sheet,
diversified revenue streams, and strong
risk management processes, Orbis is well-
positioned to harness the next phase of
growth in India's evolving capital markets
landscape.

In closing, | would like to express my deep
appreciation to all our stakeholders, our
clients, shareholders, Board members,
repulators, and most importantly, our
employees for their continued trust,
support, and belief in the Orbis journey. Your
faith in our vision fuels our commitment
1o building a secure, compliant, and
client-centric financial infrastructure that
will serve the Indian and global investor
communities for years to come.

Regards

SHYAMSUNDER BASUDEOD AGARWAL
Managing Director & CED

18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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) ATUL GUPTA, Executive Chairman & WTD

LL DIN: 00528086

- Mr. Atul Gupta is the Executive Chairman and Whole-Time Director of the
- Company. A first- peneration entrepreneur, he is a qualified Chartered
_’if-_ Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountamts of India

['ICAF'] and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the Birla Institute of
Technolopy and Science.

Mr. Gupta brings aver four decades of extensive experience spanning
management consulting, manufacturing, banking, and financial
services across India and Australia. During his professional tenure in
Melbourne, he identified a sipnificant pap in custody services beyond
the institutional space an insight that izid the foundation for the
creation of Orbis.

He is also the author of 'Guide to Project Financing’, a widely acclaimed
reference book that became a bestseller in its year of publication and
remains a respected resource in the field.

SHYAMSUNDER BASUDED AGARWAL , MD B CEO
DIN: 08516709

Mr. Shyamsunder Basudeo Agarwal is the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Dfficer of the Company. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst
[‘CFA’) and a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ['ICAI').

Mr. Aparwal brings over two decades of rich and diverse experience in
the Banking, Custody, and Capital Markets industry. He has developed
deep domain expertise and a strong understanding of specialized
Capital Market segments. Prior to joining Orbis, he served as Business
Head at ICICI Bank, where he was responsible for driving business and
product development, enhancing client satisfaction, and delivering
improved financial outcomes. His role involved close engagement with
a wide range of clients, including foreign and domestic institutional
investors, braker-dealers, and other key stakeholders.

) 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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oY Independent Director

|, DIN: 08255401
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ITj A DOr. Acharya serves as an Independent Director on the Board of

oY ' the Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in English from 5t

= | Stephen's College, University of Delhi, a master's degree in English

0 from Jawaharlal Nehru University, and a Ph.D. in Human Resource

E Development from Cheshire University, UK.

e Dr. Acharya is a distinguished corporate trainer and HR consultant with
over four decades of experience in the media and education sectors.

He has been associated with various trusts and organizations in senior
roles focused on education and human resource development. Highly
respected in his field, he has conducted numerous training programs
and advisory initiatives across corporate and academic institutions.

0AR

OM PRAKASH DANI, Independent Director

I{—q' 3 DIN: 00180703
- Om Prakash Dani serves as an Independent Director of the Company. He
} is the Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

{‘ICAr') and the Institute of Company Secretaries of India ['ICSI') and
brings over five decades of experience in finance, corporate governance,
and strategic management. Mr. Dani has held senior leadership roles
across various industries, including positions such as Group CFD,
Company Secretary, Managing Director, and Director on several Boards

and Audit Committees. He was associated with the Or. B.K. Modi Group
from-1971 to 2007.

He also served on the Executive Committee of the International Fiscal
Association, Netherlands [ 1999-2005], and chaired its India Branch
from 1996 w 2005.

RUP CHAND JAIN, Non-Executive Director
DIN: 00092600

Mr. R C Jain serves as a Mon-Executive Director of our Company. He

haolds a Bachelor of Technology [Honours] degree from the Indian

Institute of Technology ['lIT"), Bombay, and a double Master’s degree in
P Engineering and Business Management from USA,

Mr. Jain brings with him over five decades of extensive and diverse
experience, having held leadership roles in prominent multinational
and Indian companies. His professional background spans various
industries, where he has contributed significantly to strategic growth,
operational excellence, and organizational leadership.

10 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25



MAMNASI GUPTA, Non-Executive Director
DIN: 05355444

Ms. Manasi Gupta serves as a Non-Executive Director of our Company.
She is a praduate in Law and Commerce from the University of
Melbourne.

Ms. Gupta brings over two decades of experience in the legal industry,
with a strong background in litigation. She has practiced extensively
before the Dethi High Court and the Supreme Court of India during her
tenure with leading law firms such as Karanjawala & Co. and Trilepal.
=T Her expertise spans a broad spectrum of legal matters, contributing
(3 valuable insights to the povernance and compliance framework of the
& Company.

11 19" ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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ATUL BUPTA SHYAMSUNDER
Executive Chairman and WTD BASUDEOD AGARWAL
Managing Director & CED

YINEET PAREKH SANDEEP ARORA UPENDRA DUTT TRIPATHI
President- Sales & President- Operations President - Business
Client Relations and Technology Development, Strategy and

Head of Human Resource

RISHAY BAGRECHA PRACHI KHANNA ASHU AGGARWAL
President- Business Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Development &
Investor Relations

MAYANK NARANG TEJASH GANGAR
Head of Trustee & RTA Head-Products, Legal &
Compliance
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KEY MILESTONES

-» 2005

= |ncorporated in
November, 2005

+ 2007

= |n — Principal
approval from SEB
as a Costodian in
February

= [wned office
premises at
Gurugram in July

= Commenced
recrultments in July

= Capialisation of
Company with Net
worth of Rs. 50
£rore as per SEBI
requirements

- 2008

= Received SEBI
ficenceasa
Custodian in
November

- 2009

= Onboarded the first
Custwody Clisnt

) 2011

= [inained numerous
reguiatory
registrations with
SEBI / Exchanges /
Depositories

) 2013

= SEB! granted
cerificate of
regisiration as
a Designated
Depository
Farticipant

Pivotal Achievements

» 2014

= Crossed 100 mark
of Custody Clients

) 2015

Turned Into a profic
making Company in

. FY1B
» 2017

= Commenced

CSR infriative for

the propress of
communities

» 2018

= Hecame Clearing

Member in all

Market segments
— Equity, Currency
and Commodities

= Oinained SEB

Registration as a
‘Debenture Trustee"

= Dhtained SEB
Registration as
a ‘Registrar and
Transfer Apent’

» 2019

= SEBI approval as

a Custodian in

the Commadities

Markets
= Crossed 1,000

mark of onboarded

custody cliems

) 2020

= Maiden Dividend in

FYz2o
= ASSels under

Custody increased
1o Rs. 10,000 crores

in March 2020

» 2021

= Additional capital
raising in FY21 @ As.
27 pershare

= Branch office
in Gift City
operationalised 1o
provide Trusteeship
servicesas
per regulatony
puldetines

= Assels under
Custody Increased
10 fs.34 128 crores
in March 2021

2022

= Additional caphial
ralsingin FY22 @
Rs. 40.50 per share

= MNet worth increases
1o Rs. 220 crores as
at March 31, 2022

= Crossed 2,000
mark of onboarded
custody cliems

= Asgers under
custody increased
10 Rs. 67 3649 crores
in
March 31, 2022

2023

= Another round of
capital raising of
Rs. 112 crores in
Januany 2023 from
marguee investors

« Crossed 2,700
mark of onboarded
custody clients
with Assets under
Custody Increasing
10 INR 81,160 crores
as on March 31,
2023

= Record PAT of INR B9
crores for FY23

= Average volume
across cash and
derivative markets
increases 1o INR
13.000 crores on
dally basis

-p 2024

= Crossed AUC of INR
1,30.000 Crore
and PAT of over INR
140 Crore. Long
term Credit Rating
upgraded o A from A-
and short teqm to Al
from AZ+

) 2025

= Achieved a sipgnificant
milesione with

AUC exceeding
Rs.1.40,000 crore
and PAT reaching
Rs. 205 crare,
Launched Ticuro
Software and
implemented Advent
Geneva 1o boost
cusiody, reporting,
and portfolio
management
efficiency.

Began full-scale Fund
Administration via
Orbis Trusteeship
Services in Oct
2024 offering fund
accounting, NAV,
Imvestor servicing,
and compliance:

In Dec 2024, Orbis
Financial Services
[1F5C] Py Lud!
received [FSCA's
provisional approval
10 581 up a Finance
Company in 6T Ty,
expanding global
reach.

18" ANMUAL REPORAT 2034-35
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At Orbis, our vision continues to be shaped by innovation, integrity, and
the unwavering goal of becoming a globally recognized, trusted partner for
securities and financial infrastructure services. As one of India's leading
non-bank custodians, we are poised to scale new heights—bath in service
excellence and imernational reach.

STRATEEIC
VISION FOR

LEADERSHIP

With a strong base of operations in India and a growing
presence in GIFT Gy, our strategic roadmap includes
establishing global access points in key Asian financial

hubs. This expansion will enable us to serve international
investors—including FPis, AlFs, NRis, and global fund
manapers more efficiently and comprehensively. Dur
regulatory accreditations, combined with 2 zero-conflict
model, uniquely position us to capture the next wave of cross-
border investment opportunities into India.

Dur technology-first mindset has transformed the way we
serve clients:

® [rbis Online- Dur proprietary platform, offer real-time
reporting and operational transparency to dients.

= The Ticuro platform ensures robust custody and
compliance processes.

= Microsoft Navision ERP powers our fund accounting
solutions with seamless data integrity and reporting
flexibility.

= Hawkeye RMS delivers real-time risk manapement and
maonitoring across asset classes.

= Advent Beneva- Dur digital onboarding systems for AlFs
and FPls reduce manual processes, enhance accuracy, and

accelerate activation timelines.
We will continue to build Alintegrated platforms that support

predictive insights, smart automation, and high-volume
transaction scalability, all designed around client needs.

1& 19™ ANMUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Orbis stands out as the only Indian custodian offering a unified
bouquet of services—including custody, DDP, OF, PCM, fund

INS

o m:: accounting, registrar and transfer apent, and trusteeship—
— under ane roof. In the comi we aim to:
=T SERVICE ; NE years, :
= = Extend our fund administration and reporting tools to new
G client segments.
LT_ = Enhance marpin and collateral services tailored to AllFs, PMS,
— and institutional investors.
- = [Develop next-pen escrow, debenture trustee, and compliance
solutions through our subsidiary, Orbis Trusteeship.
= Expand operations through our wholly owned subsidiary,
Orbis Financial Services [IFSC] Private Limited, registered
in GIFT SEZFSLC, Gujarat, to undertake lend in the form of
loans, commitment & puarantees, credit enhancement,
securitisation, financial lease & sale and purchase of
portfolios.
DRIVING ; -
FINANCIAL FY 202425 has been a strong year financially, with:
STRENGTH WITH
PURPOSE = Assets Under Custody [AUC): Rs. 1,42,569.15 crore
» Total Income: 560.23 core
= PAT: 204.63 crore
Dur debt-free, well-capitalized balance sheet curmently
exceeding Rs. 87% crore in net worth gives us the stability to
invest decisively in talent, technology, and expansion.
Orhis has buiit a robust sourcing network that competes
STANDING effectively with bank-backed custodians, driven by stratepic
OUTHA collaborations with intermediaries, consultants, and global
:Wmm allocation platforms. Our continued success and industry

partnerships reaffirm our position as a trusted and agile
partner within Indiz’s evolving financial ecosystem.

15 19™ ANMUAL REPORT 2024-25
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At Drbis, sur CSR philesophy is inspired by the spirit of
- COMMITMENTTD Yosudhaiva Kutumbakom-"the worild is one family.” We are
COMMUNITY AND committed to building an indushn_z and.el_'npu:!mred_ society

RESPONSIABILITY through focused efforts in education, digital inclusion,

rehabilitation, women empowerment, and environmental
sustainability. Partnering with grassroots organizations, we
deliver measurable impact across underserved communities.
Through active employee engagement and sustained programs,
we aim to be a catalyst for long-tesm, meaningful chanpe.

—
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With almaost 200 professionals and one of the larpest domain-
focused teams in the custody and fund administration space,

OUR PEOPLE, we continue to invest in developing talent for tomormow's
OuR financial world. Dur work culture emphasizes collaboration,

navigating a rapidly evolving global landscape.

We believe that our inteprated model, supported by state-
of-the-art technology, seasoned leadership, and a robust

regulatory framework, offers Drbis a unique edpe. As we
LOGKING continue to evolve, our aspirations remain firmly grounded in:

= [lient trust

= Sustainable growth

= Digital leadership
Responsible povernance
Global impact

Orbis is ready for its next phase a future where we are not just
service providers, but strategic partners in shaping India’s role in
the global financial ecosystem.

16 19™ ANMUAL REPORT 2024-25
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Ll We are one of the India's leading non-bank custody service providers, uniquely
% positioned as the only custodian in the country offering an integrated suite
= of custody and allied services through a single, unified platform. We operate
‘f_% under the regulatory framework of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
L [SEBI), delivering a comprehensive range of services including custody, fund
o accounting, professional clearing member [PCM] services, depository services,
L ; : :

— trusteeship, and registrar & transfer agent [RTA] functions.

s

co

ii We serve a diverse client base of over 4,800 entities, spanning across Foreign Portfolio

D Investors [FPis), Foreign Direct Investors [FDIs), Alternative Investment Funds [AIFs),

& Portfolio Manapers [PMs), Mutual Funds, Foreign Banks, Non-Resident Indians [NRis),

l‘:l— Overseas Citizens of India [0Cls), domestic Stock Broker both retail and institutional—and
o Resident Indians. A significant portion of our total assets under custody [AUC]) is contributed
g by FPls, FDIs, AlFs, and PMs, underscoring our strong foothold in the institutional segment.

With more than 15+ years of experience in the custody services domain, we are among the
early movers in India's non-bank custodial services sector. As of 2025, our Assets Under
Custody [AUC) stood at Rs. 1,42,569.15 crore, reflecting the continued trust placed in us
by a diverse and growing client base. Dur consistent growth over the years underscores
the strength of our integrated service model, client-centric approach, and commitment to
operational excellence.

Our operations are further strengthened by two wholly owned subsidiaries:

» Orbis Trusteeship Services Private Limited [0TSPL) — offers trusteeship and fund
administration services and commenced operations at burgaon Haryana and GIFT City,
Gujarat.

*» Orbis Financial Services [IFSC) Private Limited [DFSPL) — incorporated in GIFT City SEZ to
undertake a range of financial activities, including lend in the form of loans, commitment
& puarantees, credit enhancement, securitisation, financial lease & sale and purchase of
portfolios, This entity is yet to commence its business.

Through continuous innovation, regulatory compliance, and a client-centric approach, Orbis

remains commitied to enhancing India's financial infrastructure and serving as a trusted
partner in the evolving investment ecosystem.

2. Presence

Headgquartered in Gurugram, with a Corporate Office in Mumbai and presence in GIFT City,
Gujarat, Orbis operates across key financial hubs in India. Our nationwide reach is supported
by robust digital infrastructure, enabling seamless cross-border servicing and remaote client
onboarding. As we continue to expand our footprint, we are increasingly engaging with global
investors and pariners, reinforcing our position as a trusted custodian in both domestic and
international markets,
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3. Mentors

DR. VIJAY KELKAR, Founder Chairman

Dr. Kelkar holds a B.5. from University of Pune, M.5. from University of Minnesota and PhD
from Berkeley. Key prior engagements include former Chairman, Finance Commission [2008-
09), Union Finance Secretary to the Government of India [ 1998-39), Executive Director at
IMF [1999-2002), Chairman Tariff Commission [1997-98), amongst others. In 2010, he was
appointed the Chairman of Forum of Federations based out of Canada. Until recently he was
also the Non-Executive Chairman at N5E and held Directorships at a host of other private
companies. Since the last couple of years he has retired from active business participation
and is settled in Pune.

5B MATHUR, Ex-Chalrman

A Chartered Accountant and former Chairman, Life Insurance Corporation of India. He is the
Founding Secretary General of the Life Insurance Council [think-tank of their industry that
recommends policy matters to their Regulator). Until recently he was also the Non-Executive
Chairman at NSE and alongwith being a Director at a host of ether private listed & unlisted
companies.He is settled in Delhi and continues to mentor and guide us at Orbis.

4.Market Capitalisation

We have demonstrated steady year-on-year growth underpinned by rising Assets Under
Custody [‘AUC’), efficient cost structures, and sustained profitability. Our financial
performance reflects investor confidence and operational robustness in volatile markets.

5. Credit Rating

Our financial reliability is independently verified—our long-term rating has been A and short-
term to A1, signalling balance sheet strength and risk management.

6. Certifications

We hold industry-recognized certifications attesting to our commitment to operational
excellence, data security, and compliance. These include Information Security Management
System (IS0 27001:2013), Business Continuity Management System (IS0 22301:2012) &
Quality Management System [1S0 9001:2015).
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Data-Led Intelligence at Orbis:
Turning Information into
Enterprise-Wide Impact

At Orbis, data is more than just information it's the heart of everything we do. We use data
smartly to help make better decisions, create new ideas, and add value. By turning raw
data into clear insights, we empower everyone in the company to work smarter and with
confidence.

Our powerful data platform brings together information from many sources in real time,
giving us a complete view to respond quickly to any situation.

For customers, this means personalized experiences and proactive service based on
understanding their needs before they even say them. For our operations, data helps us work
more efficiently, reduce costs, and improve performance.

Using Al and machine learning, we also predict future trends and risks, helping us plan
ahead and stay prepared.

What makes Orbis special is how we use data every day—integrating insights directly into
workflows so teams can make fast and smart decisions on the spot.

By building a data-focused culture, Orbis drives better results, faster
innovation, and stronger relationships with customers, partners,
and employees

1% 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25



Al-Powered & Future-Ready:
Our Business Transformation
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=L Artificial Intellipence [Al') now lies at the heart of Orbis’s digital transformation, reshaping
E haow we operate, innovate, and create value. Dver the past year, we've systematically

L integrated Al across our organization, evolving it from a promising tool into an essential
= business asset.

-

c-_:[_: By embracing continuous digital transformation, DRBIS have built agile, resilient ecosystems
i that remain competitive in an increasingly dynamic market, ensuring that efficiency and
6 innovation go hand in hand for long-term growth.

!: Our initiatives have centered on pivotal areas like customer service, risk detection, and

< product development. At the same time, we've seamlessly embedded predictive analytics
':_;_ and machine learning models into our core decision-making framework. Beyond enhancing
— insights, Al has emerged as a key driver for streamlining operations. By automating

4 routine tasks—from processing invoices to managing internal reporting workflows—we've
f—‘-r:l significantly cut down on manual labor while redirecting valuable human talent toward

— strategic, creative, and customer-focused endeavors. This shift not only boosts productivity
— but also creates room for innovation, empowering teams to concentrate on high-impact,
D'\_‘:J value-added work.

Collectively, these Al-powered advancements have yielded concrete
business benefits. We've observed measurable gains in top-line
revenue and operational margins. More significantly, our enhanced
digital capabilities have reinforced Orbis’s competitive edge in

a rapidly evolving and disruptive marketplace. Al is not merely
enabling us to keep pace—it’s driving us to lead.
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Building Resilience, Scalability and
Innovation

At Orbis, technology is not merely a support function it is a strategic enabler
that shapes our business operations and future growth. Our technology
foundation is built for resilience, agility, and innovation, driving integrated,
secure, and scalable services across our global footprint. We have
consistently invested in modernising our infrastructure, adopting cutting-edge
technologies, and enhancing digital capabilities. These efforts have allowed

us to deliver seamless operations, support complex workflows, and respond to
evolving client and regulatory needs with speed and precision.

Key Elements of Qur Technology Framework

* Cloud-Mative Infrastructure- Designed for high availability and scalability, our cloud-
native environment enables uninterrupted operations, seamless integration of services,
and real-time data exchange across geographies.

* Modular Architecture- Qur flexible system design supports rapid deployment of new
features and fosters agile product development, ensuring faster time-to-market and
continuous innovation.

* Cybersecurity & Compliance- Orbis maintains a robust, multi-layered security
framework underpinned by 24/7 monitoring and 150 27001:2013 certified practices. This
ensures data integrity, regulatory compliance, and sustained stakeholder trust.

» Edge Computing- We leverape edpe computing capabilities to bring real-time data
processing closer to the source, enhancing on-ground responsiveness and operational
efficiency.

Digital Ecosystem and Operational Excellence

Our technolopy backbene is a critical differentiator that enables end-to-end post-onboarding
services across custody, fund accounting, clearing and settlement, depository participant
['DP), trustee services, registrar and transfer apent ['RTA’), and fund administration
functions.

We operate a resilient infrastructure that includes:

= A hybrid data centre with high availability across seismic zenes

= A disaster recovery framework with minimal recovery time objectives ['RT0)
= A secure, hybrid cloud-based backup environmemnt

21 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25
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Consistent Investments, Tangible Outcomes

Our stratepic investments in digitisation, automation, and infrastructure modemisation have
delivered measurable benefits, including:

Enhanced operational efficiency and reduced processing costs
Accelerated reconciliation and reporting timelines

Improved service accuracy and tailored client solutions
Strengthened data security, transparency, and compliance

Our proprietary platform, Orbis Online, offers clients 24/7 access to real-time reports and
operational data. We also utilise industry-grade systems 1o streamline and specialise our
operations, including:

Licuro Software for custody and regulatory reporting

Microsoft Dynamics MAV 2016 for fund accounting

Rising Back Dffice for clearing operations

Advent Geneva for portfolio management and accounting

Hawkeye RMS for real-time risk management and market-wide exposure tracking

To enhance digital client enpapement, we provide self-service capabilities and secure
communication tools, enabling clients to:

Access reports and key documents through an online portal

Track transaction statuses in real time

Submit service requests and receive instant alerts via email/SM5
Interact with dynamic dashboards for complete operational visibility

Internally, we employ digital tools for workflow monitoring, performance tracking, and
compliance assurance, enabling better decision-making and improved service delivery.

Scalable Infrastructure for Future Growth

Our platform is built to handle transactions volume several times higher than current levels,
positioning us well for future expansion across asset classes. A dedicated team of in-house
technology professionals and external partners drives continuous product innovation and
client-specific customisation.

We continue to follow a structured and strategic approach to technology investments, with a
strong focus on long-term value creation and operational excellence.

Our integrated, technology-led operations enable us to offer end-to-
end lifecycle support with high reliability, automation, and control.
This positions Orbis as a trusted infrastructure partner to institutional
clients operating within India’s regulated financial ecosystem.
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% At Orbis, innovation transcends mere buzzwords—it's a disciplined, purpose-
% driven strategy anchored in solving real-world challenges. Our mission is
= unambiguous: address tangible business issues with bold ideas, seamless

cross-functional collaboration, and swift action.

FY 2024-25 Highlights: Translating ldeas into Dutcomes

This past fiscal year has been especially productive, with several high-impact innovations
brought to market, including:

We ventured into a new domain—fund administration—a critical pillar of the asset
management ecosystem. It plays a key role in ensuring investment funds run efficiently,
transparently, and in full compliance with evolving repulatory standards. As the financial
landscape grows maore complex and data-driven, the responsibilities of fund administrators
have expanded beyond traditional operations to include strategic collaboration, helping
deliver greater value to both fund managers and investors,

We also have established a dedicated Investor Services department. This department

has enabled us to serve as the essential bridge between Orbis and its investment clients,
ensuring smooth interactions and fostering lasting relationships throughout the investment
lifecycle. These services begin with a seamless onboarding process that encompasses
account setup, compliance verifications, and education about the available tools and
opportunities, thereby reducing friction and laying the groundwork for a positive investor
experience,

At the core of investor services is the meticulous management of daily operations. This
includes processing subscriptions and redemptions, handling transactions, and ensuring
accurate record-keeping. By maintaining precision and transparency in these tasks, investor
services build and uphold trust—a critical element in the investor relationship.

These solutions are not isolated achievements; they reflect our broader philesophy

of alipning technological innovation with measurable customer and societal value. By
cultivating a culture that rewards experimentation, embraces iteration, and prioritizes
relevance, Orbis remains agile, forward-looking, and relentiessly customer centric, Our
innovation pipeline is not just about ideation—it's about execution with purpese, designed
to keep Orbis ahead of the curve while delivering sustainable value across industries and
geopraphies.
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Strategic Risk and Resilience at Orbis:

Building Confidence in an Uncertain
World

In today's environment of accelerating complexity and heightened global
volatility, effective risk management is no longer optional—it is mission-
critical. At Orbis, we have taken decisive steps to strengthen our ability to
anticipate, absorb, and respond te disruption, embedding risk intelligence
at the very core of how we operate and grow.

A Comprehensive, Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Framework

Our enterprise risk management [‘ERM'] framework has been substantially expanded to
cover a 360-degree view of risk across four key domains:

* Strategic Risks: Including market shifts, competitive disruption, regulatory changes,
and MBA implications.

» Dperational Risks: Encompassing supply chain disruptions, technology failures, and
process vulnerabilities,

* Financial Risks: Related to credit exposure, liquidity constraints, and macroeconomic
uncertainty.

* Reputational Risks: Spanning customer trust, ESG-related concerns, and brand integrity,

At Orbis, we take a proactive approach to protecting our systems, data, and users

through advanced threat detection, continuous monitoring, and strong access controls.
By integrating cybersecurity into every layer of our operations, we safepuard sensitive
information, ensure business continuity, and maintain trust with our clients and partners.
We share risk responsibility across the company while keeping oversight coordinated.

We repularly test our response pians through drills, making sure we're ready for crisis and
can respond smoothly across teams and locations.

Above all, we promote a risk-aware culture through training and leadership involvement,
turning risk management into a competitive advantage.

This approach helps Orbis protect its people, assets, and reputation while staying strong and

ready for the future in an uncertain world.
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INTEGRATED &
CONFLICT-FREE CAPITAL
MARKETS PLATFORM

TECHNOLOGY,
GOVERNAMNCE &
COMPLIANCE AT THE

CORE

LEADERSHIP STRENGTH
B SCALABLE GROWTH

ENDURING CLIENT
RELATIONSHIPS WITH A
PARTNERSHIP MINDSET

25

Unified services: custody, DOFR,
clearing, fund accounting, RTA,
trusteeship

Seamless post-onboarding
gxperience

Lero-conflict model ensuring client
alignment and trust

Advanced platforms: Orbis Online,
Licuro, Advent Geneva, NAV Dynamics
Automated reporting. risk monitoring,
real-lime access

Strong compliance: SEBI oversight,
asset segregation, audit trails

Veteran leadership, independent
board, institutional continuity
Consistent revenue growth, margin
expansion, capital efficiency
Long-term value creation across
market cycle

Longstanding relationships with
FFPls, AlFs, PMSs, mutual funds

Low attrition, tailored service models
Focused on retention, trust, and
wallet share expansion
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Valued Stakeholder Relationships

At Orbis, our stakeholder relationships are fundamental to our purpose
and progress. As a trusted partner in India’s financial infrastructure, we
provide integrated solutions across the entire investment lifecycle from
Custody and DDP Services to Fund Accounting, Clearing, and Investor
Servicing. Our commitment to value creation is embedded in every
service we deliver and every relationship we nurture.

TAKEHOLDERS
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INVESTORS

We remain firmly focused on sustainable value creation through disciplined
execution, robust financial governance, and stratepic foresight. With consistent
growth in revenues and profitability, prudent risk controls, and an agile business
model, we continue to build investor confidence. Dur transparent disclosures,
governance practices, and repular enpagement initiatives ensure our investors
are aligned with our vision and informed about our performance and priorities.

CUSTOMERS

Our clients comprising global and domestic institutional investors — trust us 1o
safepuard their assets and enable market access with speed and certainty. We
serve as a single-window pateway w India’s capital markets, delfivering integrated
Custody, DOP, Clearing, RTA, Fund Accounting, and Compliance Services. Qur
customer-first approach is reflected in intuitive platforms, seamless onboarding,
responsive support, and tailored reporting tools that help clients navigate
repulatory complexity and achieve operational efficiency.

EMPLOYEES

Our people are the foundation of cur capabilities. We foster an inclusive and
dynamic workplace where continuous learning, innovation, 2nd leadership
development are actively encouraged. Through skill-building initiatives, internal
maobility, and cross-functional collaboration, we empower our employees o
contribute meaningfully and grow holistically. We are committed to building 2
culture where merit thrives, diverse perspectives are valued, and every individual
iz equipped to succeed.

GOVERNMENT

As a key financial market intermediany, we play an active role in strengthening
India's investment ecosystem. By facilitating FPI registration and capital inflows,
supparting domestic fund structures, and servicing a wide spectrum of financial
assets, we contribute to national economic priorities. Our operations are fully
compliant with applicable taxation, povernance, and financial regulations,
reinforcing cur commitment to responsible corporate citizenship.

REGULATORS

We uphold the highest standards of compliance, povemance, and ethical conduct.
As a SEBl-registered Custodian and Designated Depository Participant, we operate
under close regulatory supervision, aligning every process with SEBI norms

and evolving market frameworks. Our risk-mitigation protocols include rigorous
KYC, PMLA complisnce, audit trails, and cybersecurity measures. We engape
prozctively with repulatory bodies o promote transparency, market integrity, and
stakeholder protection,
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Global Reach, Local Relevance:
Orbis’ Expanding International Footprint

Orbis is rapidly expanding its international presence, reflecting our
steadfast dedication to merging global reach with local expertise.

With a customer base spanning more than 30 countries, we are ideally
positioned to serve a diverse range of clients with speed, accuracy,
and cultural insight.

Strategic Market Expansion

During the last fiscal year, we established an office in BIFT City—a strategic environment
engineered to support business growth with innovative regulatory frameworks, single-
window clearance, and streamlined processes. The city's dual-zone configuration—
incorporating both a Special Economie Zone ['SEZ’] and a domestic tariff area—draws a
broad spectrum of investors, multinational banks, fintech companies, and high-frequency
traders who enjoy benefits like stamp duty refunds and tax advantages. Moreover, GIFT City
is rapidly evolving into a hub for technological innovation in finance and IT services. With
state-of-the-art trading platforms such as N5E IX and advanced digital capabilities, the

city not only enhances market efficiency but also fosters cross-border collaborations and
attracts foreign direct investments. As a result, GIFT City is steadily emerging as a world-
class center that strengthens India's stature in the international finance arena while driving
sustainable, long-term growth.

By blending local insight with global excellence, Orbis is uniguely equipped to address
the complex, evolving needs of clients across the globe—both today and in the future.
Our presence around the world is more than just being big; it helps us stay flexible, stay
important to our clients, and grow in a way that lasts.
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Our Workforce Overview

At Orbis Financial Corporation Limited,
our workforce is our greatest asset.

We are proud to have a diverse team of
professionals who bring rich expertise,
innovative thinking, and a shared
commitment to excellence. Our workforce
structure is strategically aligned with
business goals, enabling a collaborative
and high- performance environment that
drives sustainable growth. As on March 31,
2025, total number of employees on pay
rolls of the Company are 192.
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Recruitment and Hiring

Our recruitment process is focused on attracting skilled and culturally aligned talent to meet
our current and future business needs. At Orbis, we source candidates through a balanced
mix of internal referrals, job portals, professional networking platforms like Linkedin,
recruitment consultants, and campus hiring initiatives. Each step of our hiring process

is transparent and merit-based, ensuring a positive experience for candidates and the
selection of the right talent for the right roles.

Talent Acquisition

Talent acquisition at Orbis is a strategic function designed to build a robust pipeline of
future-ready professionals. Qur focus extends beyond filling vacancies—we actively engage
with high-potential candidates, foster relationships with academic institutions, and build a
strong employer brand 1o position Orbis as an employer of choice in the financial services
industry.

Capability Development

We believe in continuous learning and development as a cornerstone of organizational
growth. Orbis invests in structured training programs, leadership development initiatives,
and functional skill workshops. Through personalized development plans and regular
feedback, we empower employees to enhance their competencies and take ownership of
their growth journey.

Employee Benefits

Orbis offers a comprehensive benefits package designed to promote the well-being and
financial security of cur employees. This includes group health insurance, life cover,
wellness programs, parental leave, paid time off, retirement benefits, and flexible work
arrangements. Dur benefits framework is regularly reviewed to remain competitive and
responsive to employee needs.

18 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25



Talent Retention and Career Advancement

We are deeply committed to retaining and nurturing our talent. Orbis offers clearly defined
career progression paths, cross-functional mobility, and leadership opportunities to support
career advancement. Engapement initiatives, mentoring programs, and employee feedback
mechanisms ensure we stay aligned with our employees’ aspirations, creating a thriving and
motivated workforce.

Rewards and Recognition

Recognition is an integral part of our culture at Orbis. Through formal and informal channels,
we consistently acknowledpe individual and team contributions. Qur structured programs
like the Talent Appreciation Program ['TAP'], Long Service Awards, and real-time peer
recognition platforms celebrate achievements, promote a culture of gratitude, and inspire
performance excellence across the organization.
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Number of employees in each department

KYC, DP & CLIENT SERVICING
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CUSTODY, CLEARING & SETTLEMENT

FUND ACCOUNTING

BANKING OPERATIONS

ACCOUNTS & FINANCE

LEGAL, COMPLIANCE & SECRETARIAL

RTA

SALES & MARKETING

1

HR, ADMIN & CSR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

- TRUSTEESHIP BUSINESS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Assets Under Custody
(Rs. in crore)

1,23, 470.40

1,42,569.15

FY 22 FY 23 FY 24

Profit After Tax
( Rs. in crore)
141.28

FY 25

FY 22 FY 23 FY 24

FY 25
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Earnings Per Share
(Rs)

16.69

12.16
11 32
8.34
5.41 5.03 l

B BasicEPS 7 Diluted EPS

15.71

25

Total Assets
(Rs. in crore)

&
S el 4,984.71

4,296.07
3,924.38 -

FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net Worth

( Rs. in crore)

899.60

429.01

FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25

I Networth Return on Average Networth
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Accomplishments and the Road Ahead

Orbis Financial Corporation Limited has established itself as one of India's
foremost non-bank custody service providers, uniguely positioned with a
comprehensive suite of inteprated post-onboarding solutions. As a SEBI-
repistered custodian, our operations span custody, fund accounting,
professional clearing, depository, RTA, and trusteeship services—all
delivered through a single, unified platform. This conflict-free, pure-play
custodial model, backed by over a decade of operational experience,
continues to attract a distinguished client base of over 3,000 entities,
including FPls, FDIs, AlFs, PMSs, mutual funds, and institutional investors.

Strategic Accomplishments
1. Strengthening Market Reach and Client Engagement

Our focused efforts on market penetration and client acquisition have delivered strong

outcomes:

=  Growth in active institutional clients between Fiscal 2023 and 2025 reflects our
differentiated onboarding stratepy and personalized service delivery.

= Expansion into high-growth segments such as AlFs and PMS3s aligns with rising domestic
demand, aided by bundled service offerings across custody, fund accounting, and
trusteeship.

=  We continue to deepen wallet share with clients, with an increasing percentage now
availing two or more of our services.

= Growth in Assets Under Custody [AUC], settled transactions, and consistent EBITDA
margins underscore our financial and operational momentum.

Our strategic presence in GIFT City, Gujarat further enables seamless engagement with global
investors and India-bound capital lows, particularly those entering through the simplified SEBI
Category Il FPI regime.

2. Enhancing Technological Capability and Operational Resilience

Technology remains a cornerstone of our growth and service delivery. We have consistently

invested in upgrading our IT infrastructure to ensure scalability, security, and seamless client

experiences:

* [eployment of cloud first and mobile-first solutions, including real-time cliemt dashboards
and automated reconciliation engines.

+ Upgrading hybrid data center infrastructure with built-in redundancies to enhance uptime
and business continuity.

= Dipitization of operational workflows and remote snboarding to improve turnaround times
and reduce manual intervention.
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L Our commitment to innovation ensures that we remain agile, compliant, and responsive in a

% fast-evolving regulatory and operational environment.

!: 3. Expanding Service Portfolio through Subsidiaries

[

= To extend our full-service capabilities, we have stratepically developed two wholly owned

— subsidiaries:

3 * (Orbis Trusteeship Services Private Limited [0TSPL) — operational in Gurugram and GIFT

;|:' City, offering trusteeship and fund administration services.

=T = DOrbis Financial Services [IFSC) Private Limited [OFSPL) — incorporated in GIFT City SEZ, and
il expected to commence operations soon. This platform will focus on a range of financial
E activities, including lending, credit enhancement, securitisation, financial leasing, and

professional clearing services.
4. Investing in Human Capital

We recognize that our people are central to our continued success. Dur commitment to talent

development includes:

= Hiring experienced professionals across custody, fund administration, risk, and
compliance domains.

* [Dffering a compelling employee value proposition, emphasizing well-being, transparency,
career development, and cross-functional exposure.

= Structured mentoring, recognition programs, and learning opportunities to enhance
individual and organizational capability.

Our growing team of professionals enables us to scale effectively while maintaining service
excellence and client trust.

E. Upholding Robust Regulatory Compliance and Risk Management

We maintain a strong compliance culture and proactive risk management framework:

= Strict adherence to SEBI and IFSCA Regulations, with timely and accurate reporting.
* Comprehensive KYC, PMLA, and Data Protection Protocols.

s Riporous intemnal audits, control testing, and training programs.

= Active Board-level oversight ensures alignment with strategic and ethical standards.

Our integrated povernance framework safepuards our clients, operations, and reputation in an
increasingly complex regulatory iandscape.

Looking forward, Orbis is well-positioned to build on its momentum through strategic

expansion, technology-driven innovation, and deepening institutional partnerships. We aim to:

* Increase market penetration across Tier | and emerging financial hubs.

s Scale operations at GIFT City through OFSPL, offering plobal-grade fund administration and
clearing services.

= Expand bundled service adoption among mid-sized and emerging asset managers,

= [ontinue investing in techneology to ensure service excellence, data integrity, and
operational scalability.

* Atiract top-tier talent and nurture a culture of integrity, agility, and high performance.

With a conflict-free model and sustained growth, Orbis remains a trusted catalyst for India's
financial innovation.
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2020

2019

2017

MCX Awards 2025- Leading Custodian and Clearing Member-
Achieving over S0% market share in Institutional commodities
segment

= NSE - 1**November, 2024 In sincere appreciation for your
participation, unwavering commitment, and consistent
dedication in servicing investor community to achieve
collective success and growth.

* MCX Awards 2024 - Leading Custodian and Clearing Member

= NCDEX Pragati ka solid exchange felicitating Orbis for their
contribution as a custodian

MCX Awards 2023 - Leading Custodian

Memento from COSL

Memento from COSL

NCDEX Krishi Awards (2020-21) felicitating Orbis for their
contribution as a custodian.

NSDL Star Performer Awards

Global Custodian Global Custodian Giobal Custodian

India Domestic India Domestic India Domestic

Survey — Market Survey — Fund Survey — Category

Outperformer Accounting and Outperformer
Valuation
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At Orbis, our Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR] philosophy is deeply
rooted in the ancient Indian ideal of Vasudhaiva Kutumbakam — “the world
is one family". Guided by this belief, we strive to create lasting, positive
change across diverse sectors, reaching communities where support is
needed most.

In FY25, our collective efforts touched thousands of lives through impactful
community programs. Strengthened by meaningful partnerships with NGOs,
we have expanded our reach and deepened our commitment to sustainable

development.

EDUCATION
ANIMAL
WELFARE CHILDREN WITH
SPECIAL NEEDS
ORBIS
CSR S
ENVIRONMENTAL@) @ WoMEN
INITIATIVES EMPOWERMENT
& ®
COMMUNITY WELFARE REHABILITATION
@ Education

Education remains a cornerstone of our CSR mission, with 40% of our funds dedicated to
enhancing access and quality. We continue to invest in infrastructure development and long-
term learning support through partnerships with the Purkal Youth Development Society and
Bal Vidya Mandir, both dedicated to halistic development for underprivileged children.

Children with Special Needs

Children with special needs occupy a central place in our hearts. Our contributions include a
specially equipped school bus to ADAPT in Mumbai, as well as ongoing support for therapy,
medical treatment, and essential aids through Sneh Cultural and Foundation.
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@® Women Empowerment
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L) Through our collaboration with Arpana Research Charities Trust, we've empowered over 2,000
O m rural women by providing digital literacy training across 1,020 Self-Help Groups, enabling
L L financial independence and greater community leadership.
Ll =
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In partnership with Snehalaya in Ahmednagar, we support the construction of a girls’ hostel
to rehabilitate and shelter children of sex workers. Dur support also extends to the care of
destitute individuals—including the elderly, mentally ill, and abandoned—through regular
meal sponsorship and caregiving at Apna Ghar,

CORPORATI
RE

@ Community Welfare

Our association with the Ramakrishna Mission enables us to deliver vital services such
as widow welfare, mobile health camps, eye care, and disaster relief. We also support
marginalized groups, including individuals affected by leprosy, through dry ration
distributions and community-led cleanliness drives [Shramdan).

@ Environmental Initiatives

Our partnership with | am Gurgaon has led to large-scale tree plantation drives across the
Delhi-Gurugram region, promoting biodiversity and advancing our commitment to a greener
future.

@ Animal Welfare

Through our continued support of Friendicoes and Wildlife 505, we provide care for 160 elderly
cows, 45 calves, and five rescued elephants—reinforcing our belief in compassion for all living
beings.

This year, employee engagement in CSR initiatives reached new heights. From tree plantations
and clean energy projects to direct community service, our team's commitment to social
impact continues to prow. We extend our heartfelt gratitude to our partner organizations,
villape communities, children, and the dedicated Orbis team. Your collaboration and spirit of
service make our mission possible.

“Alone we can do so little; Together we can do so much.”
- Helen Keller
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® Education Purkal Youth Development Society, Uttarakhand
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CSR CONTRIBUTION TO PURKAL YOUTH DEVELOPMENT SOCIETY

As part of its ongoing commitment to inclusive and impactful community
development, Orbis partnered with the Purkal Youth Development Seciety
[PYDS) located in village Purkal near Dehradun, Uttarakhand. PYDS provides
free, high-quality education and holistic care to underprivileged children,
with a strong emphasis on empowering girls through sustained academic and
personal development from Class | to XIL

In FY 202425, Orbis proudly sponsored Class VIl at PYDS, supporting a total
of 24 students—16 girls and 8 boys—through a comprehensive educational
and care program.

Key Highlights of the Initiative:

* Access to Quality Education: Ensured structured academic support
alipned with national standards.

* Helistic Development: Covered nutrition, healthcare, uniforms, hostel
facilities, and transportation.

* Learning Enrichment: Enabled access to science and computer labs,
sports, co-curricular activities, and cultural programs.

* Family 8& Community Engagement: Promoted regular parent involvement
and hosted developmental events.

* Empowerment & Growth: Fostered self-confidence, creativity, curiosity,
and critical life skills in a nurturing environment.

Through this initiative, Orbis contributed meaningfully to building a brighter,
more equitable future for children from underserved communities—
supporting not only their academic journey but also their overall well-being
and long-term potential.
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® Education Purkal Youth Development Society, Uttarakhand

CSR DONATION FOR A SCHOOL BUS AND A CAMPER

In December 2024, Orbis extended its commitment to social responsibility
by supporting the Purkal Youth Development Society ['PYDS') through

the donation of a school bus and a camper. The initiative was formally
inaugurated by Shri Atul Gupta, Chairman of Orbis Financial Corporation Lid.

This contribution has enabled the procurement of a new 51+ D seater school
bus, significantly enhancing daily transportation for 185 students and

32 staff members across four designated routes. The initiative has been
instrumental in bridging the urban-rural divide, ensuring safe and dependable
travel for children from underserved communities, particularly those from hill
migrant families.

By improving access to quality education at PYDS, this CSR initiative
underscores Orbis's commitment to inclusive growth and educational
empowerment.
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CSR INITIATIVE TO PRESERVE THE CULTURE OF UTTARAKHAND-
PROJECT JAGAR

Project Japar was a year-long cultural initiative supported by Orbis in
collaboration with the Purkal Youth Development Society. Desipned to
celebrate and preserve the spiritual and musical tradition of Jagar, the project
offered an immersive leaming experience for students, guided by President’s
Award recipient Mr. Uttam Das and his student Harish Sharma.

Students of Class VIl explored the depth and diversity of Jagar through hands-
on workshops in folk instruments, storytelling, and regional interpretations.
Inspired by local birdlife, they created original performances, conducted
village surveys, and displayed their creativity through an in-house exhibition
featuring research, artwork, and handmade models of traditional instruments
like the dhol and damau.

The journey culminated in a cultural field visit to Tehri Garhwal and a grand
finale on January 31, 2025. During this event, students proudly presented
their leamings through an exhibition and live performances in front of
esteemed puests, including Shri Upendra Dutt Tripathi, President of Orbis.

Impact: Project Japar deeply enpaped students in exploring Uttarakhand's
rich heritage through music, dance, storytelling, art, and technology. It
nurtured cultural pride, strengthened research and communication skills,
and inspired creative connections between tradition and innovation—helping
children reconnect with their roots in meaningful, lasting ways.
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@ Education IIMPACT, Alwar, Rajasthan

CSR DONATION TOWARDS GIRL CHILD EDUCATION THROUGH
IIMPACT IN ALWAR, RAJASTHAN

In May 2024, Orbis extended its commitment to social responsibility by
supporting girl child education in India through a stratepic partnership
with IMPACT, an NGO dedicated to transforming communities through the
education of underprivileged girls.

Established in 2003, IIMPACT has worked to break barriers related to pender,
caste, religion, and creed by providing access to quality education for girls,
thereby uplifting entire communities,

Orbis's CSR donation is a step toward creating a more equitable future—where
every girl has the opportunity to leamn, grow, and succeed. By investing

in education, Orbis seeks to empower girls and unlock their potential as
chanpemakers in society.

The IMPALT Girl Child Education Programme has significantly enhanced
the quality of education and student engagement in Alwar, Rajasthan. Key
initiatives included:
= Repular teacher assessments to improve instruction
» Increased student attendance through tarpeted community outreach
Enriched learning environments for holistic development
Celebratory events and UNICEF-led awareness sessions
68 training batches conducted to upskill educators and staff

These interventions positively impacted 50,117 girls, strengthening

educational outcomes and advancing pender empowerment across the
region.
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SWACHH BHARAT ABHIYAN

As part of its CSR initiative, Orbis has extended valuable support to Bal Vidya
Mandir, a school in Rewa, Madhya Pradesh, by funding the construction of
essential sanitation facilities. The newly built infrastructure inciudes urinals
for boys, separate toilets for girls, a dedicated toilet for children with special
needs, and wash basins—all designed to promote hypgiene and convenience
for students.

This thoughtful initiative has been warmly welcomed by teachers and
parents alike, as it significantly enhances hygiene standards and fosters

a healthier, more inclusive learning environment. To further reinforce
sanitation awareness among students, the school also orpanized a painting
competition, inspiring children to actively participate in the cleanliness
movement.

53 19™ ANMUAL REPORT 2024-25



= SOCIAL

ORAT!

RES

JRPC

|

B

J

-

SPONS

® Education Bal Vidya Mandir school, Rewa, Madhya Pradesh
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POWERING EDUCATION WITH CLEAN ENERGY

Bal Vidya Mandir, a school run by Shri Arvind Society in Rewa, Madhua
Pradesh, is committed to delivering quality education to children from
underprivileped backgrounds. In a major stride towards sustainability, the
school inaugurated its newly installed solar power system in October 2024
under Orbis CSR initiative.

With this initiative, essential facilities such as lighting, fans, and the office
computer are now fully powered by solar energy. This marks a meaningful
transition towards energy efficiency and environmental responsibility on the
school campus.

The school management has extended heartfelt thanks to the penerous CSR
contribution that made this preen initiative a reality, reinforcing the power of
collaboration in building a brighter, cleaner future for education.
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@ Children with Special Needs  apapT, Mumbai

CSR DONATION TOWARDS SCHOOL BUS FOR THE CHILDREN
WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

Orbis contributed to the purchase of a specially designed school bus for
ADAPT [Able Disabled All People Together), a renowned Mumbai-based
organization dedicated to supporting children and young adults with neuro-
muscular and developmental disabilities. ADAPT provides inclusive education,
therapy, and advocacy aimed at empowering individuals and fostering equal
opportunities.

In February 2025, Shri Shyam Agarwal, Managing Director and CED of Orbis,
formally inaugurated the customized school bus at the ADAPT campus.

The bus is equipped with essential features such as a wheelchair lift and
safety window grills, ensuring both accessibility and security for its young
passenpers.

Impact: The introduction of this specially equipped bus has significantly
improved daily transportation for the students. Attendance has increased

as children now arrive at school more regularly, refreshed and enthusiastic.
Wheelchair users travel more safely and independently, and parents express
relief and satisfaction, no longer burdened by the challenges of navipating
public transportation. This initiative underscores Orbis’s commitment to
creating an inclusive and supportive community for all.
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Sneh Cultural and Holistic

@ Children with Special Needs  Foundation, Mumbai

CSR DONATION TOWARDS TREATMENT AND ADJUNCTS TO THE
CHILDREN WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

In October 2024, Orbis extended support to the Sneh Cultural and Holistic
Foundation, a Mumbai-based non-profit organization dedicated to the care
and development of children with special needs, providing therapeutic
services and holistic support for both the children and their families.

Through our CSR contribution, Orbis enabled the treatment and onpoing
care of five children, aped between 5 and 12 years, diagnosed with
conditions such as Cerebral Palsy, Autism Spectrum Disorder, and Hypoxic
Ischaemic Encephalopathy. All five children come from socio-economically
disadvantaped backgrounds and are now receiving personalized therapy
through Sneh's specialized programs.

Impact:

= Therapy plans incorporated emotional regulation and social interaction
goals.

= Notable improvements were ocbserved in the children’s enpagement with
daily routines and structured activities.

» Families reported reduced caregiver stress and a sipgnificant
enhancement in overall quality of life.

This initiative reflects Orbis's dedication to creating meaningful impact
through inclusive healthcare and community development.
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@ Rehabilitation Snehalaya, Ahmednagar

CSR DONATION TO SNEHALAYA, AHMEDNAGAR

In May 2024, Orbis extended its CSR commitment by supporting the
construction of the third floor of the pirls' hostel at Snehalaya, a renowned
NGO based in Ahmednagar, Maharashtra.

Snehalaya works tirelessly to uplift marginalized communities, particularly
women and children affected by prostitution, human trafficking, HIV/

AIDS, domestic violence, and extreme poverty. Through its comprehensive
rehabilitation programs, Snehalaya has played a pivotal role in transforming
the red-light district of Ahmednagar.

Orbis' C5R donation contributes to the orpanization's ongoing efforts to
provide a safe and nurturing residential facility for vulnerable girls. The hostel
offers a protective environment where residents — many of whom have been
rescued from exploitation and abandonment — receive access to education,
healthcare, nutrition, and psychosocial support.

Impact: The girls’ hostel currently supports 75 girls aged 3 to 1B. Beyond
meeting their basic needs, the facility offers academic enrichment, hobby
classes, emotional counselling, and life skills training. This holistic care
enables the girls to heal, grow, and envision a future filled with dignity,
confidence, and opportunity.
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@ Rehabilitation Apna Ghar Sanstha, Rajasthan

CSR CONTIBUTION TO MAA MADHURI BRIJ VARIS SEWA SADAN
APNA GHAR SANSTHA

As part of its ongoing commitment to social responsibility, Orbis contributed
to Maa Madhuri Brij Varis Sewa Sadan — Apna Ghar Sanstha in August 2024
under its CSR initiatives.

Apna Ghar is a nationally recognized humanitarian organization dedicated
to rescuing, sheltering, and rehabilitating abandoned, destitute, and
differently-abled individuals found in vulnerable conditions. The organization
operates multiple centers across India, offering medical care, nutritious
meals, clothing, and emotional support to those who are mentally ill, elderiy,
terminally ill, or otherwise marginalized.

Impact:

* Location Supported: Apna Ghar Ashram, Bharatpur, Rajasthan

= Nature of Support: Provision of food, clothing, medical assistance, and
emotional care

= Beneficiaries: Over 6,400 destitute and ailing individuals [ Prabhuji)

The contribution made by Orbis enabled the Ashram to continue its mission of
care and compassion by enhancing its capacity to provide essential services.
This support directly impacted the lives of thousands of Prabhuiji, ensuring
their basic needs were met and reinforcing the organization's ability to reach
and rehabilitate more individuals in need.
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CSR CONTRIBUTION FOR THE WELFARE OF WIDOWS
IN VRINDAVAN

Orbis partnered with the Ramakrishna Mission, Vrindavan, to support the
well-being of elderly women residing in the holy city of Vrindavan. This
initiative focuses on addressing the nutritional needs of widows who often
face social and economic challenges.

Under this program, Orbis has been providing monthly ration kits comprising
essential staples such as rice, pulses, wheat flour, cooking oil, tea, and milk
powder. These provisions are aimed at ensuring the women receive adeguate
nutrition while enabling them to live with dignity, independence, and spiritual
fulfillment.

Impact: During the reporting period, this initiative reached 1,600 elderly
women, offering consistent support that enhanced their quality of life,
promoted well-being, and upheld their dignity in a culturally and spiritually
sipnificant environment.
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.' Cummunitg Welfare Ramakrishna Mission, Dehradun

CSR DONATION TOWARDS EYE CARE

As part of our commitment to community well-being, Orbis has partnered
with Ramakrishna Mission, Dehradun, to extend monthly CSR support to
Vivekananda Netralaya. This collaboration focuses on the provision of
essential eye care medicines—such as eye drops, antibiotics, and vitamins—
at no cost to underprivileged patients, supporting both pre- and post-
operative care,

Medicines are distributed through outreach camps across several
underserved regions, including Rudraprayag, Guptkashi, Aupustmuni,
Chamaoli, Kamaprayag, Budhana, Ruhana, and Jansath, as well as at the base
hospital. This initiative ensures consistent access to vital healthcare services
for remote and marginalized communities.

Impact:

= 15 B5S eye surgeries conducted, with 67% provided free of charge to
economically disadvantapged patients
Over 30,000 outpatient visits recorded

= B,700 individuals received free essential medications
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. Cummunitg Welfare Ramakrishna Mission, Uttrakhand
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CSR FLOOD RELIEF IN THE VILLAGES OF TINGARGH AND TOLI IN
UTTRAKHAND

In July 2024, the villapes of Tingargh and Toli in the Ghansali district of
Uttarakhand were struck by a devastating cloudburst. The torrential rains
tripgered severe flooding, destroying homes and forcing residents to seek
shelter in a local povernment school, where classrooms were converted into
temporary living spaces.

In response to this crisis, Orbis, under its CSR initiative, partnered with
the Ramakrishna Mission to extend critical relief support to the affected
communities.

The swift and coordinated relief efforts were met with heartfelt appreciation
from the local community. The school principal, village Pradhan, and Tehsildar
conveyed their sincere gratitude to Orbis for its timely and compassionate
contribution during a time of immense need.

Impact of Relief Measures:

» Shelter: 300 families received tarpaulins, protecting them from rain and
harsh weather conditions.

= Lighting: 345 solar lamps were distributed, restoring light and improving
safety in households without electricity.

* Cooking Essentials: 100 pressure cookers and 100 gas stoves were
provided, allowing families to prepare hot meals despite their damaged
kitchens.
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CSR DONATION TOWARDS MOBILE CLINIC IN MATHURA

Orbis has partnered with the Ramakrishna Mission to support a mobile
healthcare clinic serving rural communities in Mathura. This initiative aims to
deliver essential medical services directly to the doorsteps of individuals who
face barriers in accessing traditional healthcare facilities due to distance,
lack of transportation, or financial constraints.

Operated by the Ramakrishna Mission, the mobile clinic provides free medical
check-ups, medicines, and treatments, significantly enhancing healthcare
accessibility for underserved populations.

Impact:

With Orbis' support, the mobile clinic has positively impacted 21,908
individuals comprising 9,227 men, 10,269 women, and 2,412 children by
improving their access to quality healthcare and contributing to better health
outcomes and overall community well-being.
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.' Cummunitg Welfare Ramakrishna Mission, Vrindavan

CSR DONATION TOWARDS BLANKET DISTRIBUTION

In December 2024, to commemaorate the birth anniversary of Maa Sharda,
Orbis extended its support to a compassionate initiative aimed at aiding
widowed mothers in Vrindavan. As part of its CSR efforts, Orbis partnered
with the Ramakrishna Mission, Vrindavan, to facilitate the distribution of
blankets to help protect these women from the harsh winter conditions.

The event commenced with devotional prayers and hymns in honor of Maa
Sharda, creating a serene and spiritual atmosphere, This was followed by the
serving of a wholesome and nourishing lunch for the residents. The highlight
of the day was the distribution of warm blankets, a gesture intended to offer
comfort, dignity, and warmth to the elderly mothers during the winter season.

Orbis is honored to contribute to such meaningful efforts and remains
committed to supporting vulnerable communities through impactful and
compassionate initiatives.
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. Cummunitg Welfare Lok Paryavaran Shiksha Sansthan, Haridwar

CSR CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS LEPROSY PATIENTS IN HARIDWAR

As part of its ongoing commitment to community welfare, Orbis extended
support to individuals affected by leprosy in Haridwar through a partnership
with Lok Paryavaran Shiksha Sansthan. This initiative facilitated the
distribution of dry rations to residents of three ashrams: Shri Ganga Mata
Shiv Mandir Leprosy Ashram, Chidanand Leprosy Ashram, and Swami
Yivekanand Leprosy Ashram.

The provision of essential food supplies has had a meaningful impact on

the health and nutritional well-being of the ashram residents. In parallel,
regular Shramdaan [voluntary community service] activities were organized
to promote cleanliness and enhance the overall living conditions within the
ashram premises.
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@ Environmental Initiatives  iamgurgaon, Gurgaon

CSR CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS SOLAR BOREWELL

| am Gurgaon is a citizen-driven initiative dedicated to restoring Gurgaon's
environment and biodiversity. The organization's mission is to foster a
greener city through increased awareness, accountability, and community

engapement.

Orbis proudly contributed CSR funds to support the installation of a solar-
powered borewell in Gurgaon's 180-acre Aravali Mapar Van. Once degraded by
waste and encroachments, this forest area is now undergoing revival efforts
led by | am Gurgaon. Their work includes restoring native plant species,
creating wetlands, and implementing sustainable, eco-friendly practices.

The solar borewell will provide a reliable source of clean water essential
for sustaining these restoration activities. | am Gurgaon extends heartfelt
gratitude to Orbis for its invaluable support in realizing this vision.

Impact - Orbis’ C5R funding has enabled sustainable water access through

the solar borewell, directly contributing to the revival of Aravali Nagar Van, the
restoration of native flora, and the overall ecological rejuvenation of the area.
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Arpana Research and
Charities Trust, Haryana

@® Women Empowerment
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DIGITAL TRAINING FOR WOMEN IN HARYANA

Arpana Research and Charities Trust, a non-profit organization, is committed
to uplifting rural communities—particularly women and children—through
healthcare, education, and livelihood initiatives. With operations in

Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, and Delhi, the Trust promotes self-reliance and
sustainable social development.

In 2024, with CSR support from Orbis, Arpana launched a digital skills training
program in Kamal, Haryana, tarpeting women from 162 Self-Help Groups
[SHGs]).

Impact: The initiative has empowered 15,576 women with essential digital
skills, including NEFT transactions, conducting WhatsApp and Zoom
meetings, using Google Apps, and operating Bluetooth speakers. As a result,
90% of SHGs now conduct meetings on Zoom. The training has significantly
enhanced women's confidence, independence, and responsiveness,
strengthening communication and collaboration across their communities.
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. Animal Welfare Friendicoes, New Delhi

CSR DONATION TOWARDS COW FEEDING PROGRAM

As part of its continued commitment to animal welfare, Orbis supported
Friendicoes through a C5R donation dedicated to their cow feeding program.

Friendicoes is a renowned non-profit animal welfare orpanization that
rescues, rehabilitates, and provides lifelong care to injured, abandoned, and
stray animals. With facilities including a city shelter in Delhi and a sanctuary
in Gurgaon, the organization plays a critical role in animal rescue and
rehabilitation.

Orbis's contribution specifically aids the feeding and care of rescued cows,
ensuring they receive regular, nutritious meals. This support directly
contributes to improved health outcomes, reduced stress, and enhanced
recovery for the animals, while promoting their overall well-being in a safe,
compassionate, and sustainable environment.
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. Animal Welfare Elephant Conservation and Care Centre, Mathura

CSR CONTRIBUTION TO ELEPHANT CONSERVATION &
CARE CENTRE, MATHURA

In September 2024, Orbis extended its CSR initiative by making a meaningful
contribution to the Elephant Conservation and Care Centre in Mathura, Uttar
Pradesh. This sanctuary is dedicated to rescuing elephants from conditions
of abuse, neglect, and exploitation. It offers them a safe haven with holistic
care encompassing proper nutrition, medical treatment, and psychological
enrichment.

Orbis’ support directly benefits five resident elephants — Maya, Phoolkali,
Emma, Mia, and Rhea. Thanks to this compassionate initiative, these
elephants are not only undergoing rehabilitation but are also being given the
chance to live in an environment that closely resembles their natural habitat
— one where dignity, safety, and care are paramount.
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Employee Engagement

Employee engagement plays a vital role in our Corporate Social Responsibility
[‘CSR') efforts, serving as a reflection of our organization’s vision, mission,
and values. By actively involving our teams in CSR initiatives, we nurture a
culture of purpose, ownership, and social impact. Over the years, participation
in these efforts has grown steadily, highlighting our collective commitment to
giving back.

As we continue to deepen this engagement, we remain focused on creating
meaningful, lasting contributions to the communities we serve. Here are
some of the key employee engagement initiatives undertaken during FY25.

@ SNEHALAYA IN AHMEDNAGAR
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In May 2024, a group of employees visited Snehalaya in Ahmednagar, an organization
supported through Orbis's CSR contributions. The visit included a puided tour of the girls’
hostel, a facility partially funded by Orbis, where the employees had the opportunity to
interact with the children and observe daily life at the centre.

The team also met with Snehalaya's core leadership, engaging in meaningful discussions
to gain deeper insights into the organization's mission, impact, and ongoing initiatives.

59 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25



E_.

—

e

\

E ..'"‘l r_]

(1

RPC

IRATE S

i,

W
|

B

i

L

IONS

i
-

|
|

o

@ TREE PLANTATION IN GURUGRAM

In August 2024, 35 enthusiastic Orbis employees took part in a tree plantation drive at
Aravalli Creek in Gurugram, in collaboration with the orpanization | am Gurgaon. Together,
they planted a diverse range of native tree species, including Kamini, Chamrod, Adusa,
Chitrak, Mirgundi, Harshingar, and Bistedu.

This collective effort is a meaningful step toward the reforestation of the Aravalli Creek
area. In the years to come, the landscape will Aourish into a vibrant green space standing
as a living testament to the Orbis team's commitment to environmental sustainability.

@ SOLAR BOREWELL IN GURUGRAM

Orbis employees visited the solar-powered borewell site in Gurugram, a project supported
through our C5R contribution. During the visit, they observed the system in action

and participated in watering plants across the Aravalli Hills, directly experiencing its
environmental impact.

The team also enpaged with on-ground staff to better understand how the initiative
supports groundwater conservation. The visit underscored the importance of sustainable
water solutions in restoring green cover and promoting biodiversity across the region.
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@ VISIT T0 DEHRADUN

In January 2025, Mr Upendra Dutt Tripathi, President - Business Development, Strategy
and Head of Human Resource at Orbis, visited Dehradun to review key C5R initiatives
supported by the organization.

During the visit, he toured the Purkal Youth Development Society, where Orbis has
sponsored the education of 25 children, and the Jagar Project, which is dedicated 1o
preserving the folk art and cultural heritage of Uttarakhand. He also visited the Eye
Health Care Initiative at the Ramakrishna Mission, which delivers critical eye care
services to underserved communities.

Mr Upendra's visit reaffirmed Orbis's ongoing commitment to creating lasting social
impact and supporting initiatives that enrich lives and strengthen communities.
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Directors’ Report

To the Shareholders

Your Directors welcome the shareholders and take pleasure in presenting the 19™ Annual Report
together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS [STANDALONE & CONSOLIDATED)

{Rs. in Crores)

Revenue from Operations 55138 556,16 420,12 424,24
Other Income 3or 407 627 T8
Total Income 55445 56023 473639 431.42
Expenditure 17867 18093 174.00 17575
Profit before interest,

depreciation & amortisation 375.78 37930 252.39 25567
and taxes

Finance Cost 98.54 a8.56 64.81 54.34
Deprediation and amortisation c 60 576 3158 364
EXpense

Praofit before Tax 271.55 27498 184.00 187.19
Income Tax 69.44 7035 45,10 4591
Profit After Tax 20211 20463 13890 141.28
Other Comprehensive Income

(net of tax) -0.07 0.06 .05 -0.05
Total Comprehensive Income

for the year 202.04 20458 138.85 141.23

The standalone and the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2025, forming part of this Annual Report, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [‘the Act’).
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STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS [Standalone)

During the year, the Company has earned a total income of Rs. 554 45 Crores as compared to

Rs. 426.39 Crores in the previous year, recording a growth of 30.03%. Total expenses during the year
were Rs. 282.90 Crores as compared to Rs. 242.39 Crores in the previous year, a growth of 15.08%.
During the year the Company has earned a Profit before Tax of Rs. 271.55 Crores as compared to

Rs. 184.00 Crores in the previous year, recording an increase of 4258 . The profit after tax was

Rs. 202.11 Crores as compared to Rs. 138.90 Crores in the previous year, growth of 45.51%.

RECOGNITIONS

Your company was accorded as the:
1. 'Leading Custodian and Clearing Member' by MCX for the Financial Year 2024-25.
Z. NCDEX Pragati ka solid exchange felicitating Orbis for their contribution as a custodian.

DIVIDEND

Your directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs. 1.80 per equity share of Rs. 10 each fully
paid-up for FY25; as compared to Rs. 1.00 per equity share in the previous year. Dividend is subject to
approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and shall be subject to deduction of
income tax at source.

TRANSFER TD RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount out of the profits of the year to Reserves.

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year 202425, there was no change in the Company's Authorised Share Capital,
which continues to stand at Rs. 158 Crores.

However, during the year, the Company allotted 24,91,100 [ Twenty Four Lakhs Ninety-One Thousand
One Hundred] equity shares of Rs. 10 each, pursuant to the exercise of stock options by elipible
employees under various active Employee Stock Option Schemes.

Following this allotment, the Issued and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company increased to
Rs. 1,24,22,12 600 [ Rupees One Hundred Twenty-Four Crores Twenty-Two Lakhs Twelve Thousand Six
Hundred Only ), comprising 12 42 21,260 [ Twelve Crores Forty-Two Lakhs Twenty One Thousand Two
Hundred Sixty] equity shares of Rs. 10 each as of March 31, 2025.

Further, post the end of the financial year and up to the date of this Report, the Company has
further allotted 3,34,550 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, pursuant to the exercise of stock options by
employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme.

In line with the Company's talent retention and incentive strategy, 15,10,000 stock options were

granted to 76 elipible employees during the year under the Employes Stock Option Plan 2022, at an
exercise price of Rs. 135 per option.
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The equity shares of the Company are held in dematerialised form with National Securities Depository
Limited ['NSDL') and Central Depository Services [India] Limited [*CDSL’], which continue to act as
the depositories. The annual custodian fees for the financial year 2025—26 have been duly paid by
the Company.

SUBSIDIARY

As on March 31, 2025, your company has 2 subsidiary Companies in terms of Section 2[87] of the
Companies Act, 2013 [‘Act’]

As on even date the following are the subsidiaries of the Company:
Orbis Trusteeship Services Private Limited ['OTSPL)

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary, registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ["SEBI'] as a Debenture Trustee.

OTSPL specializes in a comprehensive suite of trusteeship services, including debenture/bond
trusteeship, fund trusteeship, securitization and structured finance, security trusteeship, escrow
and securities monitoring, and facility apent services.

Additionally, OTSPL is authorized 1o provide administration, and asset management support services
under the regulatory framework of the international Financial Services Centres Authority ['IFSCA"] at
BIFT City, bujarat.

Orbis Financial Services [IFSC) Private Limited ['0FSPL)

Orbis Financial Services [IFSC) Private Limited ['OFSPL] is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, incorporated within the GIFT SEZ, International Financial Services Centre ['IFSC'), Gujarat.

OFSPL has received Provisional Registration from the International Financial Services Centres
Authority [IFSCA) to undertake a wide range of financial activities, including lending, securitisation,
and credit enhancement. Additionally, the Company has submitted applications for the following
regulatory approvals:

[i] Professional Clearing Member [PCM)
The NSE IFSCA approved the application for registration as a Professional Clearing Member [PCM)
on July 15, 2025, and has forwarded the same to the International Financial Services Centres
Authority ['IFSCA’) for issuance of the No Dbjection Certificate ['NOC’).

[ii]) Finance Company
OFSPL has fulfilled all conditions outlined in the Provisional Registration letter and has
submitted a formal confirmation of compliance to IF5CA to enable issuance of the final
registration as a Finance Company. Following the submission of the required documents on
July 14, 2025, there have been no further queries from the Regulator. The company remains
optimistic that the final Finance Company license will be issued in the coming days.
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OFSPL has filed Application of Broad-banding in the existing letter of Approval ['LOA") No. GIFT/
SEZ/DCO/I/165/2023-24 dated 16/01/2024 followed by provisional IFSC Registration as Finance
Company vide Certificate No. 1184/IFSCA/FCD/FC/Orbis IFSC/2024-25/001 dated 06.12.2024

for setting up of SEZ IFSC unit in Multi Services SEZ of M/s. GIFT SEZ Limited at Unit No. 223,

£nd Floor, Signature Building, Block No 13, B Zone-1, Road 1C, GIFT SEZ, Gift City, Gandhinagar,
Gujarat, India — 382050.

During the 61st Unit Approval Committee ['UAC') meeting of the Approval Committee for

the Multi-Service 5EZ developed by M/s. GIFT City Co. Ltd., held in July 2025, the Committee
considered and approved the OF5PUs request to include additional activities under the Finance
Company category, pursuant to Regulation 51(iia) of the IFSCA Finance Company Regulations,
2021, in the existing Letter of Approval [LOA).

The Committee has acknowledged the proposed broad-banding of activities and has issued a revised
Letter of Approval [ Letter Ref. No. SEZONLINE/INGNCG/ 192500000151 dated March 28, 2025)

incorporating these additional activities.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

The Company has a registrar and transfer agent Skyline Financial Services Private Limited having its
Repistered office at D-153A, First Floor Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-l, New Delhi — 110020.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, no deposits have been accepted by the Company from the public. The
Company had no outstanding, unpaid or unclaimed public deposits at the beginning and end of FY25.

BORROWINGS

The outstanding borrowings [ Bank-Guarantees) as on March 31, 2025 were Rs. 346 crores as
compared to Rs. 581 crores as on March 31, 2024,

CREDIT RATING

The Company has credit rating of “ICRA A [Stable]” for its long-term and “ICRA A1" for short term, non-
fund based facilities amounting to Rs. 1500 crores and fund based facilities amounting to Rs. 100
crores in FY25.

QUALITY INITIATIVES

Our Company is 150 certified, and certifications includes Information Security Management System
(IS0 27001:2013), Business Continuity Management System (IS0 22301:2012] and Quality
Management System [I50 9001:2015).

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company operates in Capital Markets and Commodities segment and hence is prone to various
risks. The Company has implemented a comprehensive Risk Manapement Policy which lays down
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processes and policies to mitigate major risks faced by the Company. The Company through its
Risk Management Committee and Board oversees the Risk Management process including risk
identification, impact assessment, effective implementation of the mitipation plans and risk
reporting.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our CSR initiatives are impact oriented and characterised by a project implementation plan, well-
defined povernance, and monitoring mechanisms. Concerted efforts were made to operate in ways
that enhance rather than degrade society and the environment.

The Company undertakes its CSR activities directly and through implementing agencies. The
Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility [ 'CSR’] Policy which outlines the Company's
philosophy and fays down the mechanism for undertaking programs towards welfare and sustainable
development of the community around the area of its operations. The Policy is disclosed on the
Company's website [web link: https://www.orbisfinancial.in/updates/)

During the year under review, the Company through the C5R Committee has helped to improved
various aspects of the Society by contributing and participating in the following noble causes:

1. Snehalaya, Maharashtra — Contributed to the construction of a girls’ hostel supporting
rehabilitation and empowerment of women and pirls affected by trafficking and HIV,

2. Purkal Youth Development Society, Uttarakhand — Supported holistic education and
development of underprivileged children through funding of academic and wellness initiatives.

3. Shri Arvind Society, Madhya Pradesh — Funded the installation of a solar grid to promote
renewable energy and uninterrupted learning in a rural school.

4. 5Shri Arvind Society, Madhya Pradesh — Enhanced school sanitation infrastructure through the
rengvation and construction of toilet facilities.

5. NIMPALT, Rajasthan — Supported primary education for out-of-school rural girls through the Girl
Child Education Program to ensure literacy and mainstream integration.

6. Sneh Holistic and Cultural Foundation, Maharashtra — Sponsored therapy and assistive
equipment for children with special needs under Project Samarthya.

7. ADAPT, Maharashtra — Contributed towards the purchase of a specially adapted school bus for
children with disabilities to ensure accessible transportation.

8. Lok Paryavaran Sansthan, Uttarakhand — Provided monthiy rations and hygiene support to
individuals affected by leprosy in Haridwar.

9. RKM Vrindavan, Uttar Pradesh — Funded the monthly ration distribution for widows in Vrindavan
to support their basic nutritional needs.

10. Apna Ghar, Rajasthan — Supported operational expenses of a shelter home providing care and
rehabilitation to destitute and homeless individuals.

11. RKM Vrindavan, Uttar Pradesh — Sponsored a mobile clinic delivering essential healthcare
services to underserved rural communities.

12. RKM Dehradun, Uttarakhand — Funded eye care surgeries and medical support for
underprivileged patients through Netralaya hospital.

13. 1 am Gurgaon, Haryana — Supported tree plantation initiatives to promate urban biodiversity and
ecological restoration.

i4. | am Gurgaon, Haryana — Funded the installation of a solar-powered borewell to ensure
sustainable water supply for a community forest project.
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15, Arpana Trust, Haryana — Sponsored digital literacy and training programs for rural women to
enhance financial inclusion and empowerment.

16. Friendicoes, Haryana — Contributed to feeding programs for abandoned and rescued animals in
Delhi-NCH.

17 Wildlife 505, Uttar Pradesh — Supported the rehabilitation and lifetime care of rescued elephants
at a dedicated conservation center.

18. RKM Dehradun, Uttarakhand — Provided flocd relief aid including solar lights, food, clothes, and
shelter materials to disaster-affected villages in Ghansali.

The details of Company’s CSR activities and initiatives are detailed in the Annual Report on CSR
activities and is attached as Annexure - | to the Directors’ Report.

During the year, the Company has spent a sum of Rs. 2.46 Crores on various CSR activities,

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company is in a service-oriented industry where human element is most important. To keep
pace with business growth, the Company has hired right mix of people for its various verticals.
Human Resource ['HR') played an important role during the year in not only taking care of existing
employees but also timely onboarding of vacant positions across all locations. The Company has
offered Employees Stock Option Scheme ["ESOPs’] with a view to attract, reward and retain talented
and key employees in the competitive environment. The Company has Four Employee Stock Dption
Schemes namely Drbis Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 [‘ESOP 2018’), Orbis Employee Stock Option
Pian 2020 ["ESOP 2020'), Orbis Employee Stock Option Plan 2020-11 ["ESOP 2020-1'] and Orbis
Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 ['ESOP 2022'). During the year under review, 24,91,100 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted to the eligible employees on exercise of ES0F options under ESOP
Scheme 2018, 2020 and 2022.

As on March 31, 2025, Company had a total of 132 Employees on its rolls [including group
companies ), out of which 59 are female employees. During the financial year 202425, the
organization remained committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning and professional
development. Key training initiatives conducted include:

= PDSH [Prevention of Sexual Harassment] training to reinforce awareness and compliance across
the workforce.
= [yber Security Awareness sessions to enhance employee preparedness against digital threats.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In accordance with the provisions of Rule 5[ 2] of the Companies [Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014, the names and particulars of the top employees in terms
of remuneration drawn and details of the aforesaid employees are set out in the annexure to the
Directors’ Report. The Directors’ Report is being sent to all Shareholders of the Company excluding
this annexure. Any Shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the annexure may write to the
Company.

PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL DF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition
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and Redressal] Act, 2013 ['POSH Act'), the Company has adopted a policy on prevention of sexual
harassment at the workplace ["POSH Palicy’].

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaints
Committee as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [ Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal] Act, 2013. Members of the Internal Complaints Committee constituted by the Company
are responsible for reporting and conducting inquiries pertaining to such complaints.

All employees are also required to undergo a detailed learning medule on the key aspects of
Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy at the workplace.

The details of complaints pursuant to Section 22 of the POSH Act for EY. 2024-25 are as under:

*  Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints received- Nil
=  Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints disposed-Nil
=  Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints pending beyond 90 days-Nil

COMPLIANCE WITH MATERMITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including
amendments thereto, by extending all applicable benefits to eligible employees. Necessary records
and processes are maintained in accordance with the Act,

PARTICULARS DF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, puarantees and investments are disclosed in notes to the standalone/
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, the
transactions entered with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s
length pricing basis, the details of which are included in the notes forming part of the Standalone/
Consolidated financial statements. There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions
with Related Parties during the Financial Year 2024-25. Disclosure in Form ADC-2 is therefore not

reguired.

Details of related party transactions entered into by the Company, in terms of Ind AS-24 have been
disclosed in the notes to the standalone/consolidated financial statements forming part of this
Directors’ Report & Annual Accounts 2024-25,

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENEREY, TECHNOLDGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIEN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND EXPENDITURE

There is no information to disclose under the head ‘Conservation of energy and technology

absorption’ in terms of Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2014 since the Company is engapged in
providing financial /securities services.
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Details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are hereunder:

(Rs. in Crores)

Eamings In forelgn currency

Revenue from Operations 947 6.82
Total 9.47 6.82
Expenditure In foreign currency

Travel and conveyance 0.16 177
Business Promotion Expenses 255 i
Commission fees 0.00 637
Software maintenance expenses 216 0.16
Total 488 1.41

INTERMAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal financial controls systems in place, which facilitates
efficient conduct of its business including adherence to Company'’s policies, safeguarding of its
assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy of the accounting records and
timely preparation of reliable financial information. The Company'’s internal control framework is
commensurate with the size and nature of its operations.

MAINTAINENCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as per sub-section [1) of Section 148 of
the Act.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company had appointed M/s M 5 K A & Associates having firm registration no. 105047W as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of & consecutive years at the 16™ AGM to hold
office until the conclusion of the 21 AGM.

The report of Statutory Auditors on annual accounts is enclosed along with Directors' Report. During the
year under review, the said report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer. Further, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any frauds under Section 143 [12] of the
Companies Act, 2013 therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134{3] of the Act.
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s

Pankaj Nipam & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit
of the Company.
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The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith as
Annexure — || to this report. There are no gualifications, observations, adverse remark or disclaimer in
the said Report.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

As per Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to appoint Internal Auditor for
the Financial Year 2024-25. In this connection, the Company has appointed M/s Ravi Ranjan & Co. LLP,
a firm of Chartered Accountants in practice to undertake the Internal Audit of the Company.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board's evaluation process has been adopted by the Company in terms of the Companies Act,
2013. Its main objective is to ensure effective and efficient Board operations towards corporate goals
and objectives, to identify ways to improve Beard member’s functioning and to assess the balance of
knowledge and experience on the Board.

The Board evaluation process involve, evaluation of the whole Board, which is to be done by all the
Members of the Board; evaluation of the Committees of the Board, which is to be done by all the
Members of the respective Commitiee; and evaluation of the individual which is carried out by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Independent Directors at their meeting without the participation of the Non-Independent Directors &
Management, assessed the Performance of the Board and its Committees and individual Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 8 MEETINGS

The Board is overall responsible to oversee the Company's management and to protect the long-
term interest of the stakeholders. During the period under review, the Board consists of & Directors
comprising 2 Independent Directors, 2 Non-Executive Directors, 1 Executive Chairman & WTD and
1 Managing Director & CED. The compaosition of the Board is in conformity with Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board is responsible for the long-term strategic planning and direction of the Company. The
Board functions through its various Committees, which have been assigned various roles and
responsibilities. These Committees closely monitor the performance of the Company. All the
Committees of the Board function within the defined terms of reference in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 and as approved by the Board. The Board regularly reviews Companu's overall
performance at regular interval.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL [KMP)

During the financial year under review, the office of Mr. Pranay Kothari, Independent Director, was
vacated upon completion of his second consecutive term in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable repulations, with effect from March 25, 2025. Further w.e.fF April
1st, 2025, Mr. Omprakash Dani is inducted in the Board as independent Director [Additional and Non-
Executive). Except for the aforementioned change, there were no other changes in the compaosition
of the Board of Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the financial year
202425,

Director Liable to Retire by Rotation: Mr. Rup Chand Jain [DIN:00092600), Non-Executive Director, is
liable to retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and seeks reappointment. Based on performance
evaluation, the Board has recommended his reappointment. Further details are available in the notice
convening the 19thAnnual General Meeting.
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All the Directors have confirmed that they are not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of Section
164(2] of the Act.

DISCLOSURES FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Company have given the requisite declaration in the first Board
meeting stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149{6) of
Companies Act, 2013 and that they have adhered and have complied with the Code of Conduct for
Independent Directors as prescribed in Schedule IV of the Act and Code of Conduct of the Company.

Further, the iIndependent Directors of the Company have also given the requisite declaration stating
that they have complied with Rule 6 [1) & [2) of Companies [Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 reparding registration of their names in the Databank of Independent Directors maintained
with Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs [‘1ICA’] as per MCA Notification No. 6.5.R. 804 [E) dated 22nd

October 2019.

The Independent Directors play an important role on the Board and on the various committees of
the Board. An Independent Director has been nominated as the Chairman of Audit Committee and

MNomination & Remuneration Committee.

The Board is of the opinion that Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, expertise, and

experience.

BOARD MEETINES

As permitted by MCA, the Company held some Board Meetings by audio video means. As per MCA
guidelines, all precautions were taken, rules for secure conduct of board meetings were followed.
Board Meetings are scheduled well in advance and prior notice of each Board Meeting is given through
electronic mode or by hand delivery to every director. The detailed Board Agenda is circulated to

the Directors. The Members of the Board can also recommend inclusion of any matter in the apenda
for discussion. The minutes of each Board Meeting are finalised and recorded in the minute book

maintained by the Company Secretary.

During the year under review, the Board met Five times on May 16, 2024; August 10, 2024; September
3, 2024; November 25, 2024 and March 21, 2025. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings
and 18™ Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024 are listed below:

1 Atul Gupta, Chairman 5 Mo
Shyamsunder Basudeo

2 Aa i 5 Yes

3 Pranay Kothar® 4 Mo

4 R.C. Jain 3 No

5 Manasi Gupta 5 No
Siddartha Abhimanyu

¢ Ramanuja Acharya 3 o

*erstwhile Independent Drector [completion of his second consecutive term on March 2%, 2025 ], With effect from 1" Apni, 2025,

M: Om Prokash Doni is inducted in the Board os the Independant Dirsctor [Additional & Non-Sxecutive ]

T2
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COMMITTEES DF THE BOARD

The Board functions through its various committees, which have been assigned roles and
responsibilities. All the Committees of the Board function within the defined terms of reference in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the business reguirements. The minutes of
all Committee Meetings are finalised and recorded in the minute book maintained by the Company

Secretary. The Minutes of Committee Meetings were also placed before the Board.

The various Board Committees, their roles and members are given below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The key objective of an Audit Committee is oversight of financial disclosures, reporting, internal and
external audits, internal control, accounting, repulatory compliance and risk management. The aim is
to provide an effective command of the Management’s financial reporting process, 1o ensure precise
and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and guality of financial
reporting. The Committee administers the work carried out in the financial reporting process by the
Management, the Internal auditors and the Statutory auditors. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are in conformity with the requirements of Section 177[4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The charter of the Audit Committee is as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit
Committee calls members of senior management as it considers appropriate to be present at the
meetings of the Committee. The Statutory Auditors also attend the meeting of the Audit Committee,
where financial statements are discussed. During the year under review the Audit Committee had met
thrice on May 16, 2024, September 03, 2024 and March 21, 2025. The details of attendance at the

meeting are as under:

1 Pranay Kothari*

Chairperson

Independent Director 3
2 | Awicum ErereellL ;
Siddartha
3 Abhimanyu Independent Director Member 3
Ramanuja Acharya

*erstwhile Independent Drector [compleron of his second consecutive term on March 25 2025 ] With effect from 1% Apnl 2025
Mc O Prokash Dond is inducted on the Avdit Committes as Member and Charperson of the Commuttes,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ['NRC")

The NRC formulates the criteria for determining gualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director. It recommends to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. |t identifies the persons who
are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The Company
has in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnef, Senior
Manapement, and other employees in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

73
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The Commitiee has been delepated powers, roles and responsibilities as reguired under Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has in place Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, Senior Management and other employees in terms of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and is placed at the website of the Company at hitps:/www.orbisfinancialin/wp-content/
uploads/bsk-pdf-manager/2022/04/0FCL Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy. pdf

During the year under review, the NRC had met twice on August 10, 2024 and March 21, 2025. The
details of attendance at the meeting are as under:

siddartha
1 Abhimanyu Independent Director Chairperson 2
Ramanuja Acharya
Executive Chairman and
2 Atul Gupta WholeTime Director Member 2
3 Pranay Kothar® independent Director Member 2
4 Manasi Gupta MNon-Executive Director Member 2

*sr=twhile independent Director [completion of his second consecutnee term on March 25, 2025 . With effect from 1= Apnl. 2025
Me Om Prokash Dani is mducted on the Nominotion and Remunercton Comeminttes as Member of the Committes.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE ['CSR’)

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility [‘CSR’) Committee, that meets the composition
criteria prescribed under the Act, with atleast one [ 1) member being Independent Director. The
terms of reference of the CSR Committee are in accordance with the Act which broadly includes
recommending amount of expenditure to be incurred for the CSR activities, list of projects or
programmes, to review and monitor implementation of CSR programmes.

The Company has in place Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and is placed at the website of the Company at https./wwworbisfinancial.in/
wp-content/uploads/bsk-pdf-manager/202 2/04/0FCL C5R-Policy. pdf

During the year under review, the CSR Committee had met twice on October 1, 2024 and March 21,
2025, The details of attendance at the meeting are as under.

Executive Chairman and
1 Atul Gupta WholaTime Director Chairperson 2
2 Pranay Kothan® Independent Director Member 2
Shyamsunder i
3 B i A i Manaaqing Director & CEO Member 2
4 Manasi Gupta Non-Executive Director Member 2

*erstwhile lndependent Director rompletion of his second consecutive term or March 25, 2025 [ With effect from 1= Apnl, 2025
Me Om Prokosh Danii= mducted on the CSR Committes os Member of the Commitiee.
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STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The primary responsibility of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is to consider and resolve
grievances of security holders. However, the Board may assign additional responsibilities to the
Committee as it deems fit.

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has met once on March 21,
2025. The details of attendance at the meeting is as under:

1 Manasi Gupta Mon-Executive Director Chairperson 1
Executive Chalrman and
2 ful Glipia Whole-Time Director Bermioey L
Shyamsunder z -
3 B eo A i Manaaqing Director & CEO Member 1
4 Pranay Kothar® Independent Director Member 1

*erstwhile Independent Director {rompletion af his second consecutive term or March 25, 20°5 || With effect from 1 Apnl, 202%
Mi Om Prakosh Dani is inducted on the Stokeholders Relotionship Committee os Member of the lommittes.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has established a Management Committee that reviews the Banking matters, specific
business operational matters and other items that Board may decide to delegate.

During the year, the Management Committee has met 10 times on April 12, 2024, June 11, 2024,
July 8, 2024, July 29, 2024, September 25, 2024, Dctober 28, 2024, November 28, 2024, January 20,
2025, February 11, 2025 and March 13, 2025.

The details of attendance at the meeting are as under:

] Al Gupta m@m r‘““j Chairperson 10
Shyamsunder 2 _
2 8 eo A " Manaqging Director & CED Member 10

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ['RMC")

The Board has established a Risk Management Committee to assess and monitor various aspects of
risk management and review the Company's risk exposure in its business operations. The Committee
comprises of senior members of the Company and a Non-Executive Director acting as an Independent
Advisor. It approves onboarding of a new trading member/CP Client and periodically reviews existing
ones; accords deviation approval if any, approval for process of liquidation of collateral to recover the
dues from the client.

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee has met 4 times on June 25, 2024,
August 26, 2024, Novemnber 14, 2024 and March 7, 2025.
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MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, One separate Meeting of Independent Directors of the Company
was held on March 21, 2025 without attendance of non-independent directors and members of the
management. Alongwith other matters, the independent directors discussed the matters specified in
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

VIGIL MECHAMNISM / WHISTLE ELOWER POLICY

Pursuant to provisions of Sub-section (9] and [ 10) of Section 178 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies [Meeting of Board and its Powers] Rules, 2014, the company has vigil mechanism named
"Whistle Blower Policy', to deal with instances of unethical practices, fraud and mismanagement or
gross misconduct by the directors and employees of the Company, if any, that can lead to financial
loss or reputational risk to the Orpanisation.

The Audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise and deal with all the matters
related to Whistle Blower Policy. The Vigil Mechanism provides adequate safepuards against
victimization of employees or directors and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the
Audit Committee. During the year under review, no such report has been received by the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company's website and
can be accessed at https:/www.orbisfinancial.in/

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators
that would impact the poing concern status or operations of the Company in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

There has been no material changes and commitment affecting the financial pesition of the Company
which has occurred between the close of the financial year to which the financial statement relates

and the date of the Report. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE

The Company stands committed to the key elements of good corporate governance, transparency,
disclosure and independent supervision to increase value to the stakeholders.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Ta& 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25



. DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Board of Directors affirm that, the Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

PROCEEDINGS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Mo corporate Insolvency Resolution Process had commenced against the Company during the
Financial Year under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. No proceedings were pending
against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as at the end of the Financial
Year.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.

THE DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREDF

Mot Applicable:
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134[3](c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on the
information provided by the management, your Directors state that:

a] In the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed;

b] Aceounting policies selected have been applied consistently. Reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates have been made so as to give a true and Fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
on that date;

c] Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safepuarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulanities;

d] The annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e] Internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

f] Systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place and were
adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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The Directors place on record their pratitude for the support of various repulatory authorities
including the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges and Commedity Exchanges,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Repistrar of Companies, Depositories, Bankers, Customers and other
Stakeholders.

The Directors express their appreciation for the dedication and commitment with which the
employees of the Company at all levels have worked during the period.

For and on behalf of the Board

Atul Gupta

Executive Chairman

DIN: 00528086

Date: September 05, 2025
Place: Dehradun

T8 18™ ANMUAL REPOAT 2024-25



URBlﬁ AMMEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

ANNEXURE 1
10 THE DIRECTORS REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (‘CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on the CSR Policy of the Company

The C5R policy of the Company lays down the puidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially
useful proprammes for sustainable development of the community at large. The Company through its
CSR activities enables the marginalized community to be empowered and become self-reliant.

The Company has adopted a CSR Policy approved by the CSR Committee and Board of Directors
in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
[Corporate Social Responsibility ] Rules, 2014 and Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013.

The C5R initiatives to be undertaken by the Company would be as per Section 135 of Companies Act,
2013 and Schedule VII. The focus areas for C5R initiatives are:

* Education

* Women Empowerment

= Animal Welfare

* Healthcare

» Poverty and malnutrition
= Children with Special Needs
* Hehabilitation

* Community Welfare

= Environmental Initiatives

2. Composition of C5R Committee

Executive Chairman and
1 Atul Gupta WholeTime Di a2 0z
Member, ‘ersmwiil
2 Eﬂ} i Aol Managing Director and o2 0z nm’
su wal | o [compiericin of his
SECONT CONSECUTiVe
4 Member, tevm on March 25,
3 Pranay Kothan® ¥ - 02 02 2035} With effec
Independent Director fﬂlﬂi'ﬂﬂrm
Mr. Om Prokosh
Doy ¥s induced o
i Member, the LS Commitres
4 Manasi Gupta Nor-E e DN : a2 oz s o the
Lommames.
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3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company
htips://www.orbisfinancial.in/t tes/

4, Details of Impact Assessment of CSR project carried out in pursuance of Sub-Rule [3] of Rule B of
the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 if applicable

Mot Applicable
L. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of Sub-Rule (3] of Rule 7 of the

Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility Policy] Rules, 2014 and amount requirad for set off for
the financial year, if any

NIL

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5):

The average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5] is Rs. 1,22,58,01,391.

7. a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135[5):
Rs. 2,45,16,028 is two percent of the average net profit.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of previous Financial
Years

There was no surplus amount arising from the [SR projects or programmes or activities that
were carried out in the previous Financial Year.

[c) Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year, if any
There was no amount required to be set off for the Financial Year.
[d) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year [7a+7b-7c)

The total CSR obligation for the Financial Year is Rs. 2,45,16,028 .
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8. [a] CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year

2.45.41.201 NA NA NA NA NA

[b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year
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[c] Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the Financial Year

7 | Sponsomship of five elephants mris sl 330000 Wikdlife 505
Eummﬁmdﬁﬁmhm&pm‘m Ahmednagar,
¥ | ci7sgisaged 31018 Maharashirs Ananng ShHulzg
Promacting Education & supported girl child
L] empaowering over 50 000 with Aiwear, Rajasthan 10,00.000 AMPACT
mmmmuwmw o
1. Providing Support to Class Vil st PYDS,
supporting a tolal of 24 students—1& girls and B
bqs—ﬂlm.ghamﬂmuﬂmedmniaﬂ
2 Supparted Project Jagar which deeply engaged
students of diass Yl in exploring Uttarskhand's Purial Yot
g rich heritage through masic, dance, storytelling, u &5 00 000
art, and echnology. itzrakhand UL Society (PYDS)
1Cmmﬂnmmhfd:ﬂ:lgaﬂndh:sard
cameper that has enabled the procurement
iufam5l+ﬂsemsdmdtns
aimngthﬂymmmnﬁxtﬁm
and 32 staff members acroas four designated
roaales:
Funded the installztion of 2 solar grid to promote )
b renawabie anergy and uninierrupted learning in Madivwa Pradesh 1314454 Sri Arvind Society
a rural school
Enhanced school sanitation mirastructune
7 through the renovation and construction of toilet Madhya Pradesh 1078523 Sri Arvind Sodety
Contnibuted towards the purchase of a specially
3 mmmnmmgﬂm Maharashira 2200000 ADAPT
to ensure accessible ransportation
Funded the monthiy ration distribution fos I Ustar Rarrakeichna
8. | widows in Vrindavan io support their basic Nendncen, 1450000 I
sl i Pradesh Mizsion Ashram
Spansored 2 mobile dinic delivering essential Vrind Utiar Earmakich
A'S hﬂﬁﬁu;ﬂmmmmm Pracest B 25000 Mizsion Ash
Hnikdey!msmgecﬁardneﬂstmu‘t .
11 | for undesprivileged patients through Netraiaya it 12,00,000 Eawmkinima:
Prowided Aood refief aid i g solar fights, Ok 4
1? | food dothes, and shelter todisaster- radun, 400,000 Ramakrishna
affactnd vilbages in Chancil Uttarakhand Misston Ashram
13 ﬁnmmm’m Maharashira 455835 Suditken ant
Prowidad monthly rations and hygiene suppaort to Lok Paryavaran
| indivichsals affected by lpinsy in Haridwar Dtarakhand 2T Shiksh Sansthan
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. Apna Ghar Achram,
Supported expenses of 2 shelter
15, | e pesiiekeuy e de reliatabaten oy Rajasthzn 15,00,000 ey Ly £
destitute and homeless individuais Tt
Sponsored digital !ﬂmaﬂmn_]m . Arpama Research &
16 for rorad toenhance financial inchesion 500 Chasiti
m::l Waomsan i Haryana 000 Trust
tres itiatives to
17 llh::;llmll FI'EI'IIHE Haryana 46,000 I am Gurgaan
Funded the installation of 3 solar-powsrad
k3 borewell 1o ensure sustzinable water supplyfor 3 Haryana 330,000 | am Gurgaon
community forest project:
Total 23534572

[d) Amount spent in administrative overheads

Rs. 11,06,719

[e) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable

Not Applicable

(f] Total amount spent for the Financial Year [8b+8c+8d+8e]

Rs. 246,41 291

[g) Excess amount for set off, if any

i Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(3) 245

ii. Total amount spent for the Finandal Year 246

. Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii}-{i)] Nil

i, Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of %
the previous financial years, if any

V. Amount available for set off in succeeding finandial years [[if}-{iv]] 000

* Amount below rounding — off nomms odopted by the Company.
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9. [a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Year{s)

1 -1 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NiL NIL
2 Fr-2 NIL NIL MNIL NIL NIL NiL NIL
3 3 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

[b) Details of CSR amount spent in the Financial Year for ongoing projects of the preceding Financial

Year{s)
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the Financial Year: Yes & No @

If yes, enter the number of capital assets created/ acquired: Not Applicable
Furnish the details relating to such asset[s] so created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable

2)

(3

(4)

(5]

(6)

Registration

Number if

MName Registered
address

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit

as per section 135(5)

Mot Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board
Atul Gupta

Executive Chairman

DIN: 00528086

Date: September 05, 2025
Place: Dehradun

85
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ANNEXURE 2
T0 THE DIRECTORS" REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2025

[PURSUANT TO SECTION 204(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND
RULE NO. 9 OF THE COMPANIES [APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014]

To,

The Members,

DRBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED

4A, Ocus Technopolis, Sector 54

Golf Club Road, Gurugram, Haryana- 122002

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions

and the adherence to good corporate practices by ORBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED [CIN:
UE7120HR2005PLLO36352) [hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our Opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, apents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according 1o the
provisions of:

[i] The Companies Act, 2013 [the Act] and the rules made there under:

[ii] The Securities Contracts [Regulation] Act, 1956 ['SCRA'] and the rules made there under.

[iii) The Depositories Act, 13996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

[iv] Foreign Exchange Manapement Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under 1o

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
borrowings;
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[v] The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ['SEB! Act’):-

[a] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acguisition of Shares and
Takeovers ) Repulations, 2011; [the Company being SEBI registered intermediary, these
regulations are applicable on the Company to the extent it is relevant).

[b] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [ Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; [the Company being SEBI repistered intermediary, these regulations are
applicable on the Company to the extent it is relevant).

[e] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Custodian of Securities] Repulations, 1996;

[d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements] Regulations, 2009; [Being an unlisted Company, these are not
applicable on the company]

[e] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Share Based employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014, [Being an unlisted Company, these are not applicable on the
company]

[f] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; [Being an unlisted Company, these are not applicable on the
company)

[g] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Repistrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents] Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

[h] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [ Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; [Being an unlisted Company, these are not applicable on the company)

[i] The Securities and Exchange Board of india [Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
[Being an unlisted Company, these are not applicable on the company]

[j] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Intermediaries) Regulations, 2008.

[k] The Securities and Exchange Board of India {KYC [Know Your Client] Repistration
Agency} Repulations, 2011.

[vi] Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Management.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

[i] Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. [The
provisions of the notified Secretarial Standards have been complied with by the
Company during the audit period)

[ii] The Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement [Regulations) 2015 entered into by
the Company with Stock Exchange(s]). [Being an unlisted Company, these are not
applicable on the company]

During the period under review the Company has in peneral complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Repulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

We further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like Direct &

Indirect Tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by
Statutory Financial Auditor and other designated professionals.
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We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
apenda and detailed notes on apenda were sent adequately in advance and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by majority as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.
We have examined the systems and processes of the Company in place to ensure the compliance
with peneral laws like Labour Laws, Employees Provident Funds Act, Employees State Insurance Act,
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [ Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013
considering and relying upon representations made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanisms formed by the Company for compliance under these laws and other applicable sector
specific Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations applicable to the Company and its observance by them.
We further report that as per the explanations given to us and the representations made by the
Management and relied upon by us there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and puidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has given details of following specific

events / actions having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines; standards, etc.

For PANKAJ MIGAM B: ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries
Pankaj Kumar Nigam Date: 04.09.2025
Practicing Company Secretary Place: Ghaziabad

M. No FCS: 7343; C.P. No. 7979
UDIN: FOO?3436001163951

Encl.: Annexure
Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE A" and

forms an integral part of this report.
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Ta

ANNEXURE A

The Members,

Orbis Financial Corporation Limited

AA, Dcus Technopaolis, Sector 54

Golf Club Road, Gurugram, Haryana- 122002

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company, my
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to abtain reasanable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, repulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on random test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

Date: 04.09.2025 For PANKAJ NIGAM B ASSOCIATES
Place: Ghaziabad Company Secretaries

Pankaj Kumar Nigam
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No. FCS-7343
Certificate of Practice No. 7979

UDIN: FOO73436001163951
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ANNEXURE 3
10 THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FORM AOC-1
(PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 READ WITH
RULE § OF COMPANIES [ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014)

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES

PART “A": SUBSIDIARIES
[Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs in Crores]

5. No. Particulars Detalls Detalls
1 Name of the subsidiary b Nk ey Seviices) |Crhis Rancias S vices 073C)
Reporting penod for the subsidiary
F i concerned, if different from the holding 01-04-2024 1o 31-03-2025 01-04-2024 10 31-03-2025
company's reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as
3 on the last date of the relevant inanoal NA NA
year in the case of foreign subsidianes
4 Share capital 1011 o
5 Reserves & surplus B2 015
6 Total assets 20.63 ooy
7 Total liabilities 234 0.27
8 [nwestments 0.00 000
9 Turnowver 5.84 0,00
10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation 357 313
n Provision for taxation 0.90 0,00
iz Proft after taxation 257 313
13 Proposed Dividend 0.00 0,00
14 % of shareholding 0% 1009

Note: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Orbis Financial Services [IFSC)
Private Limited
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. Mot Applicable

For and On Behalf of the Board

Atul Gupta

Executive Chairman

DIN: 00528086

Date: September 05, 2025
Place: Dehradun
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(STANDALONE)

TO THE MEMBERS OF ORBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Orbis Financial Corporation
Limited [“the Company”], which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss [including Other Comprehensive Income ], Statement of Changes in Eguity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information [hereinafter
referred to as the “Standalone financial statements”].

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies

Act, 2013 [“the Aet'] in the manner so required and pive a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies [Indian
Aceounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended [“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit [including
other comprehensive income], changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing [SAs) specified under section 143[10) of the Act. Dur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [*ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the —Directors’ report but does not include the Standalone

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standaione
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134[5] of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial
statements.

We give in "Annexure A", a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the Standalene
Financial Statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies [Auditor's Report ) Order, 2020 “the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section [11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143[3) of the Act, we report that:

[a] Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

[b] In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matter stated in the paragraph
2[h][vi] below on reporting under Rule 11[g].

[e] The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss [including other comprehensive
income], the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

[d] In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

[e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 2] of the Act.

[f] The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 2[b] above on reporting under Section 143[3](b] and
paragraph 2[h][vi] below on reporting under Rule 11[g).

[g] With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure "

[h] With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litipations on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements — Refer Note 42[b] & 42(c] to the Standalone financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer note 43(b) to the Standalone Financial
Statements.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company. Refer note 41 to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

[a]) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested [either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds] by the Company to orin any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities [“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ["Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

[b]) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities [ Funding Parties], with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, direetly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party [“Utimate Beneficiaries”] or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

[c] Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause [i] and [ii] of Rule
11[e) as provided under [a) and [b] above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared
for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act 1o the extent it applies to
payment of dividend.

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which
is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
declaration of dividend. [Refer Note 46 to the Standalone Financial Statements).

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used two
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail [ edit log] facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit
trail of prior years has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used another
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of recording
the audit trail [edit log) facility, except that audit trail feature was not enabled throughout
the year for certain transactions/fields/tables. Further, we are unable to comment whether
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the audit trail feature was enabled at the database level to log any direct changes as
explained in Note 48 [viii] to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Further, where enabled, the audit trail feature has cperated through-out the year for the
relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. Also, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,
in respect of such accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail feature of prior years
has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention
to the extent it was enabled and recorded in respective years.

3. In our opinion, according to information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/
provided by the Company to its directors is within the limits prescribed under Section 1597 read

with Schedule ¥ of the Act and the rules thersunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De

Partner

Membership No. 060578
UDIN: 25060378BMMLLDZ2767

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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ANNEXURE A

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN
DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ORBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= [btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143[3][i] of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by manapement and Board of Directors.

= [Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue a5 a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements,

including the disclesures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De

Partner

Membership No. 060578
UDIN: 25080978BMMLLDZ767

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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ANNEXURE B

TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ORBIS
FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2025

Referred to in parapraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Lepal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Orbis Financial Corporation Limited on
the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

i.

[a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment, investment property and relevant
details of right-of-use asseis.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment, investment property and Right-of-use assets were physically
verified by the management according to a phased programme designed to cover all items
over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of Property, plant
and equipment have been physically verified by Management during the year. No discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

[c] According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties [ other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee] as disclosed in the standalone financial statements
are held in the name of the Company. The title deeds of immovable properties aggregating to
INR 6.13 Crores [ net book value) as at March 31, 2025, are pledged with the banks and original
capies are not available with the Company. The same has been independently confirmed by the
bank to us and verified by us.

[d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment [including Right-of-use assets] and intangible assets during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(i][d) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

[e] According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
[Prohibition ] Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under clause 3(i][e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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ii.

[a] The Company is involved in the business of rendering services and does not hold any inventory.
Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(ii][a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

[b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. G
crores rupees, in apgregate from Banks, on the basis of security of current assets. Based on the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the Standalone financial statements,
quarterly returns/statements filed with such Banks are in agreement with the books of accounts
of the Company. Refer note 48 [ix) to the Standalone financial statements.

Further, during any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits from financial institutions, on the basis of security of current assets.

il

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, or provided any guarantee or security, or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(iii] of the Order are not applicable 1o
the Company.

iv.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 1B6 of the Act, are
applicable. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3[iv] of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

Y.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning
of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the
provisions stated under clause 3[v] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi.

The provisions of sub-Section [1] of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the services
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3[vi] of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

i

[a] According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, in our
opinion, undisputed statutory dues including poods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by
the Company with appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. No undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

[b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
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details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause [a] above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2025, on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Income Tax

Act, 1961 Income Tax 0.13 il AY 2014-2015 CIT (Appeals)

wiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transaction which are not

accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

year in Income-tax Assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the provisions stated

under clause 3(viii] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

.

[a] Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

[b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

fc) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, no money was
raised by way of term loans. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3{ix)(c] of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

[d] According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the
Company.

{e] According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
Standalone financizal statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from an any entity or person on account of or ta meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

[F] According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3{ix}(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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X.

[2a] Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer [including debt
instruments ] during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3[x]}{a] of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

[b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures [ fully, partly, or optionally convertible] during
the year. Accordingly, the requirements to report under clause 3[x][b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Xi.

[a] Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of our audit.

(b) During the year, no report under Section 143[ 12) of the Act, has been filed by secretarial auditor
or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

[c] Asrepresented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xi)[c] of the
Order is not applicable to Company.

xii.
The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated under paragraph 3[xii][a] to
[c] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Kiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.
[a) Inouropinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

[b] We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of our audit
report, for the period under audit.

xv.
According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, the
provisions stated under clause 3[xv] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xvi.

[a] The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 [A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingiy, the provisions stated under clause 3[xvi][a] of the Order are not
applicable to the Companuy.

[b) The Company is not engaped in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3[xvi][b) of the Drder are not applicable
to the Company.

f{c] The Company is net a Core investment Company [CIC] as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3[xvi][c] of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

[d] According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group [as defined in the Core
Investment Companies [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 ) does not have any Core Investment
Company (as part of its group). Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3[xvi)[d] of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii.

Based on the overall review of Standalone financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated under clause 3[xvii] of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

wwiii.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3[xviii] of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xix.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
[as disclesed in note 30 to the Standalone financial statements), apeing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the Standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharped by the Company as and when they fall due.

0.

[a] Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a Fund as specified in Schedule VI of the Act as disclosed in note 44 to the
Standalone financial statements.
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[b) There are no ongoing projects and accordingly reporting under Clause 3[xx](b] of the Order is not
applicable to the Companuy.

0.

The reporting under clause 3[xxi] of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said Clause has been included in the
report.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAlI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De

Partner

Membership No.060978

UDIN: 25060978BMMLLD 2767

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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ANNEXURE C

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ORBIS
FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2025

Referred to in paragraph 2(g] under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Orbis
Financial Corporation Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements
of Orbis Financial Corporation Limited [ “the Company”] as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls with reference to Standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal control with reference to Standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidanece Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting [the “Guidance
Note”] issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ['ICAI’).

Management's and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Standalene
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the buidance Note issued by ICAL These responsibilities include

the desipn, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection

of frauds and errors, the accuraey and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143[10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intermal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone financial statementsis a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference
to Standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that [1] pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; [ 2] provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of manapement and
directors of the Company; and [ 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acguisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the Standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper manapement averride
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
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financial statements 1o future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to Standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForMS KA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De

Partner

Membership No. 060578
UDIN: 25060378BMMLLDOZ2767

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

Property, plant and equipment 3 1451 12.75
Fight-ofuse serem 34 E.10, 10.08
lnwestrnent property & - 2:61
Intangible sssets T 5.45 108
Imtsngible spc=tz under developrment 8 D38 Q.05
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Non-current tax azse=is [mes} 15 [=} 053 049
Otives non-cument pssets 1% ] a2y
Total Non-current assets 103.95 1 106.47
i .
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_Investments 3 28ET 36.43
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Eank balences other than cush and cash equivalents i3 359057 257845
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Current teoc mzzets st 15[k - 374
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Total current asseis 418245 4,E7203
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__ Dther equity 12 TET43 351.05
Total equity 38765 55281
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Financial Eabilities
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Provizions 18 2:E5] 171
Total non-current lEabilities 1033 1083
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i} Total outstanding du=s of micro enterprises.and small =nterprises 0.53 Q5T
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Dither financal fisbilities 21 3236.40 421162
DOther current lisbilities 132 gog) 2E5
Prowizians 19 | 281
Curant s lishifitiaz inat) 5By | 459 E—
Total current Habiimas 35444 4323488
Total equity and Habdlities A, 8642 A,978.50
The sccompenying notes form an integre] part of the simndslons Bnancial tstemeniz: 1-43

Az per our report of sven date
For M S K A & Associates
Chartersd Accountants

Frmn Registration Mot 105047W

Sripama De

Partrmer

Membership Mo 050978
Plac= Gurugram

Dhate: 5 September 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Orbis Financlal Corporation Limited

Atul Gupta
Executive Chairman
Ditd Mo 05280385
Place: Dehradun
Dats: 5 Sepremiber
2025

CIN: UET 1 20HR2005PLCD36G52
Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachi Khanna
Meanagimg Director and CEQ Chief Finandal Company Sscretary
CiM Mo DBES 1670 Officer M.Mo AZ7423
Place: Murmnibai Place: Gurugram Plac= Gurugram
Dac= 3 September 2025 Dgte: 5 September  Dote: 5 September
2025 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

Income |
Revenus from operations = | 55138 22012
R a— o | == e
554.45 426.39
Expenses |
Employee benefits expense = 8739 7802
Finance costs | 0854 5481
Depreciation and amaortization expense % | 5.69 | 358
Other expenzas 28 0128 D508
282.90 14239
Profit before tax 271.55 184.00
o |
Tax expanse |
Currenttax 29 7021 | 4732
ﬁ.djusunem uftm-‘.re.l.l;'t-ing 1o sarlier YEATS 2'5' .10 -EJJ].ZS
Dieferred tax {credit) 28 | 1087} (270)
Total tax expense 69.44 4510
|
Profit for the year L) . ]
[ thnl:wlﬁ not be :r;cln;;iﬁé;f subsequenthy to profit or loss [
Re-measurement of net defined beneht obligation [refer Note 32(B7] [ (0.10) | {007
Income taxeffect (referNote2) | 003 ] o2
Other comprahensive income for the year, net of tax | (0.07) | (0.05)
[
'Tmlcmmmhmimmm 202.04 | 138.85
Earnings per equity share of face value INR 10/- each 31 |
Basic =arnings per thare [ 1645 | 1195
' Diluted E;'lngs per share 1552 1113
The sccompanying notes formanintegral part of the standelone finandal statements. 148
Az per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Orbils Financlal Corporation Limited
For M 5 K A & Associates CIN- U67 120HR2005PLO036952
Chartered Accountants
Frmn Registration No.: 105047W
Sripama De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachl Khanna
Partrier Executive Chairman Managing Director and CEQ Chief Financial Company Sscretarny
Wembership Mo DE0E7E DN Mo DD523086 LM MNo- DES16709 Officer M.Mo. AZT428
Place: Gurugram Flace: Dehradun Place Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Diates 5 September 20235 Date: 5 Seprember Date 5 September 20235 Diate: 5 September  Date- 3 September
2025 2025 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

Equity shares of INRK 10 each izsued, subscribed ond fully paid up

DOpening 121,730,160 12173
_Add: szusd during the year 2491100 240
Closing 124,231,260 124.22

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Opening 113.633,004 113463
Add: 1szusd during the vear 8,097,156 810
Closing 121,730,160 121.73

Balance as at 1 April 2024 25442 B33 2399 009 in.64) | 561.08
Profit for the year -l 202m : 5 -| 2021
Dividend paid -1 239 - - -| (1234
Shars bassd paymants - B 13.82 - -l 1389
Arnount tranzferred on 515 | - (5.15} - - -
exercise of stodk aptions | |
e T et it B : : E
Amount transferred on lapze - i k] {0o02) o1 - -
of stock options
Premium on issus of equity 266 : - - - - 264
shares |
Other comprzhensive incoms o - - - {0.07) : {007}
Balance as at 31 March 2025 262.23 | AT3.00 3za o.10 0.71) | 767.43

Balonce as at 1 April 2023 157.10| 15235 347 : D59} | 31233
Profit for the year - 133890 - - -| 13830
Dividend paid | | B = : -} foa0)
Share based payments A B 2413 = -| 2418
Amount transferred on ED; - (2500 - - -
exercise of stockoptions | il [ | 1 I
Amourt tranzferred on lapze - 107 (1.6} 009! - -
of stock options
Premium on issue of equity | 9482 | . - = -| pamz
shares
Other comprehensive income s = z -1 (p:05)| (0.05)
Balanceasat31 March2024 | 254.42| 28322 2399 0.0 {0.64) | 561.08

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standslone financial statements. 148

Az per our report of even dote
For M 5 K A & Assoclates
Chartzred &ccountants

Frm Registration Mo-T03047W

Sripama De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal
Partrier Executive Chaitman Managing Director and CEQ
Membership No. 060078 DN Mo 005228086 DM Moo DESTETODR
Place: Gurugram Place: Dehradan Place: Mumibai
Date: 5§ September 2025 Date: 5 Seprember Dates 5 Septamber 2025
025
111

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of Orbis Finandal Corporation Limited
TN UETT120HRI0D5PLCO36052

Ashu Aggarwal Prachl Khanna
Chief Financial Company Secretary
Officer MWLM A27428
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 5 September  Date: 5 September
2025 2025
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

Cash flows from operating activitles

Frafit before tan 27135 3400
Fs.d.j.u=h'r'.ﬁ1'|: for
_ Deprecietion and emartization expenze 282 355
Share bezed pmments 1358 2408
Finance costs 3854 6451
Gmin on lease cancellation — 12.13}
Inozme from mutsel fund investments designated at PYFTPL 3oy 576
Interest on cecurity depazits ot amortioed cost i007] 10.07]
Rental income B3] @141

Loz on discard =nc sale of progerty, plant ens equipment i n3e 2
Profit Dr.'| sele= ofin =h'r;e1'rt prop=riy [u35) -
Unresfizzd foreign exchange fluctuetion gam (net! [028) .28
Operating profit before working capital changes 38736 27019
Changes In working capital
o [reyencnlfncrelsel in trde popabile: 2Pl pean
fincrmeze! in trads receivables I3B.45) 3313}
IncremseiDiecreaze]l in other current limbifities S50 .47
 incresss iﬁr;';n.qum 1.11 Es
_{Demase} in other Gnenciel labdtie: B2 2931711
_ Decresse in other finenciel assew 3281 11383
ﬂnmuigj-."DHr\em o other non cumrent/current assets 2971 103
lpcome tex paid 6183 [5237]
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchese of property. plant snd equipment, intorigiivle and intengible sssets under development iiazm {2553
Proceeds from sale of property. plent and equipment oLl :
Proceeds from in Mutoel funds [net] - 5104
 Procssds from cale of investmant properne 350 =
Rentelincome B 0.13 D14
_ lirvvastmeant made] in Equity Share Capital & {2.01]
Froceeds from cale of Government Securnties 1563 13.30
__ Frecesds from sale of bonds s it 352
et cash flows generated from investing activities (B 459 6554
Cﬂ:'luﬁ'mﬁhﬂngm
Proceeds from issuance of egquity shere capitel - 3 18281
Inferest paia 1ETS50) 163,631
Frincipal paymant on jesse Dakilites } _(245) (2280
Diwidend paid 2345 8.1}
Net cash flows (used Inj/'generated from financing activitles (O} [107.15) 171.70
Met (deareasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) RILI5) 115.83
_ Cash snd cesh equivalens st the beginning of the vear 33577 4E0E2
Cash and cash eguivalenss at the end of the year 35462 50677

‘Cash and cash equivalents comprise (refer note 12)

Ealamcss with banks ! e p—

O current scoownts aa.1g 50.83
. Fixed degosits with original meturity of iess then 3 mantes 28643 34354
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year IB4.62 506,77
Notes

I, The Srandelooe Stetement of Cazh Flows has been prepored in sccordance with thee ‘indirect Bethod”set out in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™
notified under the section 133 of the Ack resd together with Buls 2 of the Campaniez (Indian Accounting Standard) Roles, 20135
ii. Fegures in bracket indicats cash outfiow.

The sccompanying notes form en integrel part of the sendalone fnenciel stetementz. 1-i&

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Orbis Finandlal Corporation Limited

ForM 5 K A & Assoclates CiN: UGT 120HR005PLC036852

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No-105047W

Sripamma De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachi Khanna

Partner Executive Chaiman Managing Directorand CEQ Chisf Financial Company Secretany

Membership Mo DA0OTE DN Mo 0538085 Dl Mo 08516709 Officer M Mo 827428

Place Gurugram Place Dehradun Place: Murmibai Place: Gurugram Place= Gurugram

Date: 5 September 2025 Date: 5 Septamber Date 5 Septemmber 2025 Date: 5 September  Date: 5-September
2025 2025 2025
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
Orbis Financial Corpomtion Limited (“hereinafter refarred to as “OFCL" or the *Company”) is & public imited Company
domiciled in India and incorporated on 28 November 2005 having CIN U67 T20HRZ00SPLCO36952 and registered office
at 4A Dous Technopolis Golf Club Road Sector 54 Gurgaon 122002 Haryana. The Company is registerad with Securities
and Exchange Board of india (SEBI) as a Custodian of Securities and is engaged into depository, clearing and settlement,
fund accounting, registrar and transfer agent services and reporting services.

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Matzrial accounting pelicies adopted by the Company are as under:

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Standalone Financial Statements
{a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Compani=s Act, 3013 {the “Act”] read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 sz amended from time to tims and presentation requirements of
Scheduls Ul {Division Il) to the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Standalone Financial Statements.
Accounting policies have been consistently applisd to all the years presented except whers a newly issued
sccounting standard iz initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the sccounting policy hitherto in use.

(b} Basis of measurament
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis,
except for the following material t=ms that howe been measorad at fair valus as required by relevant Ind A5:
il Certnin financial azsets and liabilities menasured ot fair valus (refer accounting policy 213 on financial
instruments)

il Share based payment transactions (refer accounting policy 2.14(c) on Share-bas=d payments)

All assets and linbilities haws been dassified az current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle
snd other criteria st out in the Scheduls i to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and
the time between the rendering of service and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained itz opemating cycle as twelve months for the purpoze of current and non current classification of
sssets and linbilities.

The Stendaione Financial Statements wers authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the board
of directors on 05 September 2025,

[€) Use of estimates

The preparation of Standalons Financial Statemants in conformity with Ind AS reguires the Management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported emount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance
Shezt date, repartad amount of revenus and expences for the year and dizclosures of contingent fabilitizz
o= at the Balance Sheet dore. The estimates and assumptions wsed in the accompenying Standalone Financial
Statements are based upan the Management’s svaluation of the relevant facts and dircumstances as at the
datz of the Stendalons Financial Statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying azsumptions are reviewed on a periodic bazis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are
recognized in the year in which the sstimates are revised and in any future yesrs affected. Refer note 3 for
detailed disclosure on estimates and judgments.

2.2 Property, plant and eguipment

Froperty, plantand eguipment are stafed at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
lozses {if anyl. Historical cost indudes expenditura thet s directhy sttributable to the scquisition of the items:
Subsequent costs are included in the azsets carrying amount or recognized as o separate asset, os apprapriats, anly
when it is probable that future economic benehis assodated with the item will flow to the Compsany and the cost
of the item can be measured relinbly. The carrying amount of amy component accounted for as 8 separate astet iz
deracognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Standalone Statemant of Profit and
Loss during the yearinwhich they ars incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquizition of property. piant and equipment outstanding at sach balance sheet date
is classified as capital sdvances under other non-current assets and the cost of Property. plant and equipment not
ready for use before year end are disclosed under'Capital work-in-progress!

Depreciation methods and estimated usaful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basiz on straight-line method using
the wseful lives of the azsets estimated by management The useful lives of azsets are az follows:
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

Property, plant and squipment Usaful Life
Leasehiold improvement Shorter of the asset’s uzeful lifz and theirleass tzrm
Improvemeants to Buildings 30 years
Buildings ﬁl}-!.reurs
Furniture and Fisdtures Il}-!;reurs
ehicles BI;P.EU.FE
Office Equipment 5 years
Plant and equipment:
-Servers 6 years
-End wser dewvices such ez, desktops; laptops etc. 3 years

Depreciation on sele/deduction from property, plant and eguipment is provided up to the dats preceding the date
of zale, deduction az the cose may be. Gains and loszes on dizposals are determined by comparing procesds with
carmying amount. Losses arising on retirement or gains/ losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is recagnized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which such retirement or disposal takes
placa.

Depreciation methods, useful fives and residual valuses are reviewed pericdically at 2ach financdial y=ar 2nd and
odjusted prozpectively, as appropriate

1.3 Investment property
Invéstmant property are measured initially at cost, including tranzaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stoted ot cost less accumulasted depreciation and sccumulated impaimment losses, if
BITY.
The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are regquired to-be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciatss them separstely bazed on their spedfic useful lhves. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in the Standelone Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
The Company, based on technical azsessment made by technical expert and manegement estimate, depreciates
the building over estimated wseful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Companizs Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the pericd over which the assets are likely to be used.
The Company depreciatas building componznt of investmeant property over 30 years from the date of original
purchase.
Though the Company measures investment proparty using cost based measuremzant; the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair valuss are determined based on feedback received from the markst for
similar properties.
Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been dispozed of or when they are permanently
withdrewn from use and no future economic bensht = expected from their disposal. The difference betwean the
net disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the assst is recognized in the Standalone Statsment of Profit and
Laoss in the period of derecognition.

2.4 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at acguisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumuiated impeirment
losses {if any).

The Company amortizes intangible nssets over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Irvtangible assets Useful Lifs
Computer Software |5 yEars
Intangible azzsets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenevér there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amaortization method for an intangible assst with o finite
useful [ife are reviewed ot least ot sach financial year end.

2.5 Foredgn Currency Transactions
{al Functional and presentation currency

Itemiz included in the Standalons Financial Statements are measured wzing the curency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’]. The Standalone Financial
Statements are presented in Indian rupes (INR], which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

{b) Transactions amdd balances

On initial recognition, all foregign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the forsign currency amount
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

the exchangs mte betwesn the functional currsncy and the foreign currency et the date of the transaction.
Gnins/losses arising out of fluctuation in forzign exchange mte benwseen the transaction date and zettlement
dete are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monstary azzetz and linbilities in foreign currencies are restated at the yeer end at the exichange mte pravailing
at the year end and the exchange differences are recognised in the Stendelone Stetemant of Profit and Loss:

Mor-maonetary items that are measured in tarms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.6 Fair value measurement
The Company meazures financial instruments at fair values at =ach balence shest date.
Fair wvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly tranzaction
betwesn market participants at the measurement date The fair vafue messurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sl the asset or transfer the liability takes place sither:
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of o principel market, in the most adventageows market for the nsset orliability accessibls to the
Company:
The Company uses veluation technigues that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sofficient
data are availablz to messure fair value, maximizing the uze of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
uze of unobservablz inputs. The Companys management determinegs the policies and procedures for fair valus
meazurement such az derivative instrument.
&l azzets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclozed in the Standalane Financial Statements are
cotegorized within the feir value hisrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thet is significant
to the fair value meesurement as a whole:

Leve! 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) markst prices in active marksts foridentical aszsts or liabilitizs.

Level 2 —%aluation technigues forwhich the lowest level input that ks significant 1o the fair velue measurement
is directly or indirectly observable:

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input thatiz significant to the fair value measurement
iz unobzervable.

2.7 Revenus Recognition
Rendering of services
Income comprises revenue from custody services, depository participant services, professional clearing services,
fund sccounting services and registrer and transfer agent services rendered.
Reyenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefitz will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met as dezcribed below.
The Company recognize revenue from contracts with customers based on 8 comprehensive assessment model as set
outin ind 45 115 -“Revenue from contract with customers! The Company identifies contracts with customers and itz
performance obligetion under the contract. determines the tansaction price and its allocstion o the performance
obligation in the contract and recognises revenue only onzatisfactony completion of performance obligations.
Revenue iz measzured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ampunts disclosed as revenus
are net of indirect taxes, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties and 7= not
recognized in instances where there iz uncertainty with regard to ultimate collection. In such cazes revenue iz
recognized on reasonable certainty of collection.

Other Operating Revenue

Interest Income is recognised, as other operating revenue since the same iz mcidentsl to operations of business,
on o basiz of effective interest rate (EIR] method as s=t out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

Income from sals of investment is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss on trede dete basis.

1.8 Taxes

Tex expenss for the year, comprizes of current tax and deferrad tax

(gl Currenttax
Current tax aszetz and liabilities are measured st the amount expacted to be recovered or peid to the texation
authoritizz The taxrates and tex laws vsed to compute the amount ars thoss that are enacted or substantively
enscted, st the year end dote. Current tax assets and tax finbilities are offset where the entity has s legally
enforceable right to offzet and intends either to settle on & net basiz. or to realize the aszet and ssttie the
linbility simultansouszky.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

{b) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax iz provided in full, using the balance shest approsch, on temporary differances arising
between the tax bases of azsets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in Standalone Financial Statemernts.
Deferrad income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or fability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the tims of the trensaction affecis neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit {tax loss). Deferred income tex is determined wsing tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the related deferrad
income tax assat i realised or the deferred income ta liabilicy iz settled.

Deferrad tex aszets are recognised for all daductible temparary differences and unused tax loszez only if itiz
probable that future taxable amounts will b= ovailable to utilize thoss temporary differences and loszes.
Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respsct to situations inwhich spplicablze
tex regulation is subject to interpretation. |t establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of smounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 8 legally enforceable right to offset current tax aszets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the seme taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in Smndalone Statement of Profit and Loss; except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehansive income (OC1} or directly in equity. In thiz caze, the tax iz also
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectivel.

29 Leasas
As a lessee

The Company® lease aszet classes primarily consist of leazes for Building. The Company assessazwhether a contract
contains a lease, ot inception of o contract A contract is; or conteins. a fease if the contract convey the right to
control the use of an identified asset fora period of tims in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to' control the use of an identified asset. the Company asseszes whether: {i] the contract imvolves
the uze of an identified aszet (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic bensfits from use of the aszst
through the period of the leaze and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement ofthe leass, the Compeny recognizes a right-of-uze asset {"ROU") and a corresponding
lemse liability for all lease arrangemants in which it iz a less=e, except for leszes with a term of twelve months or less
ishort-term leaszes} snd low value leases. For these short-term and low value feases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an opsrating sxpense on a straight-line basiz over the term of the leass.

Leaze finbility and ROU azset havs been separatzly presented in the Standalone Balance Sheet and lzaze payments
heve been classified as financing cash flows.

Asa Lessor

Leazes for which the Company is a lezsor is clazzified 8z a finance or operating leass. Whenaver the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesses, the contract is classified as o finance leass.
All other lemz=s are classified as opermting leasss.

2.10 Impalirment of non-financial assets

The Companyass=sses at each year end whether thers is any objective evidence that a non finandial asset ora group
of non financial assets is impaired. If any soch indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
smount and the amount of impairment loss.

An impeirment loss is calculated as the difference betweean an ass=t’s carrying amount and recoverable amount.
Losses are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowsncz account. When the
Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written
aff If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decresses and the decrenze can be related objectively to an
event ooourring after the impairmant was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss iz reversed
through Standalone Statement of Profitand Loss.

The recoverabls amount of an asset or cesh-generating unit (as defined below! is the greater of its value n uze
and its fair value less costs 1o sell In assessing valus in uss, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present values uzing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asssssments of the time value of money and
the rizks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped togetherinto the smallest
group of asssts that gensrates cash in flows from continuing uze thatere largely independ=nt of the cash inflows of
other azs=ts or groups of assets {the “cazh-gznerating unit”).

2.11 Provisions and contingent liabilliles
Provisions are recognized when there is o present obligation as & result of & past event, it iz probable that anoutflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there iz & r=linble estimats
of the smount of the obligation. Provisions are measurad at the best estimate of the expenditure required to s=ttle
the present obligation at the Balance Sheet data
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

If the sffect of the time valus of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appraprinte, the risks specific to the liabifity. When dizcounting is wsed, the incressze in the provision
du= to the paszage of time iz recognized as a finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there iz 8 possible abligation arising from past events; the existance of
which will b= confirmed only by the ocourrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain futurs events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises froem past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or o relinble estimats of the amount cannot be made.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Standalone Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term
depaosits net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of three months orfess, which ars subject to sninsignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Standalone Statermant of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand; cash
at-banks and short-term deposits net of bank overdrafe

2.13 Financial instruments

A fnancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a inancial asset of one entity and a financial fiability or equity
instrument of another entity.
{al Financial assets
(1} Initial recognition and maasureament
At initial recagnition, financial asset is measured at itz fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried ot fair value through profit or loss are expensad
im Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss:

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing compaonent are maazured at transaction price
&5 perlnd AS115.

(il Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
o} atamortized cost; or
b} atfair value through other comprehensive iIncome; or
c} ot foir value through profit or loss.

The clazsification depends on the entitys business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractunl terms of the cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractusl cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principel and interest are measured at samortized cost.

Fairvalus through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH): Assets thet are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for sefling the finandal assets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and mtarest, are meassured at fair valoz through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH.
Movemsnts in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financisl asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized i @O is reclazsified from egquity to Standalone Statement of Profit end Loss and
recognized in other gains/ (lossash

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do mot meet the critena for amortized cost or FYTOC!
ar= measured at fair valus through profit orloss.

Equity instruments: All eguity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent considerstion recognised by an scquirer
in'a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies ere dazsified as at FVTPL For all other equity
instruments, the Company mey makes an imrevocable slection to present in other comprehenzive income
subsequent changss in the fairvalue. The Comipany makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument
basiz The classification is mads on inttial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument &z at FVTOCL, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There &= no recycling of the smounts from
0 to Standelone Statemant of Profit and Loss. even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized im the Standalons Statement of Profit and Loss.

(lil} Impailrment of Ainandal assets
in accordance with Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss [ECL)
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maodel for messurement and recognition of impairment loss on financizl assets thet are measured at

amortized cost and FYTOCOL

The Company follows simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss sllowance on trade

receivablez. The application of simplifizd approach does nat reguire the Company to track changes in

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment lozs allowance based on lifetime ECL st each reporting date,

right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment losz on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that

whethar there has been & significant increass in the credit rizk since initial recognition. I credit risk hasz

not increased significantly, 12 month ECL iz us=d to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk

has increazed significantly, [ifetime ECL iz used. if in subsequsnt years, cradit quality of the instrument

improves such that thars is no lenger a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the

entity reverts to recognizing impairment lozs allowance based on 12 month ECL

Life time ECLs are the sxpected credit losses resulting from all possible default svents over the expectad

life-of & financial instrument The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default

avents that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference betwesn oll contractusl cash flows that are dus to the Company in accordance with

the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {ie. all shortfalls); discounted at the

original EIR. When estimating the cash flows. an entity is required to consider all contractual terms: of

the financial instrument (including prepaymant, extension stc) over the expected life of the financial

instrument Howsver, in rars cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated

reliably, then the sntity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

Imgeneral, it iz presumed that credit rick has significently increased since initial recognition if the paymenz

iz mare than 30 deys past dus.

ECL impeirment loss allowance {or reversal] recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense in

the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. In Standalone Balance Sheet ECL for financial asssts measurad

ot amortized cost is presented as anallowsnce, e, as an integral part of the messurement of thoss assets in

the Standalone Balance Sheet The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the assst mests write

off criteria, the Company does not redics impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv] Derecognition of financial assets

A financial mssst is derscognized only when

a} the rights to raceive cash flows from the fnancial aszet have expirad

b} the rights to receive cash ficws from the financial asset is transferred or retains the contractual rights
to receive the cazh flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual ebligetion to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients.

Whers the financial azsetiz tramsferred then in that case financial aszet iz derecognizad only if subztantially

all rizk= and rewards-of ownzership of the financiol asset is transferred. Where the entity has not transferrsd
substantiolly all ricks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial assetis not derecognized.

(b} Fmancial Habllities

([} Initial recognition and measurement
Financial linbilities are classified, at initial recognition. as inancial linkilities at fair value through profit or
lzss and at amortized cost, as appropriaie
All financial [inbilities are recognized initially ot fair velue and, in the caze of borrowings and payables; nat
of directly sttributable transaction costs.

{ll} Subsegquent measurement
The measurement of financial lisbilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial lisbilities at fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities dezignated upon inftial recognition at fair valos through profit and loss are designated

s such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satished. Changas in fair
valus of such lisbility are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and bormowings are subsequently measured ot amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when
the linbilitizs are derecognized as well as through the EIR smortization process. Amortized costis calouleted

by taking into account any discount or premium onacquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is intluded sz Ainance costs in the Standalons Statement of Profit and Loss.

{lil} Derecognition
& financial fiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discherged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an exizting lisbility are substantielly modified, such an exchange or
modification is trested as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new linbility:
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The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Standalens Statement of Profit and
Loss as finance costs.

{c) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial aszets and liabilities are offset and the net samount is reported in the Standalons Balance Shestwhere
there iz a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized smounts and thers is an intention to settle ona
nat basizs or raalize the azs=t and s=ttle the liability simultaneoushy: The legally enforczable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Employee benefit obligations
{al Short-term obligations

Lisbilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefitz that are expected to be sertled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are recognized
in respect of employes’s services up to the end of the yeor and are measured ot the amounts expected w be
paid when the linbilities are setited. The linbilitizs are presented a5 current employes beneht obligations in the
Standalone Balance Sheet
{b} Other long-term employee beneofit obligations
(I} Defined contribution plan
Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the requlatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations: Such benefits are dassifted as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry eny further obligations, apart from the contributions made on 8 menthly basis
which ara charged to the Standalone Statement of Prafit and Loss.
Employess State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employess state insurance scheme is mads
to the regulatory suthorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benzfits are classified
oz Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made ona monthly basis which are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profitand Loss.

(i} Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity. 2 defined benefit plan (the ‘Gratuity Plan”] covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employess ot retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of
an amount bazed on the respactive employes salary. The Company’ liability is actusrially determined
{uzing the Projected Unit Credit method) st the end of each year. Actuarial loszes/gains are recognized in
the other comprehensive income in the year in which they ariss.

Compensated Abszences: Accumulated compenszated absences. which sre expectsd to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the yeorare treated asshort term employse benefit obligations.
The cbligation towards the zame is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated
sbzences a= the sadditional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unuzed entitlerment as at the
yearend.

Accumulated compenzated absences, which are expectsd ta be ovailed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the year end are treated os long term employes bensfit obligations. The Company’s liability is
actuarially determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) st the end of each year. Actuarial losses/
geins are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss inthe year in which they arize.
Leaves under such benefit plans can be encashed anly on dizcontinuation of zervice by employés.
{e} Share-based payments
Employees (induding senjor exscutives] of the Company receive remunemation in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employsss render services sz consideration for equity instruments (equity-settied
transactions). The cost of equity-zettled transactions is- determined by the fair value at the date when the grant
iz made using an appropriste valuation model.
That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (5BP] ressrve
in equity, over the period in which the performance andfor service conditions are fulfilied in employse
benefitz expensze using gradad vesting methad. The cumulative expenze recognised for sguity-settled
tranzactions ot ssch reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired end the Companies’ best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimataly
vest. The Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that pericd and is recognized in
employse benefits expense
Mo expense iz recognised for awards that do not uftimeately vest because non-market performance and/
or service conditions have not besn met Where awards includs 2 market or non-vesting condition, the
tranzactions ore treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition & satisfied,
provided thet all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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The dilutive efect of cutstanding exercisable options is reflected a5 additional share dilution in the computation
of diluted 2arnings perzhare.

2.15 Contributed equity
Egquity shares are classified as eguity share capital

Incremental costs directly attributabie to the iszus of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the procseds.

2.16 Eamnings Per Equity Share (EP5)

Basicearmnings pershare iz calculated by dividing the net profitor loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted averags number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considersd in ascertaining
the Companys sarnings per shars is the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any
attributable tax thereto for the year. The weighted average number of =quity shares outstanding during the yearand
for all the years prezented iz adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding. without a coresponding change in resources.
For the purposz of calculating diluted zarmings per zhare, the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weightsd everage number of shares cutstanding during the year iz adjusted forthe effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Corporate social responsibility (C5R)

The Company discharges its C5R obligation through contribution to the funds as specified in Schedule Vil o the Act
These contributions/ sxpenditure are recognized in Standalone Statement of Profitand Loss on payment basis and
provision is made against unspent amourt, if any.

2.18 Segment reporting

The Compeny identifies segment basis the intemal organization and managemsant structure. The operating
segments ars the segments for which zeparafe financial informetion is evailable and for which operating results are
ragularly reviewed by Chief Dp=erating Decizion Makers {CODM] in deciding allocation of resources and aszezzing
performance.

Shyamsunder Agarwal, Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who reviews the gperations of the Company az
one operating segment. The Company opemates in a single business segmentand is primarily engeged into custody,
clearing and settlement, depository, fund accounting, registrar and share transfer agency and reporting services.

2.19 Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in Standalone Fnancial Stetements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest crores as
per requirement of Schadule 1l of the Act, unless otherwise stated.

3  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Standalons Financiel Statements requires Meanagement to maoke judgments; estimates and
aszumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the amounts reported in the finandal statements.
Actual results may differ from theze estimates. These estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evalusted
and are bazed on historical experience and other factors, mcluding expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Estimates and assumptions

The Company based its assumptions and =stimates on parameters available when the Standalone Financial
Statsments wers prepared. Existing drcumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arizing thatare beyond the control of the Compeny. Such changes
arz reflacted in the assumption: when they occur. It is reasonably pozzible, based on exizting knowlaedgs, that
outcomes within the next financiel year that are different from assumptions could reguirs @ material edjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or fability affected as disclozed below.
{al Share-based payments
Estimating fair valus for share-bazed payment transactions reguires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which iz dependent on the terms= and conditions of the grant. Thiz estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valustion model including the expected life of the share

option. volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and modsels used
for estimating fair valus for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Not= 33,

{b) Taxes
Deferred to azsets and linbilities are recognizsd for deductible temporary differences and unused tax fosses
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for which there iz probability of utilization ageinst the future taxable profit. The Company uses judgemsnt to
determing the amount of deferred tax azset that can be recognised, besed upan the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits and business developments Refer note 20.

(€} Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined beneft plans such as gratuity are determined using actuerial valustions: An actuarial
valuation invobves making various assumptions: that may differ from actusl developments in the futurs:
These includs the determination of the discount mte, future salary increases and mortality rates. Dus to the
complexities involved in the valuastion and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in thete aszumptions. All azsumptions are reviewed at sach year end.

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the markst
yietds mvailable on government bonds at the accounting date with & term that matches that of liebilities. Salary
increase rete takes into acoount of inflation, senigrity; promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.
Refer note 32

{d} Impairment of non-financial asseis

The Company azsesses at eech reporting date whether there iz an indication that an azset may be impaired. If
any indication exists; or when annual impairment testing for an ass=t is required, the Company estimates the
azzets recoverable amount.

An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) nat selling price and
its value-in-use. Recoverable amownt is determined for an individual ass=t, unless the assst does not gensrate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other aszets or groups of assets. Where the camying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount

The Company basss itz impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared zeparmtely for sach of the Compeny's cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated These budgets and forecast calculations are genemlly covering o period of five years. For longer
periods, a long term growth rate is calculsted and appliad to projectad future cazh flows after the fifth year. To
estimate cazh flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budoets/ forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subzequent years,
unless an increasing rate con be justified. In any case. this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market
in which the azset is used.

(e} Impalrment of financlal assets

Th= Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected oredit risk associated with its assets carried
st amortized cost The impaimment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increasein credit risk. Refer note 38,

4  New and amended standards Issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affmirs ("MCA") notifies new standerds or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standsrds} Rules ms fEsued from time to fime. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA
haz not notified any new standards or smendments to the exizsting standards applicablz to the Company.
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

the, tions 31 March | 31 March |31 March

| 025| HES 2024

Owned assets Y ¢ [ S— N T i S
Improveaments to 1.69 | 1.63 103 229 028 023 0.28 033 2046 141
buildings*¢ | | | | '

E_ui!-diﬂgs' | 6.98| 081 - J379] 07 0.a5) - 0.86 i 6.93 | 627
Plant and 2 070 -1 338 148 D61 - 200 | 120 1.20
equipment | | | ! ! 1 | |

Furmiture and 068 038 Q.08 085 0o 0.07 0048 813} 082 058
fiztures | | | | 1 | 1

Offics Equipment | 1.07 030] - I A =
Yehicles 337 WG58 003 32392 074 0.48 oo 1.27 | 2.7 263
Total | t6a7[ a38] 115] 1970 372] 180] o033 518] 1451 w27s

Owned assats | | | | , ! |

Improvaments to 103| 066 -1 1sg] o 007 - 028 1.41 0.82
buildings™# i [ | AN (N | S | o' l 1 .
Buildings® 6.98 | -| -| 688] 057 014 - 0.71 | 6.27 | 641
Plantand 162 105 | 2s8| toa| o044 = 1.48| 120 0.59
=quipment . ; . . . | ' |

Eurniture and 020 o048 -l nes| o03] o7 = 10| 058 017
fiztures d | ! | . 1 . | =
OfficeEquipment | 058| ©048| -1 107| 022| 019] = 041 .65 035
Vehicles | 1.79] 158 -{ 337| 048| 026 = 0.74| .63 1.31
Total_ | 1221 a26] [ 1647| 255 117 | 372] 1275] 966

*Includes net block of iImprovements to Buildings'and ‘Buildings’ of INR 1.46 (31 March 2024: INR 1.41) and INR 6.13 (31
March 2024: INR 6.27) respectively, which are mortgaged towards overdraft facility availed by the Company.

# Includes lzasehold improvements.

Refer nota 43{e) for dizclosurs an contrmctunl commitmznts rzlated to acquisition of Proparty, plant and equipment:

SA RIGHT-OF-USE {ROU} ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILTIES
(Ajlia] Changes In the carrying value of Right-of-use (ROU) assets

===

“m v *+ . -

Bulding | 1244 | .| 12as] 236 198]  -[ 43s] aie| 1008
Total | 12.44 -| 1244 236 .88 - 4.34 8.10| 10.08

Asast| Asat| Forthe| Deduc
31| 1Apeil year tions

March| 2023
2024 |
‘Building | 14.19| | 175| 1284 1s2] 200] 126 236| 1008|1257
Total | 1419 - 135 1284 162] 200 126 236 10.08] 1257
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Lallib) Chulg_es In the Leasa liabilities

Balanceas at 1 April 2023 1242
Addition -
Less: Lease payments 248
Lesz: Deductions 053
Add: Interest expense 1.18
Balance as at 31 March 2024 10.54
Addition -
Less: Lease payments 246
Add: Interest expenze 1.04
Balance as at 31 March 2025 9.12

{ii} Break-up of current and non-current lease Habililties

Zurpein Losse ki 165 ) 142

Non-current Lesse Liabilities 748 012
(il Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Less than one year 252 245

One to five years 7.55 | 252

More than five years 172 281

Total 11.79 | 14.25
livl Amounts recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Interest on Lease Lishilities {refer not= 26} 1.04 | 1.18

Amaortization on Right-of-Uss assets (refer note 27) 'I.E'ﬂi 2.00

Rent expanses (refer note 28} 0.96 | o4z
i+l Amounts recognised in Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

Fowi cashinutfion for leanes e 244

(B} TheCompany hasapplied the short-term recognition exemption to its shart-term [ease of residential accommodation
and office premize. It alzo applied the leaza of low valug assets recognition exemption to leaze of warshouses and
office equipments that are considersd to be low valus. Lease payment sxemption on short-term leaze and low
yalue assets are recognised as expense amount to INR 0.37 {21 March 2024: INRO.37) and INR 058 (31 March 2024:

INR 311
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6 INVESTMENT PROPERTY Building
Cost Amount
Asat1 April 2023 257
Addition =
As at 31 March 2024 257
Addition =
Deduction (2.52)
As at 31 March 2025 ~ =

_Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April 2023 0.25
For the year 0.06
As at 21 March 2024 0.21
Far the year 0.06
Ueduietion 3zl
Asat 31 March 2025 -
Net block
As at 21 March 2025 =
As at 21 March 2024 2.61

Amount recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to investment property are
as follows:

Profit on sale of investment property 135 -
Rental income derived fram investment property 0.08 | 0.10
Direct operating expenses {including repairs and maintenance) {0.03) | 0.02)
generating rental income |

_F'-r.l:rﬁt u:'ls':r:ug from investment property before depreciation and indirect . 1.40 008
EXpenses )
Less — Depreciation LN I 0.06
Frofit arising from nvestment property 1.34| 0.02

Valuation

Description of valuation techndgues used and key Inputs to valuation on investment propearty:

Fairvalue is determined based on feedback received from the markat for similar properzies.

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

vyear

Computer Software
Tatal

1375

2.25

For| Deduc-| Asat|

k} |
March
0325

[ 3m
- 2m

thn‘tlum

As at
n
March
2025
943
0.45

Computer Software 1.50 0.75 -1 225 0.81 0.35 1.16 1.09] 0.69
Total 1.50 0.75 - .25 081 035 - 1.16 1.09 0.89
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9A

INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Intangible assets wnder development as at 31 March 2025 comprises expenditure for the development of
pment i= MR 023 {31 March 2024; INR 0.0%].

customized softwares. Total amount of Intangible assets under develo

Opening Balance 009 | 025
Add: Addition during the year 032, an
Less: Transfer during the year @.13) o271
Closing Balance 0.28 0.09

Intangible asset under development ageing schedule:

Prajects in progress

As at 31 March 2024

_Projects in progress

INVESTMENTS
Imvestment in subsidiaries

Investment In equity instruments

Face value/ | Asat31 March 2025 | Face value/ | As at 31 March 2024

value value
(MAV) as at (MAV) as at
31 March

1

[ 2024

Hmlnnlﬂ

Unguoted equity shares

Subsidiary companles carrled at
cost [fully paid up):

Orbiz Trusteezhip Services Privats
Limited {refer note 34]

INR-10 | 10,170.000 10.11 INR D

10,110,000 | 111

Orbiz Financial Services {IFSC)
Private Limited {refer nots 34)

INR10 | 10,000 om INR-TD

oo 001

Total

10.12

10.12
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9B Other investmeants

Face valua/ Asat 31 March 2025 | Face value/| As at 31 March 2024

Met asset [ re—— Nos Amount
valie value
[NAY) as at (NAV) as at
31 March 31 March
2025 | 2024
Investments at amortized cost (fully |
paid}
- Imvestments in Government [ ‘
Securities (unguoted) (refer mote - j) | . i ) |
7.40% Governmentof india 2035 | INR100| 2000000 | 21.45| INR100| 2.000.000| 2145
6.10% Government of India 2034 INR 100 3.00:0,000 205 INR T00 | 3.000.000 | 2980
5.15% Government of India 2025 . INR 100 &67.,000 6.68 IR 100 | 667,000 | 668
6.18% Government of India 2024 INR 100 - - MR 100 1,500,000 | 1363
| 58.03 | 7288
Investments at fair value through | ‘
profit and loss (FVTPL] |
- Investments in Mutual Funds |
Aqueted) {refer note - i = ; -
_ Axis Overnight Fund-Direce-Growth ;_..'.?‘lf‘..‘.éii_" AR | 2370 _Nﬁl-zﬂff_‘.‘?‘*ﬁ:‘{i 20.50
: | 80.22 | 9446
Total [ 90.34 l | 10458
Mon- Current , ] I 1
Imvestment in subsidiaries (unguoted) 1012 1012
fuo o L -
Investments in Government Securities [ 51.35 [ 58.03
(unguoted) carried at amortised cost
61.47 | | 6815
| ' |
Current | _ | I
Investments in Government Securitiss | 658 | 1553
{unquoted) carried at emortized cost
Investments in Mutual Funds (guotsd] | 2Z.18 20.80
at fair value through profit end loss
{FWTPL)
[ 28.87 | 3643
_ i 1
Total [ 90.34 | | 104.58
| | |
Aggregate book value of: | |
Quoted investmants 2219 | 2080
Un quoted investmants | 6815 - | w378
' |
Aggregate market value of: I
Quated investmenits | 2219 | ‘2080
: |
Aggregate amount of Impairment | z 2
In value of Investments

i Government Securities are pledged with Clearing Corporations towards the exposure deposits as on 31 March
2025:INR 58.03 (31 March 2024: Nill.

ii. Mutual funds are pledged with Clearing Corporations toweards the exposure deposits 85 on 31 March 2023: INR
2319 (31 Merch 2024: INR 20.80).
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{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

i Asat | As at
[  31March2025| 31 March2024
Foied depozits in banks with remaining meturity for more than 12 - 312
months (refer note 45)
Unsecured, Considersd good
Deposis with:
Trade exchanges, clesring agencies and depositories 6.06 | 464
__Others 102 095
Total 708 9.71

A description of the Companys financial instrument risks, nduding risk management objectives and policies are
given in Mote 38

The methods ussd to measure financial assets reported ot fair valus are described in Mote 37,

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, Considersd good 7332 27.30
Total {A) 71.52 27.80
Further classified as:

Related p.n.rt'_..' [r\efer note 3-4] - -
Other than related party i 7332 2730
Total 73.52 | 27.80

Allamounts are short-term. The net carrying valus of trade recsivables iz considered o ressonable appresdmation
of fair valus

Unbifl=d ravenus 17.66 462
Total (8) 17.66 4.62
Total (A+8) 91.18 | 32.42

* Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

Trade Recaivables agelng schedule:
As at 31 March 2025

Current .
Unbilled | Lessthan| &months| 1-2 Years
Dues| Gmonths -1 year |
Undisputed trade receivables ‘I?.ﬁﬁ| 060 508 | 324 1.70 200 91.18
= conaiderdamod | |
Total 17.66 | 5060 5.98 | 2.24 1.70 200 91.18

As at 31 March 2024

Undizputed trade receivables . 262 | 20:30 | 244

|

| 272 1067 128 3242
— considersd good | | . : _ B
Total 4.62 | 20.30 | 244 | 272 1.06 | 128 3242

For trade receivables ageing, the date of invoics haz been considered oz due date of payment. For terms and conditions
related to related parties receivables, refer now 34,
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ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with barks:

Asat| Asat
31 March2025| 31 March 2024

On current accounts 2819 50.83
Fixed deposits with original maturity of l2=z than 3 months (refer nate 20643 | 54504
43] -

Total 384.62 | 596.77

For the purpose of the Standalone Statement of the Cash Flows, cash and cash eqguivalents comprise the

Tollowing:
Asal | Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2028

Cash and cash equivalents

_Balances with banks:

On current accounts

2532 Rt

Fixed deposits with originel maturity of less than 3 months

13 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22065 =5
L I

H.III: Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Fixed deposits in banks with original maturity of more than 2 months 232.40 | 52322
it lest thith 12 maonths frefernose 43) :
Fixed deposzits in banks with original maturity for more than 72 months 273117 [ 345023
(refer note 45}
Total 3,590.57 | 3,978.45
14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at Az at

Unsscured, Considerad good
Recoverable from exchange [net)
Interest accrusd

Receivables from relatad parties (refer note 34)

Total

15 TAX ASSETS (NET)

31 March2025| 31 March 2024

4261 17457
31.87 4225

050 LR
75.47 | 217.50

{a) Advance income tex* | 0353 048
Total | 053] 0.49|
* Advance income tax net of provision in:

- Current portion as at 31 March 2025 INR 70.21 (31 March 2024 INR 47.82)

=1} Current tax Habilities (net)

Provision for income tax [nat of sdvance tax INR 65.52 (31 March 2024 469 | -
INR 51,5601 .
Total 4.69 &
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{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

16 OTHER ASSETS
Asat Asat
| 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advence to suppliers B! i = 10 0.02
Copital advance | 020 - - -
Balance with government - - 197 23
suthorities
Prepaid expenzes 821 a2y D568 | 445
Total 0.4% 0.27| 11.75 | 6.72
17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
| Asat| As at
31 March 2025, 31 March 2024
_Authorized |
15,80.00,000 {31 March 2024 15,80,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 sach 158.00| 158.00
158.00 158.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up — - —
12,42,21,260 {31 March 2024 12,17,30,160) equity sharss of INR 10 each 12422 12173
fully paid up
Total 124.22 121.73

{a} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

_Add: Issued during the year under preferential allotment
Add: Iszued during the year under Employes Stock Option

Flan (ESOF)
Crutstanding at the end of the year

2491,100

| 124,221,260

| Asat31 March 2024
ount| Mo.of shares| Amount
LA A S E s d RS
- 7,333,556 | 756
2492 541,600 054
12422 121,730,160 121.73

L]

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of eguity sharas having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholdsr is entitled
to one vote per share held, Dividend if any declared is payable in fndian Rupees. The dividend propazed by the
Eoard of Directors is subject to the approvel of the sharsholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining sssets
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts_The distribution will be in proportion to the number

of eguity shares held by the sharsholders.

{ch

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Asat31March2025 |

Mo. of shores

Asat31 -'_d‘lml
!l'-nli Mo. of shares

in the |
dass |

_Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up

Atul Gupts 26,525601 21.35% 26,525.601 21.70%
Arpit Khandabwal 22405005 18.11% 23408.005| 18.48%
‘Madhuliks Agarwal 9577778 7.71% 9,577,778  7.87%
A=hish Kacholia 9404 445 TH4% 2454445 7.30%:
Plutus Wealth Mansgement LLP 7.543.750 6.07% T.543,750 6.20%
Crbis Foundation 7038296 5.65‘-‘|':-| 7LIB206| 577%

{d)

the period of five years immedistely preceding the carent year end.

]

the current year emd.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

{f]

18

(A}

(B}

Lo}

(i

(E)

Details of shareholding of Promoters:
As at 31 March 2025
Noof| %ol ‘Y.l:hmp!dlﬂq

totai | the period based
on no of shares

shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up.

As gt 31 March 2024

No of
shares
hiadd |

sharos |

'.Ohvul'I % Change during
totai | the year based on

no of shares

A‘h.L| Guptn 26.525.601 1135%! 0.00% ! "ﬁ,ilj.ﬁ{l'l [ 11.79% oLoD%e
Manasi Gupsa | 1088600 o88%| 0.00% | 1,088609| 0.809% 0.00%
‘Rashmi Gupte | 21388 ooz coo%|  21383| 002% 0.00%
Karen Gupta 88,528 0.07% | 0.00% | 88.528 0.07% -33.04%
Crbis Foundation 7018,.256 565% | 0.00% | 7018296 377 1.45%
OTHER EQUITY

| Asat| Asat

i 31 Manch 2025, 31 Manch 2024
Securities premium®
Opening balance 254.42 157.10
A.dd Premium on issus ufeqmt}rshnres Z.ﬁﬁ.i 9482
Add: Amount transferred on sxercizs cufstuckup:lu ns 5.15.5 2350
Closing balance 262.23 | 254.42

* Cecuritiss premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve i= utilised in sccordance with the

provisions of the Act

Surpll.u Inthe Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss* :

Cpening balance 28322 : i 15:?.-35-
Add: Profit for the year 20211 13890
Add_ Amount transferred on lapse of stock options 0.01 | 107
Less: Dividend paid {12.34) | {9.10)
Closing balance 473.00 283.22
* Repressenis the smount of sccumulated earnings of the Compamy.

Share based payments reserve®

Opening balance 23:.09 | 347
_Add: Share based peyments 13.99 2418
Less: Amount transferred on sxercise of stuck upnnn, '15]5] (2500
Less: Amount transferred on lapse of stock options 0.02) (1.15)
Closing balance 32.81 21.99

*The share bassd payments reserve is used to recognize the grant date fair valus of options Ezuved to employees

under the Employess"stock option plans.

Dpemng_ balance og -
Add: Amaunt transferred on lapse of stack options a1 0.9
(Closing balance 0.10| 0.09
* General reserve is created on lapse of stock options.

‘Opening balence. - 0.64) | i0359)
Re-measurement (loss) on net deﬁnﬂd benefit obligation inEt of tax 0.07) | [ [0.05)
effect thereon)

_C]mi'lg balance 0. '.l'1]I (o. E-l“

* Other mmprﬂhﬂ-n.—.r\.‘e income reprazents cumulative gain/{losses] arising on re- mensuz‘emﬂnt of net defined

beneft obligation.
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19 PROVISIONS
Non-Current 1
As As ait
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025

Asat |
31 March 2025

Provision for employee benafits
Pravision for gratuity (unfunded)] 285 1N 020 061
irefernote 32)
Prowvision for leave enceshment - 248 200
{unfunded)*

Total 2.85 1.7 268 261

*The entire amount of the provision of INR 2.48 {37 March 2024: INR 2.00] is presented o= current, since the company
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However based on pest
experience, the company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued [2eve or reguire payment
for such leave within the next 12 months. The amount not expected to be settled within next twehre months is INR

297 {21 March 2024 £ INR 1.73).

0 TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises & = 0.23 | 087
Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and 76,25 | 6335
small enterprizes &

Total 7713 &4.32
Trade Payables ageing:

As at 31 March 2025

[EOaiSe Ry Wi Tbustotyy et Sy W M O (Ap—.

I:iﬂilnddulﬂm:ﬂmlml-lm 2-3 yoars Hnmthmapunl
a1l

Undisputed outstanding
duss of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Undisputed outstanding
duss of creditors other
than micro enterprises
and small enterpriszs
Total

As at 31 March 2024

57 M

57.12

20.01 |

-| 7733

SRl Do el [ S (oo e Y Pow—,

| Unbilled dues | Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 2 years |

Undisputed outstending
dues of micro enterprizes
and small enterprises

070

02y

Undisputed outstanding
dues of creditors other
thian micro enterprises
and small enterprizes

3658

63T

-1 6335

Total

17568

16.64

- 6432

For trade payables ageing, the date ofinvoics recognition has been considered as dus dat= of paymant.

# Includes unbilled accruals/ dues.
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il

3

* The Company has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act,
2008, (MSMED Act! as at 31 March 2025 The disclosurs pursusnt to Section 22 of the said Actis as under

{a} Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each

acoournting year:

Principal

Interast
i h}-a';;.zrl:n-cm nt of interest paid by the buyerin terms of section 16 of
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, slong
with the amount of the payment made to the supplisr beyond the

appainted day during sach accounting year

() the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making pavment {which has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006

{d} the amouwnt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ot the end of .

sach accounting year

(e} the amount of further interest remaining due and payabls sven in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actualty paid to the small enterprise, for the purposs of dizallowance
ot a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro. Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Atamortisedcost

Clients' cash collateral (net)

Payable to customers on trades
Security depasits )
Fayabls to related parties irefer note 34)
Other payables

Total

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

_ Asat]
31 Manch 2025 |

3,131.10
101.00 |
1.5 |
3479
3,288.40

Asat

31 March 2024

Statutory dues paynble 7.30 446
Revenue received in advance 260 | 0.43
Total 9.90 4.89
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
| Yoar ended | Year ended
| 31 Manch 2025 | 31 March 2024
Revenus from sale of services 22757 | 13345
Other operating H!'-"E;.I‘E [Met fncome from Treasury Operations 32881 256.6?’_
including interest on bank deposits and securities considered incidental
to Opemtions) measursd at amortised cost using EIR method I
Total 551.38 | 420.12
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4 OTHER INCOME

| Year ended | Year ended
[ F1March2025| 31 March 2024
Rental income 0:13 | 014
Imtarest on: |
- Security depozits measured ot amortised cost 0.07 0.orF
Imcome from mutual fund investments designated at FVTPL 129 576
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) ) 0.10 | 008
Frofit on zale of imvestment pfrc'p;y_ 1.35 -
Miscellansoos income - 0.03 | 022
Total 3.07 | 6.27
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
e
31 Manch 2025 31 March 2024
Selaries and wagss 71.03 | 51.97
Tasrribuation, i rovidant aped other fufvds el nate 240y 1151 0
St u okl pranE e i sed tiite 21 1399 2418
_Gratuity [refer nate 32811 Bas) il
Statbvecture 038 | 2
Total 8739 78.02
26 FINANCE CO5TS
| Yoar ended | Yoar snded
| 31 Manch 2025 | 317 March 2024
Imterest on:
- Margin deposits BoE4 | 5850
- Leas= finbilities 1.04 | 1.18
- Bank overdraft .01 | 007
- Others .0 | 003
Other borrowing costs
~Bank guarantes charges 764 503
Total 98.54 | 64.81

7 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Yoar ended

31 March 2025 |

Year ondead
31 March 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (rafer note 5)
Amartization of ROU assets [refer note S{A}ial]

Deprecistion on investment property (refer note 6)

fnestisation of intangiblé asices (rafef vote /)

Total

1.0 | 137
13| 200
0.06 | 006
185 b5
5.69 3.58
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28

OTHER EXPENSES
| Year ended | Year ended
[ F1March2025| 31 March 2024
Elzctricity and water 0.26 | 027
Rent 056 . 043
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 095 0.7y
~Cthers 0.44 | 019
Technology expenses i .1 E_i 4352
Travel and conwveyance 205 | 281
Communication, broadband and internet expenses 0328 | 0831
Legal and professional charges® 520 , 532
Commizsion fes 57.62 | 71.79
Imsurance 067 043
Fees and subscriptions 4.2% | 152
Rates and taxes 0132 839
Tomtvitesorsl rsponiibiley exponse felernote A7) { 246 1
Mditing ard proinotions It 5] o
Lo iy disentd drid b S proje i ploit and Squipmee 079 =
Miscellansous experises 210 163
Total 91.28 95.08
*Mote:The following is the break-up of Auditor’s remunzration {exclusive of GST) i .
As auditor: T
:ét_ﬂ.ﬂ.l-_t‘_ﬂr}r audit 021 | 020
In other capadty: |
Tex audit 0.02 | 0.02
Other services 001 | oo
_Reimbursement of expenses - 0.0
0.24 0.24

* Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

INCOME TAX
(A} Income tax expense

- Current tax 7027 | 47.82
- Adjustment of tax relating to sarfier years o] 0.02)
- Defarred tax (credit] 0.87) | 270}

Income tax expense reported in the Standalone Statement of Profit 69.44 45.10
or Loss

(B} Income tax expense charged to Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or los:

- Re-messurement of net defined benefit obligation 003 | o0z
Income tax charged to Other Comprahansive Incomea 0.03 | 0.02

134 1™ AMNUAL REFOAT 2022-23



* FINANCIALS

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

iy

(E}

Recondliation of tax charge
| Year ended | Year ended
[ 31March2025| 31 March 2024
Profit before tax 271.55| 184.00
Imcome tax expense at tax rates applicable (23.17%) 6334 | 4631
Teix effscts of:
- Mon-deductible expenses 122 035
- Dthers .12 | {1.58)
Income tax expensa reported in the Standalone Statement of Profit 69.44 4510
and Loss
Deferred tax relates to the followling:
Asat| As at
| 3T March 2025 31 March 2024
Defarred tax assets |
Frovizion for ng!It‘IJ-I{"." 077 I 058
Provision for leave encashment 062| 050
“Expenses disallowed 3.07 | 1.96
Lease liabilites {net of Right-of-use assets) 026 | g1z
472 .16
Deforred tax Habilities
Froperty, plant and eguipment and intangible asssts 2.50| 1893
259, 193
Deferred tax aszets (net} 213 1.23
Reconcilliation of deferred tax assets (nat):
.I.ilt; As at
| 31 Manch 2025, 31 Manch 2024
Opening balance 1.23 i (1.49)
Deferred o recognized in Standalone Statement of Frofit and Loss 0.87 | 270
De}érred_:ux rect-:-iri i:ed_in C;zmsr C::mlp r.egansiw! Income I}.I}R. | ooz
Closing balance 2.13| 1.23
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n

(A}

B)

i}

1113

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

| Yoar ended | Year ended

| 31March2025| 31 March 2024

Profit attributable to equity holders 2021 135850

Weigr_hte-d average number of &g uit}f_shures for basic EPS {A) 122,633,019 116215210

Option exercizable at the end of year (refer note 33 (B} 7.6T10,950 8,538,500

Weighted average number of ec.| uity shares adjusted for the effzct of 130,244,860 124,753,810
dilution (A+E] -

Face value pershare (INR] 10.00 10.00
Basic earnings per share (INR} 16.48 11.95

Diluted sarnings per share (INR] 15.52 11.13

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined Contribution Plans
Employers* Contribution to Provident Fund recognized in the 1.13 054
Sancabe Sl e e e s -
"Emplu}re:s‘ Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund recognized in the 0.0 ooz
_Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 25]
Employers’ Contribution to Employees’ Stats fnsurance recognized inthe - -=
Standalane Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 25)
* Amount below rounding off nerms adopted by the Company.
Deafined beneofit plans
Provision for gratuity 3.05 E 232
Actuarial assumptions
Dizcount ratz {per annum) 6.60% T2
Rate of increass in Salary 10.00% 10.00%
Expected average remaining wo rking lives of employeas (years} 2563 2579
Attrition rate (withdrawal rate %)
Up to 30 years T1.00% 11.00%
From 31 to 44 years 13.00% 13.00%
Above 44 years 700% T.00%
Muﬂulﬁty table 100 % LALM (2012-14)
Changes In the presant value of defined benafit obligation - Gratuity
Presant value of obligation at the beginning of the yaar 232 175
Interest cost 07 B.13
Current service cost 047 B38
_Benshis paid 0.01) ootk
Aceharial (geinl loss ooobligmaons: L gy
Present value of abllgation at the end of the year 2.05 232

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature end vary over time. As such company is

exposed tovarous risks as follows:

(A) Salary Increase - Actual zefery increase will increaze the Plan’s Hability. Increaszs in salary rate azsumption in

future veluations will also increass the liability,

(B} Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subzequsent valuations can increase the plan's liability:
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(C) Mortality & disabllity — Actusl deathz & dizability cazes proving lowsr or higher than azsumed in the valuation
can impact the liabilities.

(D) Withdrawals — Actuslwithdrawals proving higher orlower than assumed withdrawals snd change ofwithdrawal
rates at subsequent valustions can impact Plans fiability,

v} Expense recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Current servics cast 1 047 o3g
Imterest cost 017 | 013
Total expanses racognized in the Standalone Statament Profit and Loss | 0.64 0.51

v] Expense recognized in Other Comprahansive Incomea

| Asat As at

31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Actuarial [gaim) / loss on abligations | 00| 0.67
Total expenses recognized in Other Comprehansive Income | 0.10 ; 0.07

vi] Assets and labilities recognized in the Standalone Balance Sheat:

_Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end oftheyear 305 232

Unfunded net (asset)/liability recognized in Standalone Balance Sheat 3.05 | 232

vil] Bifurcation of Present Benefit Obligation at the end of the year:

Nan Current Lisbility £ 285 ] 171
Current Linbility 020 ] 0.61
| 3.05 | 2.32

vill} Expecied contribution for the next Annual reporting period

!' 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

_a Service Cost 054 041
bl Het Interest Cost 021 017
Expected Expense for the next annual reporting period 0.75 0.58

ix) A quantitative sansitivity analysis for significant assumption Is as shown balow:
[ Asat | Asat
| 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024

Impact on defined beneafit obligation
Discount rate
0.5% increase ' i0.12) | (0.08}
0.5% decrease 012 062
Rate of Increase in salary
IEII;S‘:‘;-i_r-_'ucrense i {I_l-l, ) I]TD_Q'
0.5% decrease .11 | {0.08)
x] Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation -
0 1o 1 yaar 020 ' 06T
1102 ysars 070| 0.14
2103 years 0.19 | 0.14
3to S y=ars 035 013
210 5 y=ars 0.4 025
5 tn 6 years _{I_.H_.:li 0.09
i6iyenr anywmids 12| L
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i3 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The employes stock option plan (ESOF) has bezen designed to incentivize the employzas of tha company. The
Company haz granted employee stock options in form of equity shares linked to the completion of & minimum
period of continued employment and performance of the eligible employzes of the Company, menitored and
supervised by the Board of Directors. The employees can purchese equity shares by exercising the options as vested
atthe price specified at the time of grant

The Company have adoptsd Orbis-Employes Stock Option Plan 3018, Orbis-Employee Stock Option Plan 2020,
Orbis-Employee Stock Option Plan 2020-1 and Orbis-Emplovee Stock Option Plan 2022 in previous years.

The details of the grants under the aforeseid schemes are summarized below:

. EOP-2018 | FEGFIIDZ‘II: | ESOP2020-0 | ESOP 2022
2024-25 21!13—215 202425 21113—24? 2024-25 1023-28 2024-15 2023-24
1. Exercise prices per INR 10,00 to INR IMR 12,00 MR 1500 INR 4050 to INR
gption L 13500
2 Exercise dates 20 June 2018 10 September 2020 31 January 2021 11 October 2022
onwards anwards
3. Vesting commences 20 June 2019 10 Septembar 2021 31 January 2022 11 October 2023
an unwnrd_s__ onwards anwands __omwn rds
4. Options granted 1.674,500{ 2.015600( 2,565.000) 2,665,000 3,500,000( 3,500.000) 5,1 15.-0-09' 2337000
and outstanding at the
beginning of the year
5. Options granted - - - - - - 1.510,000| 2891500
during the year
&_-Options exercised 1,117,000 141,100 7550000 300,000 - -1 619900 100,500
dhuring the year : : i : : i !
7. Options lspsed during - - - . - - 8800| 13,000
the year !
&. Options gmanted and 757,500 1,874.500( 1,810,000] 2,565,000 3,500.000| 3,500.000 5,‘:"9?,lﬂﬁi 515000
outstanding st the end
oftheyeor, | 1 Lt {1 I S
-Optionsvestaed | 757,500/ 1,874,500 1,810,000 2,565,000| 3,500,000| 3,500,000| 1,543,450 599,100
- Options yet to vest __- = L - - -| 4453,650 4,515,900
g, WWeighted svernge 202| 258 198 3103 257 357 58—1' 523
remaining contractual |
lifs of options {in years)

The following tmble llustmtes the number and weighted everage exsrcize prices (WAEP) of, and movements in,
share options during the year:

As at 31 March 2025

Asat 31 March 2024

 Mumber WAEP (INR)

" Number| WAEP (INR) |

Options outstanding at beginning of year 12,054,500 | 1880 10,717,600 1882

Add: |

‘Opticns grant=d during the y=ar 1,510,000 | I:-I-Er_.ﬂllil-E 2,801,500 6200

Diptians éxnsrivedl durig the year, -, 00 I L
Liphians lnpsed during the o 8,800 | Ston) 1400 St
Options outstending atthe end of yeor 12064600 4506 13054500 1839
Option exsrcisable ot the Erld- of year 7.610,950 2147 8,538,600 1422
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The fair valos of 2ach option is estimated on the dete of grant using the Black Scholes Merton(B5SM) formula. The
following table list the inputs to the Black Scholes Merton (BSM] used to determine grant dats fair value:

[ Asat

31 March 2025 |

‘Weighted average fair value of the options ot the grant dates (INR) 7500 6200
Dividend yield {30) 0.455% 0.65%
Risk free interest rats (%) 6.02% T08%
Expected volatiliny (3] T6:75% 2F.F5%:
Exercise Price 135.00 G9.00
Weighted average share price (INR} 179.00 12280

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
{A} Mame of related partles and descaiption of relationship as identified by the Company are provided below:

Individual exercising control
Arul Gupta [Founding Promotor and Executive Chiairman)

Subsidiary Companles
Orbiz Trusteeship Servicez Private Limited {OTSPLY
Orbis Financial Services (IFSC) Private Limited [OFSPL

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & relatives

Arul Gupta [Founding Promotor and Executive Chiairman)
Shyamzunder Agarwal (Managing Director & Chief Executive
Cfhcer)

Pup Chand Jain {Directar)

Abhimanyu Ramanujacharya Siddhartha (Director)

Manazi Gupta {Director and Daughter of Atul Gupta)

Shachindra Math (Director} till 6 May 2023
Michael Johann Eduard fasggi [Director) gl 12
My 2023

Mikhil Gediks (Director} ill 20 September 2023
Pranay ¥othari (Director) €ill 25 March 2025

Rizhav Bagrecha (Chief Financial Officer) tilk 25
Ocrober 2023

Rashmi Gupte {Spouse of Atul Gupta)
Kamn.Gupta (Son of Atul Gupta)

Gm-Prakash Dani (Director) wef 01 April 2025
Ashu Aggarwal (Chief Finencial Officer) w.ef 28 October 2023

Other related parties - Entities In whom Key Management Personnel Is interasted:
Orbis Foundation Sanjiv Saria Consulting Private Limited

RC Jain Family Trust

(B] Details of transactions with related party in the crdinary course of business for the year ended:
EIH-':hE 31 March K 31 March| 31 March, 31 March| 31 March
2024 H25 2024 M35 | 20724

2025

Fecovery of expenzes 080 0:74 | - - I 0.0z 0.0z
Rendering of services [ - = - | -~ -
Reimbursement of expenses - 028 031 | - -
Remunemtion paid | E 2414 1768 < 5
Rent paid | - 0.37 037 < =
Dividend paid - 356 286 | o.B2 0a5s
Imterest on margin deposits [ - - - -1 - 413
Lash collateral received - i - -1 6.60 -
Lash collateral repaid | - = - -1 5.63 663
Subscription to Memorandum of I - 001 | - =1 - -
assoCiation

[zsue of Equity Shares (including | - - 0:52 0.36 | - -
Securities premium)

140 157" ANNUAL REFDRT 2022-23



=
FINANCIALS

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

i5

Ex

{C) Year end balances

| Subsidiary comparies |

KMP and Relatives
31March| 31March 31 March
2025 2024

| Other refated parties
31 March

31 March |
i

31 March
2024

Other fimancial liabilities | - 0.0 |

Trede receivables

Other financial assets

0.8%

0.63 |

Imw=stments

18.12

12|

= Amount below rounding off norms sdopted by the Company.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties and key management personnel

The tranzactions with related parties and key management personnel are made on terms equivalent to those
that preveil in arm’s length tranzactions and in ordinary course of business. No borrowings and/or loans and
advances transections with related parties have been entered during the year. There have been no guarentees
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables This aszezsment is undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related party and the markst in which the refated party operates.
Further, the Founding Promotor and Exscutive Chairman hes given personal guarantes against the credit fadilitiss
availed by the Company {refer note 42).

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in o single business segmentand is primarily engaged into custody, clearing and s=ttlement
depaository, fund accounting, registrer and share transfer agent and reporting services. Shyamsunder Agarwal, Chisf
Operating Decizion Maker (CODM), reviews the operotions of the Company as one oparsting segment. Hence no
separate segment informetion has been furnished herewith.

Gezographical revenues is segregated bassd on the location of the customer in relation to which the revenue iz
recognised.

| Asat 31 March 2025
| Whthin brdia | Others Total

_Revenue from Operations | 52327 | 2011 | 55138

Revenus from Opemtions

Mon-current operating assets
The Company has commaon nen-current operating sss=ts for domestic as well as oversess. Hence, separats figures
for these sssets are not required to be furnished.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The fair value of other current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, investments, trade payables, and other financisl liabilities approximate the carrying
amounts because of the short term nature of these financial instrumeants.

The amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) of non-current financiel asssts consisting of security and
term deposits are not significantly different from the carrying amount and therefore the impact of fair value iz not
considerad forthe purpaoss of disclosurs.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and eash equivelents, bank balences other
than cash and cash eguivalents, sacority deposits, termn deposits, trade receivables, investments and other financial
Bs5els.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair valus of financial instrumants by valuation
techniquse:

«Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical asssts or liabilitizz

« Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obzervable for the asset or lability, sither
directly [Le. a= prices] or indirectly {ie derived from prices].

- Level 2 - Inputs for the ass=ts or liabilities that are not based on observable merkst dats (unobserveble inputs).
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Mo financial aszets/liabilities have been valued using lzvel 1, Level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements mentioned
in below mble.

Thers were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year

The follewing teble presents fair value hisrarchy of azssts and liabilities measured at fair valus on a recurring basis:

Cuantitative disdosures on falr value Filruﬂmmmtmhg

measurement hierarchy for assats and llabilittes | Toial ﬂmdmmhiﬂmim. Significant
inputs | Inputs
{Lawel 1) (Lawal ) {Lewel 3)
As at March 31, 2025:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposit 7.08 i = 5
Trade receivables g1.18 3 i -
Cazh and cazh equivalents 38462 = £ ;
Bank balances other than cash and cash 350057 - - -
equivalents
" Recoversble from exchange inet) 2261 5 s =
Intersst accrued 3197 - - -
Other receivables .29 = = =
Investment in Government Securities 5803 - - -
Financlal assets carried at cost
Investment in Unguoted equity shares of 1012 - - -

subsidiary companies

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Mutual Ful‘-lds 1_1_1 g 22149 - -

Financial liabilltles carried at amortised cost
Trade Payables 773 - - -
Other financial liabilities 3,283.40 = = =
Lease Liabilities g12 = - -

_As at March 31, 2024:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
_ Security deposit 559 = - -

Fixed deposits in banks with remaining maturity 412 - - -
for maore than 12 months
Trade receivables 3743 = = z
Caszh and cash equivalents 50677 = = i
Bank balances other than cash and cash 397845 = = i
equivalents
Recoverable from exchange (neat) 17457 - - -
Interest accrued 4225 5 = ;
Other receivables 068 5 = ;
Imvestment in Government Securities F3.66 - - =

Financial assets carried at cost
Investment in Unguoted equity shares of 10:12 = i -

subsidiary companiss
Financlal assets measured at FVTPL

Mutual Funds 2030 20.80 - -
Financial liabilitles carrled at amortised cost

Trads Payables 6432 - - -

Other financial fiabilities 421162 - - -

L=aze Liabilitiss 1054 - - -

The carrying amount of cazh and cash eguivalents, trade receivables, fixed depaosits, investmeant and other financial
assets, trade payables and other payables are considered to be the same as their fairvalues.
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i8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company iz expozed tovarious financial risks. The=ze risks are categorizad into market rizk, credit risk and liquidity risk
The Companys risk managemsent is monitored by the Board of Directors who focuses on sscuring long term and short
tarm cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of finsncial azsets for speculative purposes.

(A) Market risk

Miarkst risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a fimancial instrument will fluctuate becouse of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprizes three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other prics
risk, such as equity price rick and commuodity risk Financial instruments affected by market risk include bormowings
and derivative financial instruments. Further, the Company doss not have material imvestments in markst linked
financial instruments.

{1} Interest rate risk

Imterest rate risk is the risk thet the feir value or future cash flows of 2 inancisl instrument will luctuete because
of changes in market intersst ratss The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relatas
primarily to liguid instruments, government securities and other debt instruments. The intersst mtes on thess
instruments are relatively stabls but may impact in cose of major market fluctuations. The Company does not have
long-tetm debt obligations. However, the company has expasurs to bank guarantées but the commizzion rat2s on
such bank guarantzes are not linked to markst interest rates.

Interast rate sensitivity
Company does not have floating interest rate borrowings and hence interest rate sensitivity is not applicable.

[} Foredgn currency risk

Currency rizk is the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows of a finandal nstrument will fluctusts becsuse of
changes in forsign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of chenges in forsign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expanse iz denominated in a different currency
from the Companys functional currencyl.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstates the sensitivity to & reasonably possible changs in the USD exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant. of the Company's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair velue of monetary
assets and liabilities). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other cumencies is not material.

Liabilities _ , _
United states dobor (L1SD) .59 | 215
Assets

United states dellor (USD) 782 5.18

Yoar ended March 31, 2025 +25% | 814
-2% 0.14)
Year ended March 31, 2024 +29% | 010
2% | {o:1o)

(B) Craditrisk

Credit risk iz the risk of financial lozs ta the Company if & customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet itz contractual obligations. Credit rizk arises principally from the Company's receivables, depozits with
landlords and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cazh held with banks and
fimancial institutions. The maximum exposure to credit riskis equal to the carrying value of the financial asssts The
objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial azsets. The Company assesses the
credit guality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
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Loss allowance

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expectad Credit Losz (ECL) model for meszurement and
recognition of impeirment loss on the following finsncial assets and credit risk exposure:
{a} Financial asz=sts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g.. loans, debt securities,

deposits and bank balance.

(b} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or anether financinl asset that result from transections
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115,

The Company follows ‘simplifizd approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on

{i) Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

(i} All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116:

Further for the majority of the Company s receivables, the Company have assets of such customers under its custady.

The Company limits itz exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rat2d banks and
mstitutions and retaining sufficient balances in bank accountsrequired to meet operational costs on ongoing basis:
The Management reviews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drewdowns are planned to ensure that
thers iz minimal surplus cash in bank accounts. The Company does not fareses any oedit risks on deposits with
regulatory suthorities and the credit risk on other remeining financial aszets = not material

The Compeny’s maximum soposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024 is the respective carrying emounts.

(C) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not ke able to mest its financizl obligations as they become dus. The
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will ahways have sufficient liquidity to meet
it= fliabilities when due_ Liquidity management practices are followed in the company to enzure availability of funds
for the required purpose. Company also has aveilable credit imits which may be wtilis=d in case of need.

The tabie below summarizes the maturity profile of the Compenys financial lisbilitizs bazzd on contractual

undiscounted payments:
Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years | More than 5 years Total

31 March 2025
Leasze liabilities 252 7.55 172 . 11.79
Trade payables 7713 = | 7713
Other financial liabilities 3.288.40 - - 3,288.40
3,368.05 1.55 1.72| 337732
Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years | More than 5 years Total
31 March 2024 : _ —
Lease liabilities 246 888 231 | 14.25
Trade puynhIE 6432 - - H«.!?_
Other financial liabilities 421162 5 | 4211.62
4,278.40 8.98 281 4,290.19

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Forthe purpose of the Companys capital management, capital includes issued squity copital, securities premium
and all ather =quity reservés attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is to maximize the shareholder valus and to ensurs the Company’s ability to confinue a3-a going

CoONOEm.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants, if any. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company revisws
the fund management at regular intervals and take necessary actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

Mo changes were mads in the objectives, policies or processes for managing cepital during the y=arz ended 31

Miarch 2025 and 31 March 2024
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&0 REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS

{a) Revenue recognized from Contracts

Revenius reccgn'ls,ed from Customer contracts 551.38 | 420012
551.38 | 420.12

(b} Diseggregated revenue information

The cempany diszggregatss the revenue from customers by geogrephy and nature of services. The Company
believe that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing, uncertainty of ourrevenues and cash
fiows are affectad by industry, market and other economic factors.

Geographic revenue
Year Ended | Year Ended
T Manch 2025 31 March 2024
Cutside India 2811 . 16.81
India R22IT | 40337
551.38 | 420.12
Mature of Services
| Year Ended Year Ended
[ 31March2025| 31 March 2024
- Custady Service 102.50 | 119.86
- Professional Clearing Membership (PCM) Service 2132 1265
- Registrar and Transfar Agent (RTA) Service 245 0.94
- Imterest on Bank Deposits I2533 | 28281
- Interest incomes on bonds and Government securities designated at 358 | 186
amortized cost - -
551.38 | 42012
41 Therz were no smounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by

the Company.

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has availed bank guarantees from various banks issued in favour of clesring corporations aggregating
to [NR 246.00 (31 March 2024 INR 581.00) towards exposure deposits. Qut of which, INR 946.00 (31 March 2024
IMNR 381,00} is backsd by irrevocable and perzonal guarantee of Mr Atul Gupts (Founding Promotor and Executive
Chairman).

b

On going diract tax litigation:

Imcome Tax Act, 1061 Disellowence INRO13 |avzoies |[ar Amount of INR 0.5 disallowed
under section 36(2) 15 {App=all | by AD under Section 55{2}
{viib} and sdded {wiib}, which reduced carmriad
back toincams forward losses pertaining to
under Section 68 AY 2014-15; whose credit has
read with s=ction been taksn by the Company in
115B8E of the Act. | | _ E.lfbseguent:.ﬂsurs

T

The Company does nat have any material pending fitigations which would impact its financial position.

43 COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exzcuted on capital account and not provided for is INR 0.0 {net of
advance: INR 0.20) [31 March 2024 INR 0.12 (net of advance: INR Nilll.

The Company does not have any long term contracts inclading derivative contracts for which there wers any
material foresesnble lozses.

b
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¢} Purzuant to the provisional registration grant2d by the Intermational Financial Services Centres Authority (IFSCA)
vide letter mo, T184/FSCA/FCD/FC/Orbis IFSC2024-25/001 dated December 6, 2024, the Board of Directors of the
Company, vide resolution dated March 21, 2025, has approved an investment in equity shares of USD eqoivalent
to' INR 30.00 in its wholly owned subsidiary, Orbis Financisl Services {IF5C) Private Limited, Further, subsequent to
the year end the Company has invested in equity sheres of OF5PL amaunting USD eguivalent to INR 30,00 on 23
Miay 2025,
44 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

&3 per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, mesting the applicability threshald, nesdsz to spend at
least 2% of its aversge net profitfor the immedistzly preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility
(C5R) activities. & C5R committes has been formed by the company as perthe Act The funds are utilized throughout
the year on these sctivities which are specified in Schedule Vil of the Companiss Act, 2013,

I.ilil Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A Details of CSR Expenditure: [

Gross Amount required to be spent as per Ssction 135 of the Act | 245 LB
Add: Amount Unspent from previous years = -
Total Gross amount required to be spent during the year 245 135

| Asat
31 Manrch 2025 31 March 2024
B Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the ye=ar | 245 | 1.3

| Asat| Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

C Amount spent during the yearon
(i} Construction/acquisition of an osset 1.33 -

(i} On pl;JTFH-:I-Eﬂj other than (i} abowe 1.13 136

el g
| 31March2025| 31 March 2024

D Details related to amount spent
Contribution for eradicating animal cruelty .04 .10
Contribution for education and skifl building project 1.61 .53
Contribution far health care 0.36 | .21
Contribution for promating sports - .02
cEonmibation for foad selef it s
Lontibtion for covmanemental sistsingtity o -
Lontibation forvemt devihpment . 4 aas) -
At desiiote wilows arvd peor 030 e
Aiding leprosy patients I}IJZ 0.15
Total 245 136

Detalls of CSR expanditure in respect of other than ongoing projects
Balance | Amount deposhied
unspant | In Spediied Fund of |

esatl| Schedule Vil of the |

April 2024 | Act within & months |

Multiple activities as mentioned - = 245 | 244 -
in point no. "D abave | | |

Multiple activities as mentioned - = 135] 1.36 -
in point no. "D*above
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

F Dotails of excess CSR expenditura

Balance Amoundi required Amount Bafance
oxress as at 1 tobe spant | spent during  excess as at 31

April 2024 during the year the year March 2025

Multiple activitizs as mentioned in point {o.o1) 245
no. ‘0" above

246 {02}

Multple activities sz mentioned in point - 135 136 10.01)
no.“0" above

G Disdosures on Shortfall

Particoiars
Amount Required to be spent by the Company during the year 245 135
Actual Amount Spent by the Company during the year 246 | 1.36

Sh;tﬁzll at the end of the year w} =
Totnl of previous years shortfall w =
Reaszon for shortfall MNA | MNA

H Detnils of related party transactions in relation to C5R expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 21 March 2024
Amount of contribution - | .

45 DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO FIXED DEPOSITS IN BANKS:

(i} Pledged with clearing corporations towards | 10643 85343 248271 -

exposure deposits

(ii} Pledged with banks towards bank guarantess - 454 23920 =

{iii) Pledged with banks towards bank overdraft - - 640 -

facility

(] Unencumbered - 1.03 77 -
29643 B859.40 2,731.17 -

As st 21 Murch 2008
Oviginal | Original maturity Original| Remaining

maturity of formorsthan3| maburity for | maturity for
l‘enthu:!l menths but less . more than 12 more than

manths | than 12 months months| 12 months
{i} Pledged with clzaring corpomtions towards 54504 52322 3.303.02 112
exposure deposits | | |
(i} Pledged with banks towards bank guarantzes | 5. - 146.12 300
(iii) Pledged with-banks towards bank overdraft - - 108 -
facilicy
545.94 52822 3,450.23 4.12
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

45 DIVIDEND

| Asat| Asat
[ 31March2025| 31 March 2024
{i] Dividends declared and paid by the Company during the year: | 1234 | 0.0
| 1234 9.10

(ii} After the raporting dates the following dividends were propozed by the directors zubject to the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general mesting; the dividends have not been recognised as liability at the y=ar end.

Froposed dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025: INR 1.80 per 2234 | 1219
equity share {31 March 2024: INR 1.00 per equity shars)

22.38 | 12.192

a7 RECOMCILIATION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FORMING PART OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES IN ACCORDANCE

WITH IND AS 7:
Lease linbilities 1054 | i2.26) | 104 912
1 10.54 {2.46) | 104 9.12
Particulars Asat Apeil 01,2023 | Cash flows (nef) | Non cash changes | As at March 31, 2024
Lease liabilities | 1242 | i2.48) 0.60 i 10.54
1242 [2.48) 0.60 | 10.54

48 OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

{i} The Company does not have any Bemami property and no proceedings has been initisted on or pending against
the Company under The Prohibition of Benemi Property Transections Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016] formerlyThe
Benami Transections {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thersunder.

(ii} The Company does not have any tranzactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companiss Act
2013

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the stetutory
perigd.

(v} The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v} The Company has not advanced or loanzd or imvested funds to any other personis) or entityiies], indading farsign
entities {Intermediares) with the understending thet the Intermediary shalk

(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guamntes, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the witimate bensficinries.

(wi} The Company has not received any fund from any person{s} or entityli=c}, including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the und=rstanding iwhether recorded in writing or othernwise) that the Company shall:
(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by oron
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Bensfciaries) or

(b} provide any guamntes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

{wii} Thers iz no income surrenderad or disclozed az income during the current or previous year in the tax assezsments
under the Income Tax Act 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account

viii) The Company has used an sccounting software for maintaining its books of account, which haz & feature of
recording the sudit trail {edit log} facility, except that audit trail feature was not enabled throughout the y=ar for
certein tranzactionsfields/tables recorded in the accounting softwars ot the application level Further the audit
trail featurs waz not enabled at the database lavél within the accounting software to log any direct changes
Furthzr, to the extent enabled, the audit trail festure haz opsrated throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the accounting software. Also, we did not come across any instance of the sudit trail
feature being tampered with in rezpect of such accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail feature of prior
years:has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory reguirements for record retention to the extent it
was enabled and recorded in respective years.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

(] Thequarterly returns/ statements fited by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of account
=} The Company has not been declared oz wilful defoulter by any Bank, Finandial Institution or sny other lender.

Az per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Orbis Financlal Corporation Limited
ForM S K A & Assoclates Cin: LaT 120HR005PLO036952

Chartered Accountants

Famn Registration Mo:103047W

Sripamma De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachi Khanna

Partrier Expoutive Chairman Managing Director and CEQ Chief Financial Company Secretany

Membership Mo DA0OTE DN Mo 0538085 Dl Mo 08516709 Officer M Mo 827428

Place: Gurugram Place: Dishradun Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 5 September 2025 Date: 5 Septamber Date 5 Septemmber 2025 Date: 5 September  Date: 5-September
2025 2025 2025
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ORBlﬁIHDEFEHDEHT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONSOLIDATED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(CONSOLIDATED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF ORBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orbis Financial Corporation
Limited [hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company") and its subsidiaries [ Holding Company
and its subsidiaries topether referred to as “the Group™], which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss [including Other
Comprehensive income], the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information [hereinafter
referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”].

In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 [“the Act”] in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies [Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended [ “Ind AS"] and other accounting principles penerally
accepied in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group, and of consolidated profit
[including other comprehensive income ), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing [SAs), as specified under section 143[10] of the Act. Dur responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consclidated financial statements in terms of

the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India [*ICAI"], and the relevant
provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Directors’ report but does not include the Consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this repard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these Consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles penerally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safepuarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group to continue as a poing concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing concern and
using the poing concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of each Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and

to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
[“SAs"] will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consaolidated
financial statements.

We pive in "Annexure A", a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143( 3] of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books, except for the matter stated in the paragraph 1[h][vi] below on reporting under
Rule 11(g).

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss [including other
comprehensive income], the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Hows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164[2) of the Act.

f. The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 1[b) above on reporting under Section 143[3][b] and paragraph 1[h]
[vi] below on reporting under Rule 11[g);

g. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure B".

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditor’s] Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations piven to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending [itigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group— Refer Note 41(b) & 41(c] to the Consolidated
financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts. Refer note 42{b] to the Consolidated financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India. Refer note 40 to the Consolidated financial statements.
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iv.

(a)

(b)

(c]

The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the

Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested [either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds] by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to orin any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities [ “Intermediaries”] with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that Intermediaries shall, directly or indirectly lend
orf invest in other persons or entities identified in-any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries [“Ulimate Beneficiaries”] or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the

Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities [Funding Parties] with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party [“Ultimate Beneficiaries”] or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us for Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies, which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
and according to the information and explanations provided to us by the Management of the
Holding company in this regard, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and [ii] of Rule 11[e] as provided under [a]} and
[b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of the same declared
for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year

which is subject to the approval of their members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act 1o the extent it applies to
deciaration of dividend. [Refer Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements].

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instance mentioned below,
the holding Company and it subsidiary Companies incorporated in India have used accounting
softwares for maintaining their respective books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025,
which have a feature of recording audit trail [edit log ] facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally,
the audit trail of prior years has been preserved by the Holding Company and above referred
subsidiaries as per the statutory requirements for record retention.
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In respect of an accounting software used by the Holding Company for maintaining its books
of account, the accounting software has a feature of recording the audit trail [edit log) facility,
except that audit trail feature was not enabled throughout the year for certain relevant
transactions/fields/tables. Further, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature
was enabled at the database level to log any direct changes as explained in Note 45(viii] to the
Consolidated financial statements.

Further, where enabled, the audit trail feature has operated through-out the year for the
relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. Alse, during the course of our

audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tamperad with, in
respect of such accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail feature of prior years has been
preserved by the Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to
the extent it was enabled and recorded in respective years.

2. In our opinion, according to information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided
by the Group, to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V
of the Act and the rules thereunder.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of Qualifications/adverse
remarks made by us in the Companies [Auditor’s Report) Drder 2020 [CARQ) Report of the Holding
Company and subsidiary companies included in the Consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Orbis Financial
1 Services (IFSC) Us6190G12023PTC146324 Subsidiary F(Evin)
Private Limited

For MSKA& Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De
Partner

Membership No. 060978
UDIN: 25060978BMMLLE3S81

Place: burugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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ANNEXURE A

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ORBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= [btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143[3][i] of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such contrals.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the manapement and Board of Directors.

= [onclude on the appropriateness of the management's and Board of Directors use of the poing
concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability
of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to maodify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue a5 a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements,

including the disclesures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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= [btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with povemance of the Holding Company and such ather
entities included in the Consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

ForMS KA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De

Partner

Membership No. 060578
UDIN: 25060378BMMLLE3981

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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ANNEXURE B

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ORBIS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Orbis Financial Corporation Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Orbis Financial Corporation
Limited [ hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”] as at and for the year ended March

31, 2025, we have audited the intermal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies [the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries topether referred to as “the Group”), which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have,

in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Conselidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting [the "Guidance Note”] issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India [“the ICAI").

Management's and Board of Director's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Management and the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated
financial statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective Company's policies, the safepuarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143[10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemnal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference te Consclidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financizal control with reference to Consolidated financial statementsis a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance reparding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to
Consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that [ 1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; [2] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and [ 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
Consolidated financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 1o Consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override

of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sriparna De

Partner

Membership No. 060578
UDIN: 25080978BMMLLE3981

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 05, 2025
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URBI ' FINANCIALS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 21 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

Parthmlars Hioies. | Aswt! As 2t
31 Narch M35 31 Miarch 2024
ASSETS
Non-curment asseis
Property, plant and equaprment 5 14358 1232
Right-of-use szzetx 3A 8322 10322
Investment property & = 281
Intangible naceiz ¥ S48 s
E 02 099
= - 503
IIIthL'rﬁn-.unuut aEEsin o 757
Defemed teo assets inet] 25 124
Mon-corrent tax szz=is [metl 150a] L0
Diher non current ssxets 16 p2e
Total nor-current assets 104,71
Current assets
Financial aszets
_I:_vi::tml:nt: 9 A3
Trade receivables 11 3549
__ Cash and cash equivelents 1z 5877
Bank balances other then cash and cash equivelents 13 3,980.895
2 I'Jth:rﬁnu.m:lat um:: ! 14 2TEaE3
Cumnttmcnssct-{n-eﬂ 15[a} 374
Dthes current sasets 16 L
Total current assets 4,880,00
Total assets 49847
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share cagizal 17 242 12173
Other equity 18 Fi538 58650
Kon-current Babllities
_Financial Enkilites
Leaza fimbiftties 54 763 o38
Provisions 15 257 174
Total nen-current labilities 10.50 1102
Current lizbilines
Financial Bakiligez
_ Lenzs fisbifties 5A 154 143
Trade pevables i _ 2l
EITuuF oartctar d!nJ duas of micro Lﬂt!!prl!.ﬂ Baed :mulbznurﬂme._ L oz
&337
 Dtherfinancisl iabilities 1] 178
“_'”'t"_‘-"ﬂt'."-""" limbifties 23 5407
Provizions 8 i
Loment tax lsbilities {netl 151 15
Total current Babilities AIE5A6
Total iabilities 425545
_Total equity and liabilities 498471
The sccompanying notes form &n integrel pact of the concolidsted fnencisl ctatements. 1-47
Az per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ForM 5 K A & Associates Orbis Financial Corporation Limited
Chartersd Accountants CiM: U6T 120HR200EFLCD36852
Frmn Registration No.: 105047W
Sripama De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachl Khanna
Partner Executive Chairman Managing Directorand CEQ  Chief Financial Company Secretary
Membership No. 60973 DN Mo DD523086 LM MNo- DES16709 Officer MMo AZT4ZE
Place: Gurugram Place- Dehradun Place: Mumbai Flace: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Diates 5 September 20235 Date: 5 Seprember Date 5 September 20235 Diate: 5 September  Date- 3 September
25 2025 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

31 March 2024
Revenue fram cperations 23 556.16 47434
Other income 24 407 7is
560.23 431.42
Expenses
Hvployes hirs B ckperie 2z AR it
Finance costs 26 D856 B84
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 576 384
Other expenses 28 0209 06.52
285.25 144,23
IT!n_f}t before tax 274.98 187.19
Tax axpenss
Ltinich.. S ; 2 7113 e
Adjustment of ta relating to earlier years 2% 010 {002}
EE_fElTEdM {credit} 29 088} 271
Total tax expense 70.35 4591
Profit for the year 204.63 191.28
Items that will not be redessified subisequently to profit orloss [refer note 31BN
Re-m=asurement of net dehned beneht obligation [refer note 267 (o0} {007
Income tax effect 002 002
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.6} {0.05)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 204.58 141.23
E:nungspu' oquity ih:mnffmnlueﬂﬂt w-'m 30
__ Basic snmings per share 1655 12146
Diluted earnings-per share 15.71 11.33
The accompenying notes form an integral partof the consolideted financial statements. 127
Az per our report of even date For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of
For M 5 K A & Associates Orbis Financial Corporation Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN- U67 120HR2005PLO036952
Frmn Registration No.: 105047W
Sripama De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachl Khanna
Partrier Executive Chairman Managing Director and CEQ Chief Financial Company Sscretarny
Wembership Mo DE0E7E DN Mo DD523086 LM MNo- DES16709 Officer M.Mo. AZT428
Place: Gurugram Flace: Dehradun Place Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Diates 5 September 20235 Date: 5 Seprember Date 5 September 20235 Diate: 5 September  Date- 3 September
2025 2025 2025
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FINANCIALS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

[1:¥] Equity share capital | As at 31 March 2035
No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully peid up

Opening - ‘N.—E@lﬁﬁ: 121.73
Add: lssued during the year 241,100 248
Closing 124,221,260 124.22

Equity sharas of iNR 10 sach issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Opening 112,632,004 11363
Add Issued during the year 8.007,156 210
Closing 121,730,160 121.73

Balance as st 01 Aonl 2024 25442 28864 2399 0.08 | 566.50
Frafit for the year -f 20463 = -| -| 20463
Dividend paid -| (1234 = | -] (1234
Share based payments = = 13.09] -| 1389
Amount transferred on exercizs of 515 {5.15) - - -
stock options |

Arnount transferred on lepse of - oo {0,021 | 001 - -
stock options [

Premium on iszue of equity shares 266 = - - i
Other comprehensive incoms - - -| - (0.06) | (D08}
Balance as at 31 March 2025 262.23| 480.94 32.81| 010 (0.70)| 775.38

Balance as ar 01 April 2023 157.10| 15538 348| - 31538
Profit for the year -[ 14128 | - 141.28
Dividand paid o S L c = -| {e.10}
Share based peyments S| 2417 : -l 2497
Amount transferred on exercize of 250 - i250) | - - -
_stock options
Amount transfzrred on lapsz of B 1.07 (1.18) | 0.0% - -
stock options | |
Pramium on issue of equity shares o482 - | - 9482
 Other comprehensive income - - -| - {005 (0,05}
Balance as at 31 March 2024 254.42 288.64 23.99| 0.09 (0.64) | 566.50
The accompanying notes formy an integral part of the conzolidated finandal statements. 1-47
Az per our report of even date For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
ForM 5 KA & Assodates Orbis Financial Corporation Limited
Chartered Accountants TN UETT120HRI0D5PLCO36052
Famn Registration Mo:103047W
Sripama De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachl Khanna
Partner Executive Chairman Managing Directorand CEQ Chisf Financial Comparny Secretany
Membership Mo 060078 DN Moo 0523085 DM Mo- DES16709 Officer WMol A27423
Place Gurugram Place Dehradun Place: Murmibai Place: Gurugram Place Gurugram
Dwie: 5 September 2025 Date: 5 Seprember Dastes 5 Septamber 2025 Date: 5 September  Date: 5 September
2025 2025 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unless otherwize stated)

Diep rﬂ:\ulmn and smortoation experis 365
Share based payments 1478
_ Finence costs B8 £484
E.:lln o | |Eﬂ5—! oancellstion I | A
—income from mutusl fund investments designsted at FVTPL EEIH 375}
interest inoome [I.U-S:l: Pl o))
Rental income [B0s) i o]
..Ef'r-ser.d.ﬂe-.iﬂﬁ ﬂfEmF=E:fr platdend eqifpment. H =
o7 0I5
FE0.01 27159
1338 0597
_ linzressalin trads raceiveiiaz is0is0)! {539
incresse/Tlecrease] in other current liabilites 544, {1383
__Incressein provisiona 1.047 0.58
__-:De-nreu: i ntherﬁn:nclqulubTrbe: {923.186) 203051
2.0 11403
493 497
598) EIE
6253 523%)
{10893, = 2280
[1553] 257]
ed: f?m'n ..u]: ﬁf pmpuH Eh:lnt und :q_umnerr‘ 8.0t ] i
Pruc_:ﬂ: Fram :geofML@:lgl_E:lllnEﬂ - 3704
Proceeds from saie of invectment property 350 =
_ Rental income 0.08}
__Praceeds from sale of Gavemment Securities . 15.63]
__ Proceeds from saie n_\f__l;_qr_ld.- =1
ﬂnw:n.—nen: made in fced deposits BjTj:
Interest received on fixed deposiis 103§
Met cash lmgenumﬂl from Investing activities (B) 223
Brocaeds from Esusnce of aguity chane capissl 5158 jlri) |
Interast paid 157.50) 163657
Pri-n:i&nlgayrn:nt (=131 hEua: Iinhiﬁ‘l‘ir.; L'.'_"FIJ} l{b_'ﬂ[l
__Diwidendpaid I [ELT] 0]
H!hﬂlﬂmi_‘gs;!dhﬂqge_rlnﬁ_frﬂl mﬂmiﬂ {1e7. lI'BI 27.68
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 213E9
=k et Eoely e qidenichiy St A e Rwrin g o e o i
__Cash sod cash equivalents at the zad of the yesr
Cash and ash equivalents comprise (refer note 12}
Balances with banks
AOn turrent sccounts 2544 5366
'Fnﬂ:-d ch:m \Ell‘h ungln:l rrl.u-m-rﬂ"(m‘ It..r tran 3 manths 296.435¢ 34511
Tnﬂﬂilﬂmmﬂeﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂ 38587 508.76

Notes:

i The Conzolidsted Statement of Cash Flows haz bern prepsred in socordeace with the Todireck Method' set oot in ind A5 7 Etetement of Cazh Fows”
notified underthe section 133 of the Act. read together with Rube 3 of the Compenies {Indizsn Aocounting Standand) Rules, 2015,

i, Figures in bracket indicate cazh outflow.

The =ocoompanying notes form 2n integral part of the conzolideted financal stetements. 147
Az per our report of sven date For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of

For M5 K A & Assoclates Orbis Financial Corporation Limited
Chartered Accountants TN LT T20HRI005PLOD36052

Firmn Registration Nos105047W

Sriparna De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachi Khanna

Partner Executive Chairman Managing Directorand CEQ  Chief Financial Company Secretary

Membership Mo 060078 DN Moo 00522085 D Mo DB3 6709 Officer WMo AZT428

Place Gurugram Place: Dehradun Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place Gurugram

Date: 5 September 2025 Date: 5 September Date 3 September 2025 Dates 5 September  Dote: 5 September
2025 2025 2025
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

These Conszaolidated Financial Statements (*CF5*] comprise the financial statement of Orbis’ Financial Corporation
Limited (hersinafter referred to as “the Parent/Holding™), Orbis Truzteeship Services Private Limited ("OTSPL"} and Orbis
Financial Services (IFSCE Private Limited (“OFSPLY, its subsidianies (together and hersinafter referred to as “the Group®)
for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Orbis Financial Corpomtion Limited (*hereinafter referred to oz “OFCL" or the *“Company®) is & public imited Company
domiciled in India and incorporated on 28 Movember 2005 having CIN US7 120HR2Z005PLC035952 and registerad
office at 44, Ocus Technopaolis, Golf Club Road. Sector-54, Gurgaon-122002, Haryana. The Company i= registered with
Securities and Exchange Board of Indiz {SEBI) a5 a Custodian of Securities and is engaged into depository; clearing and
settlement, fund accounting. registrar and transfer agent services and reporting seryices.

Orbis Trusteeship Services Private Limited {“hereinafter referred to as “OTSPL" or the “Company®] incorpomated and
domiciled in India on 20 May 2020 having CIN U671 80HR2020PTCO56283 and registered address 44, Ocus Technopolis;
Golf Club Road, Sector54, Gurgaon-122002, Haryane. The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Eoard
of India (SEBI) as & Debenture Trustes and 1= also authorized to underiake edministration, asset managemsnt support
services and trusteeship services under International Financial Services Centres Authority (IFSCA)L Gift City In Gajarat.

Orbis Financial Services (IFSC) Private Limited (“herzinafter referred to as "OFSPL” or the “Company”] incorporated and
domiciled inIndiaon 18 November, 2023 having CIN 65190612022 PTC146324 and registered address Building Mo13B
Elock Mo13, B Zone-1, Roed 1C, GIFTSEE; Gift City, Gandhinagar, Gandhi Kagar- 382355, Gujarat with the chjective to
carry the business az IFSC (International Financial Service Centre} Unit in accordance with the Securitiss Exchangs Board
of Indie (IF5C] Guidelines, 2015 and to act as an intermediary as per such guidelines in IFSC.

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are as under:

2.1 Basls of Preparation of Consolidated Finandal Statements
{a] Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

Thase Consolidated Financial Statements have been preparsd in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (ind AS] notified undarSection 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ithe “Act”] read with the Companies
(Imdian Accounting Standards} Bules, 2015 as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of
Schedule NI (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Conzolidated Financial Statements.
Accounting policies heve been consistently applied to all the years presented except where & newly issued
sccounting standard is initially adopted or & revizion to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(bl Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Fimancial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis,
except for the following material tems that have been measursd ot fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

i} Certain financial assets and lisbilities measured at fair value frefer sccounting policy 2.13 on financial
instruments)

i)  Share based payments transactions {refer accounting policy 2.14(c) on Share-based payments)

All azset= and liabilitizz have been classified 8z currant or non-current az per the Group operating cycle and
other criteria s=t out in the Schedule | to the Companies Act. 2013. Besed on the nature of services and
the time between the rendering of service and their realization in cash and cash equivalznts, the Group has
ascertained its operating cycle as twebve months for the pwrpose of current and non current classification of
azsets and liabilities:

The Conzolidated Financial Statements were suthorized for issue in sccordance with the resolution of the
board of directors on 05 September 2025,

{c) Useofestimates

The preparation of Conzolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Managament
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assetz and habilities as ot the
Consolidated Balance Shest dats, reported amount of revenus and expenses for the year and disclozsures
of contingent Habilities a= at the Consolideted Balance Shest date. The estimates and assumpbions used
in the Group financial statements are based upon the Management’s evalustion of the relevent facts and
circumstances as ot the date of the Conszolideted Financial Statsments. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on o periodic basiz Revizsions to accounting
estimates, if amy, are recagnized in the year in which the sstimates are revized and in any future years
affected. Refer note 3 for detailed disclosurs on estimates and judgmisnts.

{d} Basls of consolidation

The Consolideted Financial Statements comprise the fnancial statements of the Parent and its subsidiaries
oz at 31 March 2025, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or hasrights, to varisble returns from its
involvement with the investes and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over theinvestes.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

22

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

o. Power ower the investes (e edasting rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee),

b.  Exposure, or rights, to variable returnz from its involvement with the investes, and
. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums.

Generally, there iz a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in congrol. To support thiz presumption
ond when the Group has less than s majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considsrs
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investzs, induding:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investes,
Rights anzing from other contractual arrangements;

The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

nonoooe

Thie size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdingsof the
othar voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it contraks an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there
orz changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Conzolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceazes when the Group lozes control of the subsidiary. Assets;
linbilities, income and expenszes of a subsidiary acqguired or dispozed off during the year ars included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the dete the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Consolidated Financial Stetements are prepared using uniform sccounting policies for ke transactions and
other svents in similar dircumstances. IF s member of the group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the Consolidated Financial Statements for like transections and events in similar circumstances;
npproprinie adjustments are made to thet group members financisl statements in preparng the
Consolidated Financial Statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The finandial statements of the subsidiary used for the purposs of consolidetion are dmwn up to same
reporting date os that of the parent; e, vear ended on 31 March 2025,

Consolidaton procedure

o} Combine like items of azsets, liabilitizs, eguity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parsnt with
those of itz subsidiarizs. For this purpose, income and sxpenses of the subsidiarizs are based on
the amounts of the assats snd Habilities recognised in the Consolidated Finencial Statements at the
acquisition date.

(b} Offsst (eliminate) the carrying emownt of the parent investment in the subsidiaries and the parent’s
portion of equity of the subsidiaries.

(2} Eliminate in full intregroup azsets and linbilities, equity; income, expenszes and cazh flows relating o
transactions between entities of the group (profits or lozses resulting from intragroup transactions
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed sssets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup
lozs== may indicat= an impairment that requires recognition in the Consolidetad Financial Statamants.
Ind A5 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and
losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCH) are attributed to the equity
holdars of the parent and to the non-contmlling interests, even if this resufts in the non-controlling interest=
having o deficit balance When necessery, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's sccounting policies. All intre-group assets end
finbilities; equity, income, sxpenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Property, plant and equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment are stated ot historicel cost [ess accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment lozses {if any). Historical costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the scquisition of the
items.

Subzequant cozts ars included in the azzets carrying amount of recognized as a separatz aszet, as appropriate;
anly when it it probeblz that future economic bensfits associated with the item will fiow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for oz a separate
asset iz derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Consolidated Statement
aof Profit and Loss during the year inwhich they ars incurred.

Advances peid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance shest date
iz claszified a= copitel advances under other non-current assets and the cost of Property, plant and eguipments
not ready for use before year end are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress!
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

Depredation methods and estimated useful lives

Deprecintion on property, plant and equipment is calculat=d on prorete basis on straight-line method using the
uzeful lives of the assets estimated by management The useful lives of assetz are as follows

Leasshold improvement | - Shorter of the asset’s useful life and their leaze term
Improvements to Buildings 30 years
Buildings &0 years
Fumiture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office Equipmenit 3 years
Plant end squipment: 1 R
-Servers & years
-End user devices such o, desktops, laptopsete. | 3years

Depreciation cn sale/deduction from property, plant and squipment is provided up to the dete preceding the
date of sale, deduction az the cazz may be. Gains and losse= on dispozals are determined by comparing proczeds
with carrying amount. Losses arising on retirement or gains/ loszes arising on dizpasal of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which such retirement or
disposal takes placs.

Depreciation methods, uzeful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically st sach financial year end and
adjusted prozpectively, az appropriats.

23 Invesiment property

Investment property iz measured initially et cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initiel recognition,
imvesbment properties are stated at cost less sccumulated depreciation and sccumulated impairment losses; if
any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criterin are mav When significant partz of the mvestment property are required to be reploced
at intervals, the Group depreciates them separatsly bazed on their specific ussful lives. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and manasgement estimate, depreciates
the building owver estimated useful lives which are diffarent from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the
Companies: Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are fikely to be used.

The Group deprecietes building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of originel
purchaze.

Though the Group mesasures investmsnt property using cost based messurement, the fair valus of investment
property is disclosed in the notes, Fair values are determined bazed on feedback received from the market for
similar properties.

Investmeant properties are derecognizzd either whan they have been dizpozed of ar when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit iz expected from their disposal. The difference between the
n=t disposal procesds and the cormying amount of the asset is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period of derecognition.

24 Intangible Assets

intangiblze assets are stated af acquisition cost, net of accumuleted amortization and sccumuleted impeirment
Iozses {if amyl.

The Group amaortized intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the strmight line method. The
estimated wseful lives of intangible assets ars as follows:

Intangible assots Usaful Lifo
Computer Software 5 years

intangible azzets with finita lives are azsezsed for impairmeant whenever there is an indication that the intangible
aszet may be impaired. The amortization pericd and the amortization method for an intangible assetwith a finite
uzeful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

2.5 Foreign Currency Transactions
{a] Functional and presentation currancy
It=mz included in the Conzolidated Financisl Statements are measzured using the currency of the primary

ECOnOMic nvironment in which the entity operates {'the functional currency. The Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented in Indian rupes (INR), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

(b} Transactions and balances

Cn inttial recognition, all forsign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the forgign currency
amount the exchange rate betwesn the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate betwesn the transaction date
and settlement dats are recognized in the Consolidated Staterment of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in forsign currencies are restated at the yeer nd at the exchanges rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Consolideted Statement of
Prafit and Loss.

MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of histarical cost in a fareign currency are translated using
the exchange mies at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.6 Fair value measurement
The Group messures financial instruments ot fair valus at each balance sheet dats.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an azset or paid to transfer o fiability in an arderly tranzaction
betwsen market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the tranzaction to sell the az=z=t or transfer the liability takes place either

- In the principal market for the szset or iability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most sdvantageous market for the aszet or liability accessible 1o
the Group.

The Group uses wvaluation fechnigues that are appropriste in the circumstances and for which suffhcient data
ars available to meazure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimizing the use
of unobservable inputs. The Groups management determines the policies and procedures for fair value
measurement such as derivative instrument

All ssetz and linbilities for which fair valus is measured or disclozed in the Consolidated Financial Statements are
catzgorized within the fair valus hizmarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that i= significant
to the foir valus messurement as o whaole:

- Lavel 1 —Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markstz for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 — Valustion techniques for which the lowest level input that & signithcant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Lavel 3 — Valustion techniques for which the lowest level input thet = significant to the fair value
measursment is unobservable.

2.7 Revenue Recognition
Rendering of services

income comprises revenue from custady servicss, depository participant services, professional clearing services,
fund accounting services, trusteeship services, registrar and transfer agent services rendersd.

Revenue iz recognized when the amount of revenus can be reliably measured, it iz probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criterie have been met a5 describad below.

The Group recognise revenue from contrects with custemiers based on a comprzhensive assessment modsl a3
set out in Ind AS 115 -‘Revenue from contract with customers? The Group identifies contracts with customers
and itz performance obligation under the contract, determines the transaction price and itz allocation to the
performance ebligation in the contract and recognises revenues onfy on satisfactory completion of performance
obligations.

Fixed fees is recogmized upon execution of trust deed and periodical fees iz recognized in over the perod and in
accordance with agreement with customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenus
are nat of indirect taxes, trade allowances, rebates and smounts collected on behalf of thitd parties and & not
recognized in instances where there is uncertninty with regerd to ultimate collection. In such cases revenue iz
recognised on reasonable certainty of collection.

Other Operating Revenue
Interest Income of the Parent Compamny is recognised, az other opemting revenus since the same iz incidental to

aperations of business, on a besis of effective interest mte method as set out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments,
and where no significant uncertainty a5 to measurability or colectability exists.

Income from sale of investment is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss on trade dete basis.
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28 Taxes
Tax expenze for the year, comprizes of current tax and deferred tax
{a} Currentincome tax

Current tax aszets and liabilities are measured at the amount expectad o be recovered or paid o the
taxetion euthorities. The tax rates and tax lows used to compuote the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, st the year end date Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
hos a legally enforcaable right to offset and intends either to settle on & net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle tha lisbility simultansoushy.

(b} Deforred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet appmoach, on temporary differences
arizing batween the tax bezes of azzets and lisbilities and their carrying amounts in Consolidated Financial
Statements. Deferred income texis also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an assst or
finbility in & transaction other than & business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neithar
sccounting profit nor taxable proft (tax loss). Deferred mcome tax is determined using tax retes (and laws)
that hawve bean enected or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the
refated deferrad income tex azset is realized or the daferred income tax linbility is seetled.

Di=ferrad tax assets are recognised for oll deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only Fitis
probable that futurs texebls amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Management pericdically evalustes positions taksn in tax retums with respect to situations in which
opplicable tox regulation i= subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriats on the
basis of amounts expected to be peid to the tax authorities:

Dieferred tax assetz and liabilitizz are offset when there iz a legally enforczable right to offset corrent tax
azsats and linbilities and when the deferred tew balances relate to the seme taation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent
that it relates to ftems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this casze, the taxis
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.9 Leases
As a lessea

The GroupT leaze azzet classes primarily consist of lzases for Building. The Group azzezses whether a contract
contains o lease, at inception of o contract. A contract is, of conteins, a lease if the contract convey the right to
control the use of an identified aset for a perdod of time in exchange for considerntion. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: ([} the contract
mvobves the use of on identifizd asset (i) the Group hos substantinlly all of the economic benefits from wse of the
asset through the period of the lesse and {ii} the Group has the right to direct the vse of the ssset

Atthe date of commiencement of the leass, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROUT and a corresponding
ieaze liability for all leaze arangements in which it iz & leszes, except for leases with a term of twelve months or
less (short-term leazes) and low valus feases. For these short-term and low valus leazes, the Group recognizes the
|=mse paym=ents as an operating sxpense on a straight-line basiz over the term of the leass.

Leasze liability and ROU assst have Been separately presented in the Balance Shest and lease payments have bean
classified as inancing cash flows.

As a Lessor

Leaszes for which the Group iz & 12ssor is classified sz & inance or operating leaze. Whenever the terms of the leaze
transfzr substantially all the rizks and rewards of ownership to the leszes, the contract is classified az o finance
ieaze. All other lzaszes are classified as operating leases.

2.10 Impairment of non-financlal assats

The Group aszeszes ot each year end whether there s any chjective evidence that a non financial asset or a
Group of non financial aszsts is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimatss the azsst's recovenable
amaount and the amount of impairnent loss.

An impairment loss iz caloculated as the difference betwesn an assets carrying amount and recoverable amount.
Losses are recognized in Consolideted Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowence account When
the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the azset, the relevant amounts are written
off. If the amount of impairment loss subzequently decreases and the decreass can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment foss iz reversed
through Consolidated Statament of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating wnit (as defined below) is the greater of itz value in uze
and its fair value less costs ta sell Inazseszing value in uss, the estimated future cash flows are dizcounted to their
present value uzing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market aszessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the ass=t. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are Grouped together into the
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smiallest Group of ess=ts that gensrates cash in flows from continuing uze that are largely indepandent of the cash
inflows of other assets or Groups of aszets (the“cazh-generating unit™).

2.11 Provisions and contingent Habilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligetion a5 o result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there iz a reflisble
estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provizions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligetion et the Balance sheet date.

If the effect of the time velue of monsy is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time isrecognized sz a inance cost

Contingent labilities are disclosed when thers is a possible obligation arising from pest events, the existence of
wihich will be confirmed anly by the cccurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group or & present obligation that arizes from past events whers it iz either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or o relizble =stimate of the amount cannat be
made.

2,12 Cash and cash aguivalants
Cesh and cash equivalents in the Consclideted Balance Shest comprise cesh at banks; cesh on hand and short-
term deposits net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in valus.
For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash eguivalents include cash on hand,
cesh at banks and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft

2.13 FAnandal instrumeants

A financial instrument is any contract that gives fss to a financiel azset of one entity and a financial lizbility or
equity instrument of another entity.
{a] Financial assets

{li Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is meesured at its fair value plus, in the case of & financial assetnot
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the scquisition of
the fnancial asset Transaction costz of financial azsets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.
Trade receivables that do not contain e significant financing componsnt ars measured at transaction
price asper ind 45 115.

{tl} Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, finencial assets are classified in following cotegories:
al  atamortized cost; or
bl  etfairvalue through other comprehensive income; or
) ot fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the entitys business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash fiows.
Amaortized cost: Asssts that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selfing the finandal assets. whire the assets’ cash fiows represent solely
poyments of principal and intarest, are measured at fair vafue through other comprehensive incomea
(FYTOLCH. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenus and foreign axchange gains and losses which are
recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset i= derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI s reclazsified from equity to Conzolideted
Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gaing/ {husses_].
Fair walue through profit or loss (PYTPLE: Assets that do not mest the criteria for amortized cost or
FYTOC are measurad ot fair velue through profit or loss.
Equity instrumeants: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 100 are measured st fair value: Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent conzidemtion recognised by an acguirer in
a business combination to which Ind &5 103 applies are classified a3 ot FYTPL For alt other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehanzive income

subzequent changes in the fair value. The Group makas such elzction on an instrument- by-instrumant
besis. The deassification iz made on initial recognition and 15 irrevocable.
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If the Group decides to classify an eguity instrument as at FYTOCH, then all fair valus changss on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI There is no recycling of the amounts fram
OC) to PEL, evan on zale of investmeant. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gainor loss
within sguity.

Eguity mstrumsnts included within the FYTFL categaory are meazured at fair valus with all changes
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

{iii} Impalrment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for messurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial sssets that are measured &t
amartized cost and FYTOC!.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss sllowance on trade
receivables, The epplication of simplifed approsch does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on fifetime ECL at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has incresszed signifcantly, lifstime ECL is used. If in subssquent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there iz no longer & significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time EClLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all pessible defeult events aver the
expected life of a inendal instrument The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifretime ECL which results
from default events that are possibis within 12 months after the yearend.

ECL iz the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the caszh flows that the entity expacts to receive (Le all shortfalis}, discounted
at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity i required to consider all contractual
terms of the finencial instrument (including prepayment, extenzion etc.} aver the axpected [ife of the
financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expacted life of the finandal mstrument ceannot
be estimetad relinbly, then the entity iz required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

in general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increazed since initial recognition if the
payment iz more than 30 dayz past dus.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal] recognized during the yesr is recognized as income’
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lozs. In Concolidated Balance Sheet ECL for

financial assets measured at amortized cost is presented as an allowance, Le. a5 an integral part of
the messurement of those asssts in the Consolidated Balance Shest The allowance reduces the met

carrying amount. Until the azset mests write off criteris, the Group does not reduce impairmeant
allowancs from the gross commying amount.

{iv}] Derecognition of financial assats
A financial mzset i derecognized only when:
al  theright= to receive cash flows from the financial aszet have sxpired

Bl  the rights to receive cazh flows from the financial asset is transferred or retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial ssset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients:

Whears the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial azzet iz derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial azz=t is tmnsfarred. Where the sntity
has not transfarred substantially all rizks and rewards of ownership of the financial azset, the financial
assetis not derecognized.

(b} Financial llabilities
{li Initial recognition and measurement

Financial iabilities are dassified, ot initial recognition, as financial liabilities ot fair value through profit
or loss and et amortized cost, as appropriate

All inancial linbilitizs are recognized initially ot fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

iy Subsequent measurement
The measurement of inancial liabilities depends on their cassification, as described below:
Financial lisbilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition st fair value through profit and loss are
designatsd as such ot the initial date of recognition, end only if the criteria in Ind AS 102 ars satisfied.
Changes in fairvalus of such lisbifity are recognized in the Conzolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial lisbilitizs st amortized cost

Aftsr initinl recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subssgueantly measursd ot
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and |osses are recognized in Consolidated Statement of
Proft and Loss when the linbilities are derecognized s well s through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is caloulated by taking into sccount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that ere an mtegrel part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
Consofidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

{lily Derecognlion

A financial liability iz derecognized when the obligetion under the liability iz dizcharged or cancelled
or expires. When an sxisting financial lisbifity is replaced by another from the zame lender on
substantially different terms, or the térms of an existing Hability ars substantially modified, such an
sxchange or modification iz tr=ated a3 the derecognition of the origingl linbility and the recognition
of & new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Conzolidated
Statement of Profit sand Loss as finance costs.

{c} Offsettng finandal instruments

Financial aszets and liabilitizs are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shest where there
iz a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized smounts and thers is an intention to settle on & nat
basis or raalize the asset and settle the linbility simultensousky. The lzgally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insobrency or bankrupicy of the Group orthe counterparty.

2.14 Employes Benafit Obligations
{a) Short-term obligations
Limbifities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expacted to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service ars recognized
in rezpect of employees services up to the end of the year and are meazured ot the amounts sxpected to be

paid when the liabilities are s=ttled The liabilitiez arz presented as current employes benefit obligations in
the Conzolidated Balance Sheet.

(b} Other long-term employes benefit obligations
{) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory suthorities, wher= the
Group hasz no further obligation=. Such beanefits are dassifted as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Group doss not carry any further obligations; apart from the contributions made on & monthiy basiz
which ar= charged to the Consolideted Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employess Stats Insurancs Scheme: Contribution towards employees’stats insurance scheme iz made
to the regulatory suthorities, where the Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are classihad
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group doss not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions mads on-a monthly basiz which are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

it} Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Group providss for gratuity, a defined bensfit plan (the ‘Gratuity Plan} covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1372 The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
furn payment to vested employess at reti;ement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment,
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary. The Group's liability iz actuarially determined
{using the Projected Unit Credit method] at the end of each year Actuarial losses/gains are recognized
in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences; which are sxpected to be aveiled or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee bensfits.
The obligation towards the seme is messured ot the expected cost of accumulsting compensated
absences as the additional amount expectsd to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the

year end.

Accumulated compensatad sbsences, which are expected to be availed or =ncashed beyond 12
months from the year 2nd are treated as other long term employes benafits. The Groups Hability iz
actuarinlly det=rmined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of sach year Actuarial
lvzses/gains are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise.

Leaves under defined bensfit plans can be encazhed only on dizcontinuation of service by employ=e

{cd Share-based paymenis

Employess (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of shars-bazed
payments, whereby smployees render zervicez as consideration for equity instruments {equity-ssttled
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transactions). The cost of sguity-settled transactions iz determined by the fair value ot the dats when the
grant is mede using an appropriate valuation model

That cost is recognised, together with & corresponding increase in share-bazed payment (SBP) reserve in
equity, ower the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benehiz
expenss using graded vesting mathod. The cumulative expsnse recognized for equity-zsttled transactions
ot sach reporting date until the vesting dote reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Companies’bast estimate of the number of equity instruments thatwill ultimately vest The Consolidetad
Statement of Profit and Loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognized as ot the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employ=e benefits expense,

Mo expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimatsly vest becouse non-market performancs and)
or service conditions have not been met Where awerds include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition iz satished,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satished.

The dilutive effect of outstanding exercisable optionz iz reflected as sdditional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings pershars.

2.15 Contributed aquity
Equity shares ars cdassified as equity share capital
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity oz s deduction, net of tm,
from the proceeds.

2.16 Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS)

Basicearnings pershareis calculated by dividing the net profitorlozs forthe yearateributable to equity shareholdsrs
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year Eamings considered inascertaining
the Group's 2arnings per share iz the net profit or loss for the year after deducting praference dividends and any
attributable tox thersto for the year. The weighted svernge numbsr of =quity shares outstanding during ths year
and for all the years presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding. without s corresponding change in
FESOURCas.

For the purpoze of calculating diluted zamings per share, the net profit for the year attributabls to equity
shareholders and the weighted averanes number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Corporate sodal responsibility (CSR)

The Group discharges its C5R obligetion through contribution to the funds az specified in Schedule Vil to the Act
These contributions; expenditure are recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on payment basis
and provizion iz made against unspent amount, if any,

2.18 Segment reporting

The Groupidentifies segment bazis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which zepamie financial information iz available and for which operating results are
regularly reviewed by Chief Operating Decdision Makars {CODM] in dediding sllocation of rezources and assessing
performance.

Shyamsunder Agarwal, Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM} who reviews the operations of the Group as
ane operating segment The Group cperates in a single business segmant and i primarily engaged into custody,
clearing and settlement, depository, fund scocounting, registrer and share transfer agency, trusteeship services
and reporting services.

2.19 Rounding off amounts

All emounts dizclosed in Consolideted Financial Stetements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
crores as per requirement of Schedule il of the Act. unless otherwise steted.

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparstion of Consolidated Financial Statements requires Management to make judgments, estimates and
sssumpticns n the application of sccounting policies thet affect the amounts reported in the Conselideted Financial
Statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These estimates, szsumptions and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, induding expectations of future eventz
that are belisved to be reszonable under the circumstances.
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3.1 Estimates and assumptions

The Group besed its sssumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidezed Financial
Statements were prepared. Existing droumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes
ars reflected in the assumptionswhen they oocur.

it iz reasonably poszible, based on existing knowledge, thet owtcomes within the nawxt financial y=ar that are
different from assumptions could require a matsrinl adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or lebility
affected as disclozed below.

{a) Share-based payments

Eztimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriote
valuation meodel, which iz dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model indoding the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and
models used for estimaeting fair velue for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Mots 32

(b} Taxes

Defarrad tax azzets and linbilitizs are recognized for deductible temporery differences and unused tax losses
for which there iz probebility of utilization against the future taxable profit. The Group uses judgement to
determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits and business developments. Refer mote 20,

[c) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as grotuity are determined using sctuarial veluations. An actusrial
valuation fwolve: meking various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the futurs.
Theze include the determination of the discount rate, future setery increazes and mortelity mtes. Dus to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature; o defined benefir obligation is highby
sensitive to changes in thess assumptions: All assumptions are reviewed at each year end.

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The dizcount rate is based upon the
markst yiglds avmilable on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
linbilities. Salary increass mte takes into account of inflation. seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
orrhong t=rm basis. For details refer nots 31.

{d} Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whather thers = an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annusl impairment testing for an azset is required, the Group sstimates the
azzet’s recoverable amount

An asset’s recoverable amount iz the higher of an assat: or cesh-gensrating unit’s (CGU) net seiling price
and its valus-in-use. Recoverable amount iz determined for an individual aszet, unlzsz the assst doss not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of thoze from other assets or Groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or OGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the azset is considered impaired and iz
written down to its recoverablz amount.

The Group baszsz its impairment caloulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are preparad
separately for 2ach of the Group's cazh-generating units to which the individual assetz are allocated. Thes=
budgsts and forecast calcubations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, o long
tarm growth rate is caloulsted and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Group extrapolates
cazh flow projections in the budgetusing & steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justifizd. In any oose, this growth rate does not exceed the long-termm average grawth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the markst in
which the azset iz used.

(e} Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward lgoking basis the sxpected aedit risk associated with its assats carried at
amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk: Refer note 37,

4 MNEWAND AMENDED STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs I"MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules es issusd from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA
has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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Buildings 6o - - 605 05 57| 04| - 871 627 64
Flant ond 1697 107 -| 276 1.07| 046 - 153 123| 062

Equipinent | |
Furniture and 0.24 048 -| o072 0.03 0.07 - 010 662 o2
fiatures A | | |
-Office Equipmenz | 060 049 -l 1p9) 023 o200 - 43 065 037
Vehicles 179 1.58 -l 337 0.48 0346| - e74 .63 1.3
Total 1233 428 - 1661 2.59| 120 -|  3.79| 1282 9.74

*Includes net block of Irnpn:\'.nemenE to Bulldings’ and 'Bmldlngs DF THE 1 ='HE (31 M-:m:h 2024: 1NFt 1 -1-” and INR
6.13 {31 March 2024: INR §.27) respactively, which are mortgaged towards overdraft facility availed by the Parent

Company.

# Includes leazehold improvemants.

Refer nate 42ia} for disclosure on contractual commitments related to acquisition of Property, plant and

equipment.

RIGHT-OF-USE (ROU} ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
Changes In the carrying value of Right-of-use (ROU) Assats

Leased assot

Total

i
_Building i
|

41
441

ELEEL 1022
822 1022

Leased assat | |
Building 1—1.33; - 1.75 1263 165 2032 1.26 24 1022 1273
Total 1438 = 1.75| 1263 165, 202 1.26 241 1022 12073
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

{ib] Chm!g_es In the Leasa liabilities

Balance as at 01 April 2023 . 12.60
Less: Lease payments 250
Lesz: Deductions 0.5%
Add: Interest expense 1.20
Balance as at 31 March 2024 ' 10.71
Less: Leaze payments 250
Add: Interest expenze 1.06
Balance as at 31 March 2025 | 9.27

(i} Break-up of current and non-current lease Habillities

Asat| Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current Leaze Liabiliti 164 143
‘Nen-current Lesse Liabilities 7.63| 9.28
(il Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Lezs than one year 255 249
Cne to five years 773! 9.14
Maore than five years 1.74/ 288
Total 12.02 14.51
(vl Amounts recognised in Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss -
Interest on Leass Liabilities refernot=26) 1.06 | 120
Amaortization on Right-of-Uss assets (refer note 27) EIZH]I-!l 2p2
Rent expenszes (refer note 28] 1.00 !. B.53
(vl Amounts recognised in Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Tatal Cash outflow for leases | 250] 250
(B} The Group has applied the short-term recognition exemption to its short-term lease of residential eccommodation
and office premises. it al=o spplied the lease of low value assets recognition exemption to lease of warehouse.
office premizes and office equipment thet are considered to be low value. Leaze payment sxemption on short-term
lease and low value assets ars recognised as expense amount to INR 0.40 (31 March 2024: INR 0.41) and INR 0.60 (21
March 2024: INRT:12)

& INVESTMENT PROPERTY Building
Asat01 Aprll 2022 | 202
Addition ; -
As at 21 March 2024 . 202
il | e
‘Deduction [ 292)

“As at 21 March 2025 : -

Accumulated depreciation |

As at 01 April 20232 | 025
For the year | 0.06
As at 31 March 2024 | 0.21
For the year | 0.06
Deduction | 837y

et 31 Nwrets 20 2% | -

Asat31 March 2025 : z
As at 31 March 2024 2.61
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

Amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to investment property are

as follows:
| Asat| Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit on sale of investment property 135 | -
_Rental incoms derived from investment property 0.0 | DR ER
Direct operating expenses Uincluding repairs and maintenanced {0.03) | (0.02)
generating rental income |
Profit arizsing from investment property before deprecistion and indirect 1.40 | 0.02
expenses
Les= — Dapradiation 0.06 | .06
Profit u:.l'sin.g from investment property 1.324 0.02

Description of valuation technigues used and key Inputs to valuation on Investment property:

Significant unchservable Inputs

Valuation

Particulars
| INE Ml (37 March 2024 INR 3.00)

Fair valus is det=rmined based on feedback received from the markst for

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

similar properties.

h:

atdl |

April |
2024 |

| 1ass] p]
-| 1258] 119

| 233] 01|
233) 1021

Computer Software
Total

For| De-| Asat Asat| Asat
ﬂ-‘ duc| 31| |
year | tons | March | March | March

2025 2025 2024
1.57 | | zps] oas| 114
1.87| -| 306 9.4&__! 1.14

0.83 |

Compiter Software 158| 075 - 233

0.83]

Total 233

1.58, 0.75 E

119 1.4

INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Intangible azsets under developmznt as at 31 March 2025 comprises exp
iced softwares. Total amount of Intangible sssets under development iz

enditure for the development of custom-
NRT.28 {31 March 2024: INR 0.09].

_____CowpuiwSoftwewe
Asat3iMarch | Asat31March

2025

024

Opening _Bulum:e ) .08 | 025
Add: Addition during the year 032 11
Less: Transfer during the year (13} B27)
Closing Balance 0.28 0.09

Intangible asset under development ageing schedule:

As st 21 March 2025 Amaunt for a period of

Less than 1 year | 1-2years| 2-3years| More than 3 years |
Projects in progress 018 | 002 0.07 | -|  o2a
- 0.19 0.02 0.07/ | o028

Projects in progress 002 007 -| | oos
0.02 | 0.07 | - 0.09
178
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

9 INVESTMENTS

Fﬂi Asai 31 “I'dl-lﬂl"i Fiﬂl I.E-it!‘lﬂ_l'dlm-!
Mos | Amount valua/ MNos| Amount
Mot azsot |

Investments at amortized cost [fully|
paid) I |
- Investments in Govermmeant Securities
{unquoted) (refer note - i
7.40% Governmeant of India 2035 INR TOD | 2000000 2145 INR T30 I 2,000,000 2145
6.19% Governmeant of India 2034 MR 100 | 3,000,000 2950 INR T30 : 3000000 12.50
_E.lﬁ?ﬁ_ﬁ_cfgernmer‘lt of India 2025 INR TOD 667,000 668 | IR T30 : 667000 E.EE-_
__ 18 Governmant of india 2024 | INR 700 -] -|_wR10o| 1500000 1563
ET L | 7386
Investmenits at fair value through [ [
profit and loss [FVTPL)
- Investments in Mutual Funds (quoted)
I:TE’FEFHDIE-”:I | R —— M o — NP — —— R
Aais Overnight Fund-Direct-Growth | INR1351| 164227 2219 INR1267| 164227 20.80
Total | B0.22 94,46
Mon- Current
Investments in Government Securitiss [ 5135 k803
{ungquoted} carried at amortized cost | 4 -
5135 58.03
Current
Investments in Government Securities [ G658 1563
{unguoted)} carried at amortized cost
Investrientsin Mirtaol Fands iqooted) st | 2218 20.80
fair value through proft and lozs (FVTPL) |
| 28.87 | 36.43
Total 1 i | soa] ) | saae
Aggregate book valua of:
Quoted investmants . 22190 20.80
Un quoted investrmants | 5803 7366
Aggregate market value of:
‘Quoted investmenits | 22107 2080
Aggregate amount of Impalrmentin | z =
value of investments |

L Government Securities pledged with Clearing Corporations towards-the exposure deposits as on 31 March 2025
INR $8.03 131 March 2024 Nil).

i. Mutusal funds pledged with Clearing Corporetions towards the exposure deposits as on 31 March 2025: INR
2219 (31 Merch 2024: INR 20.80).
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

10

11

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

ETMNJSf 31 March 2024

Fived dzposits in banks with remaining maturity for more than 12 557 | 1183

mionths (refer note 44)

Unsecured, Considerad good

Deposits with:

Trade exchanges, clearing agencies and depaositories I:'r.EI-I?_' 564
 Othars 17| 1o
Total 12.80 17.57

A description of the Group's financial instrument risks, mcluding risk managemens objectives and policies are given

in Note 37.

The methods used to messurs inancial assets reported ot fair valus are described in Note 36

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, Considersd good 7812 3044
Total (A) 78.12| 30.44
Further classified as:

Related party irefer note 33) | -
Other than related party TEI1Z| 3044
Total 78.12 | 30.44
All amountz ars short-term. The net carrying valus of treds receivables

is consider=d a reasonable approdimation of fair valus. |
Unbiledrevenue 18.26 505
Total (B) 18.26 | 5.05
Total [A+B) 9638 | 35.49

= Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

Trade Recelvables agelng schedula:

As at 31 March 2025

Undisputed Trade receivebles —
_tonsidered good

Total

Current
| Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
d|  Less| s'i' 12| 23] More| Totl
than 6| months | Yoars yoars | than3
months| -1 pw|
1826 6326 | 682 401 1.94 ! 204 | 96.38
1826 6326 682 4.01 199) 204 9638

As at 31 March 2024

Undizsputed Trads receivables — 5.05 21.61 331 3.4 1.09 | 122 35.49
considered good ! |
Total 5.05 21.61 N 3.4 1.09 | 1.2%| 3549

For trade recsivables ageing. the date of invoics has besn considersd ez due date of payment For terms and
conditions related to related partizs receivables, refer nots 23,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

12 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat| Asat
31 March2025 | 31 March 2024

Balances with banks:

O current accounts 2044 53.66
Fieed deposits with original maturity of lass than 3 months (refar note 44] 20643 | 546.11
Total 385.87 | 509.77

For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of the Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following:

st _ Asat
31 March 2035 31 March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents |
Balances with banks: [
Oni Current accounts 39'.44" 53.66
|.'_DCF_;-I:|'.:I-iE pl:rsi:E- l.-;ri.tf.: 1:-|n;g'm-n-| AUty l_:uF.Iess t.hur; 3 mo nt.l:r.s 29&43; | ; 54&11
Total ' i 385.87 599.77

13 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

| Asat| Asat
31 Manch 2025, 31 Manch 2024
Fxed deposits in banks with original maturicy of more than 3 months 85040 | 528.27
but less than 12 months (refer note £4) | -
Fixed deposits in banks with ariginal maturity of more than 12 months 273917 | 345273
refer note 44)

Total _ 3,598.57 398095

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
| Asat Asat
| 3 March2025| 21 March 2024

Unzecured; Conziderad good
b o ot o s

Ingerest accrued 31.97 | 4232

Total T74.58 | 216.83

15 TAX ASSETS (NET)

) Axleunce incoee e | L2 bl oald -
Total | 055 0.70 0.18| .74

{b! Current tax liability {net}
Provision far inCome tax 470 | 015

Total _ a70] 0.15
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

16

17

(a)

()

(]

(d)

(2}

OTHER ASSETS

Advance to suppliers - | = 0.10 002
Capital sdvance o | = -
Ealance with government - | = 187 | N
authorities -
Prepeid expenses 21 | 0.29 973 | 4.56
Total 042 029 11.80 6.79
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Asat Asat
| 31 March 2005 21 March 2024
15,50,00.000 (31 March 2024: 15,80,00,000) equity shares of iNR T0 each 158.00 | 158.00
158.00 158.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up I
12,42,21,260 (37 March 2024: 12,17,30,V60) equity shares of INR T0'each 12432 121.73
fully paid up
Total 124.22 | 121.73

Reconclliation of equlty shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
SIS 3T Nipreh

-l =

Ctstanding at the beginning of the year 121,730,160 | 12173 113,633,004 113.63
Add: lzzued during the year under preferential - - 7:355,536 756
allotment

Add: Izsued during the year under Employes 2491100 249 I 541,600 054
Stock Option Plen (ESOF) ]

Outstanding at the end of the yesr 124,221,260 124.22| 121,730,160 121.73

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having par velue of INR- 10 persharz. Each sharsholder is
entitlad to one vote per share held. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indinn Rupess. The dividend propozed by
the Boerd of Dirsctors iz subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

In the event of liguidation of the Parent Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
azsets of the Group, after distribution of all preferential emounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.

_Equity shares of INR 10 each fully pald up

As ot 31 March 2025

Mo. of shares | *ﬂfml Ho. of shares |

in the dass

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Parent Company:

As at 31 March 20248

% of holding

AtulGupta

Arpit Khendebwal

Madhulika Agarwal

Ashizh Kacholia

Plutus Weslth Management LLF
Orbis Foundation

12,488,005 |
9,577,778
9,404,435 |
7,543,750

7.018,296 |

1 ET %..

771%

754%
6.07%:

565%

2652001 |
224800 |

9,577,778
9,494,345
7,543,750
7.018.296

Mo cless of shares have been izsued as bonus shares or for considemtion other than caszh by the Parent Company
during the period of five years immediately preceding the current yearend.

Mo class of shares have been bought back by the Parent Company during the period of five y=ars immediately

preceding the current year end.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

{f} Dwtalls of shareholding of Promoters:

18

(B)

iy

%ol | % Change during

total the year based on
no of shares

As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Moof| %of| % Change during Mo of
shares| total theperiodbased  shares

held | shares| onnoof shares held | sharos
Equity shares of INR 10
_each fully paid up |
Atul Gupta I 26,525,601 | 21.35% 0.00% | 26,525,601 | 21.70% |
Manesi Gupta | 1pess00| 088 0.00%| 1,088.600| 0.80% |
Rashmi Gupta i 21388| 002% 0.00% | 21,388| 0.02% [
Karan Gupta | sas:| corw o00%| essas| oo
Orbis Foundation | 7.018206| 5.65% 0.00% | 7018296 377%|

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

-53.04%
1.45%

OTHER EQUITY
Securities premium® |
Opening balance 254,42 | 157.10
Add: Premium on issue of 2guity shares 2.615 0482
Add: Amount transferred on exercize of stock options 5 15 250
Closing balance 262.13 254.42
* Securities premium iz used to record the premium on issue of shares.
The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act |
‘Surplus in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss*
Opening balancs 28864 153,39
Add: Profitfor the year 204.63 | 14128
Less Amount transferred on lapse of stack options 001 | 107
Lass Dwrdend paid i1 134} | fg10)
Elﬂﬂng balance 480, 94 288.64
* Represents the amount of accumuleted eamings of the Group:
Shin! hased payments raenre' . -
Opening balance 2394 | 348
“Add: Share based payments 1399 2217
_Less: Amount transferred on exercise of stock options [?E}I-E (250}
Lesr Amount rrunsferrﬂd on lapse r:ufstudc options i0.02) | ! 11.16)
Closing batance 2281 299
*The share besed payments reserve is used to recognize the grant date [
fair valu= of options iszusd to employess under the Parent Company's
Employ=es stock option plans
(D) General reserve* |
Opening balance 0.3 -
Add: Amount transferred on lapze of stock aptions 001 | .00
Closing balance 010 009
ZGenemlfisenvs Eeonai oft lapse i ek apauns, [
(E} Other comprehensive income - Net Defined Benefit Obligation® |
Opening balance (o.64) o.59)
Re-messuremsant ll-ufss,'l on net defined bensfit o bhgcr!lun nst of tax io.os) | (0.05)
fisct therenn) |
Closing balance (0.70)| (0-84)
* Other comprehensive income repressnts cumulative gain/lozses)
arizing on re-measurement of net defined bencsht obligation.
Total ??5.33 566.50
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

19  PROVISIONS
Current

uut Asat | Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

I
I
|
I
|
Provision for employee benefits ‘
|

Provizion for gratuity (unfunded) 287 1.74 | 020 | 061
refer note 31) | | | —
Provision for leave Encu_r.hment - - 153_3 203
{unfunded)* |
Total 2.87 1.74 273 2.64

*The entire amount of the provision of INR 2.33 (31 March 2024: INR 2.03] is presented as current, since the Group
does not-heve an unconditional right to defer settternent for any of these obfigations. However based on past
sxperience, the Group does not expect all employess to avail the full samount of accrued lzave or require payment
for such leswve within the next 12 months. The emount not expecied to be settled within next twelve months is INR
222 {31 Merch 2024 - INR 1.76).

0 TRADE PAYABLES

Total putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprizes & 090 102
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 7687 | 6337
small enterprises £
Total T71.77 | 64,39
Trade Payables ageing:

As at 31 March 2025

Undisputed outstanding dues .13 077 - - - 080
of micre enterprises and small

enterprises

Undisputed outstanding duss 5763 1024 - - = 7687

of creditors-other than micro
_enterprises and small entarprises
Total 57.76 20,01 - - - 7177

As at 31 March 2024

IJI'II-IICI
Undisputed outstanding dues 074 023 - - - 182
of micro-enterprises and small
entarprises
Undisputed outstanding dues 3699 2633 - - - 6337

of creditors other than micro
enterprises and smiall entarprizes

Total | 37.73] 2666 = | - ea3e
For trade payables ageing, the date ofinvoics recognition has been considered as-dus dats of paymant.

# Includes unbilled accruals/ dues.
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21

23

24

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

i Asat | As at
| RN March2025| 31 March 2024
At amortised cost
Clients’ cash collatersl (inet) 3.,131.09 371781
Payable to customers on trades 101.00 435204
Security depasits B a1
Payablz to related parties (refer nate 33} 151 004
Oither payables ' 55.02 3578
Total 3,288.62 4,211.78
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues payable 775 461
Revenius received in advance 276 046
Total 1051 507
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Revenus from sale of zervices 22735 | 13757
Other cpermting revenue (Nt Income from Treasury Operations 32881 2B6.6T
including interest on bank deposits and securities considered incidental
to Operations) messurad at amartised cost using EIR method
Total 556.16 42424
OTHER INCOME
| Year ended | Year ended
| 31 March 2005 31 March 2024
Rentol income 0.03 | .10
Irl-terastc.rn: i o
- Bank deposits 107 75
--S_E;:.;.r;t;r-&l-si:;;s-in measured ot amortised cost 0.07 007
?EE-;;“_ e Y g e
Income from mutual fund investments designated at FYTPL 130 | 576
Foreign =xchange fluctuation gain (net) o 009
Profit on sale of mvestment property 135] -
Mizcellaneous income 036 | 023
Total 4.07 | 7.8
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
| Year ended Year ended
31 Marnch 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries and wages 7241 53.12
Cuntributicl;'r t!:; pruvir;len! and uthgr Funds [refer note 2{Al 1.18 . 059
Sharebesed payments (referno=32) 1399 2318
Gratuity [refer mot= 310811 0.65 | 0.53
s | oY
Total B5.84 | 79.23

1™ AMNUAL REFOAT 2022-23



* FINANCIALS

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
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26

27

X

FINANCE COSTS
| Year ended | Year ended
[ 31March2025| 31 March 2024
Imterest om:
- Margin deposics 29.24 | 5850
- Lease lishilitiss 1.06 | 1.20
- Bank owverdraft 0.0 | 0.a7
- Others 0.1 0.04
Other borrowing costs
- B:nnlr.guurun-t\éé charges 7.64 | 503
Total 98.56 64.84
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
e
31 Manch 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment {refer note 5] 1.83 | 120
Amortization of ROU azsets refer note S{Ala)] 200 | 103
D prEtiRoN o Urvestrent prapacty e nite 6], el 205
paatcation of mngible ddiets irefer note 73 1o e
Total 5.76| 364
OTHER EXPENSES
Yoar ended Year anded
| 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024
Electricity and water 023 | 028
Rent 1.00 | 052
Repairs and maintenance |
_- Building 0.95 | .80
- Others 0.53| 025
Technalogy expenses 19| 454
Travel and conveyancs 213 | 285
cEommimicanin. brdodband and ricerie Sitflenses 042, Rt
JLegoland protessional cherndes 536 2. il
Tonwniscians fee 37 A
insurancs 071 p.42
Fees and subscriptions: 448 | 1.5%
Ratesand taxes 0.05 | 035
C.1:rr-|:.r.|::.rnte social rezponszibility expenze 246 | 1.36
Marketing and promotions 383 | 325
Loss on discard and sal= a%}ruperl:f, plant and equipment 079 =
Miscelloneous expenses 212] 265
Total 92.09 96.52
INCOME TAX

(Al Income tax expense

- Current tax

_-Defarrad tax (cradit)

7113 | 4864

_- Adjuztment of tax relating to sarlier years .10/ (0.02)
: io.83)| [FE3)

Income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statement of 7035 4591

Profit or Loss
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{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

FINANCIALS

(B} Income tax expense charged to Other Comprehensive Income

Yoar anded | Year ended
| 37 March 2025 31 March 2024
Items that will not be seclassified subsequentiy to profit or loss
- Re-measurzment of net defined banefit obligation 0.02 | 0.0z
Income tax charged to Other Comprehensive income 0.02 | 0.02
€} Recondliation of tax charge
Year anded Year ended
| 3T March2025| 31 March 2024
Profit hefora tax 274,98 | 18720
Imcome tax expense at tax rates applicable {251 786) 6921 AT
Tax effects of:
- Mon-deductible expensas 122 | 835
- Others in.0a) | (1.55)
Income tax expense reported in the Consolldated Statemant of 7035 4591
Profit or Loss

(D] Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deforred tlax assels
Provicion for gratuity 077 .59
Provizion for leave encashment 063 | 051
Expenses disallowed 3.07 1.96
Lease liabilites (net of Right-of-use assets) 027 | 0.12
474 3.18
Deforred tax Habilities .
Froperty, plant and eguipment and intangible asssts 260 . 1.94
S——— - - 2.60 1.94
Deferred tax asssts 15.;6' 2-1-1_ 124
{E] Recondliztion of daferred tax assets [not):
| Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opsning balance 1.24 | {1.49)
Deferred tax recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 0.23 | i g
Deferred tax recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 0.02 | 0.0z
Closing balance | 214 1.24

EARMNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Profit attributeble to equity holders of Parent Company 20463 | 141.29
‘Weightad averags number of equity shares for basic EPS (&) 122,632,519 | 116:215,210
Option exercizable ot the end of year (refer note 321 (B) 7.610,950 | 8,338,600
YWeightad averags number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 130,244,869 | 124,753,810
difution |
_Face volue per shars (NR) 10.00 10.00

Basic earnings per share [INR) 16.60 | 1216
Diluted =arnings par share (IMF} 1571 | 1133
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

| Year ended Year ended
[ F1March2025| 31 March 2024
Defined Contribution Plans
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund recognized in the 117 0e7
Consolidsted Statement of Proft and Loss (refer note 25)
Employers’ Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund recognized in the 0o | 0oz
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss I,reﬁer note .j,:l |
ErnpI;:;t;’.c;:;n:;r:;;;t_c_gahlu}é_StutE Insurance TEEl:lgnlIe:I. imthe = --
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lozs {refer note 25} B
* Amount J:rEJ-:!w rl:rum:‘rlﬂg off norms ndu pted h}r ﬂ'le Group.
Beﬁl'lﬂd benefit p]ini
GTutu:":,r puyuhln 3.07 ' 235
Actuarial assumptions
Diizcount ratz [per annum} 6.20% | 72705
Rate of increass in Salary 10.00% | 10.00%
Expected average remaining waorking lives of employees (years) 26.63 | 2372
Attrition rate {withdrawal rate %)
Up to 30 years 11.00% | 11.00%
From 31 o 44 years 13028 ' 13.00%
Above 44 y=ars 7.0 | 7.00%

Martality table

Chingl-_s in the present value of defined benefit uhlilgn'lion Ei'ihl“."'
P:uent valuenluhllgirﬂun iltthn h-eglnring ufthe year
Interestm-st

Cur'rent senrlce cost

Bensht pmd

.ﬂu:tuurluJ {grin}/ losz on obligetions

HISWIALM POt 34,

Pruentva]ue of obligation at the end of the year

235 | 1.76
17| 0.12
0.48 | 0.40
001 | 0o1)
0.08| 007
3.07| 235

Description of Risk Exposures:

Yaluations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time,

exposed tovarious risks as follows:

A= such Group is

(A} Salary Increase - Actual salary incr2ase will increasze the Plan's fliability. Increaze in zalary rate azstomption in

future valuations will also incresse the linbiliny,

(B) Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subs=quent valuations can increase the plan liabiling
(C) Mortality & disability — Actunl deaths & dizability cazes proving lower or higher than azsumed in the valuation

can impact the linbilities.

(D) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higheror lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal

rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plans fiability.

Expense recognized in the Consolldated Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 048 040
Imterest cast - 17| RER
Total expenses recognized In ﬂ‘IECH'I.iﬂﬂIIitEﬂ Statement Profit and 0.65 0.53
Loss
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v) Expense recognized in Other Comprehensive income

| Year ended | Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial {gain) / lozs on abligationz 0.08 | 0.orF
Total expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive income | 0.08 0.07

vi) Assets and labllities recognized in the Consolldated Balance Sheat:

Present valus of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 3.07 | 235
Unfundead nat (assetllabliity recognized In Consolidated Balance 3.07 | 235
Sheat

vii] Bifurcation of Present Benefit Obligation at the end of the year:

Asat| As at

| 31 Manch 2025 31 March 2024

Mon Current Linbility 287 | 1.74
Current Linbility 20| 0.61
3.07| 135

viii) Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period

_a) Service Cost B.56 | 843
b Met Interest Cost ) 02 0.17.
Expacted Expensa for the next annual reporting period 0.77 0.60

ix) A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
31 Manch 2025, 31 Manch 2024

Impact on defined bonefit obligation
Chizcount rate

0.5% increass i 0.12) | (p.o8)

0.5% decreaze 0.13| 0.09
Rate of increase in salary

0.5%0 increase 0:12 | 0.0

0.5% decreasze 0.11) [o.0g)

=z} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

0t 1 year | 020 061
1 1o 2 years | o7a ors
2to 3 years IZI.’IE: 0ra
3 to 4 years k35 013
4 to 5 years 014 026
5 to 6 years 0.10 | 0.0
£ year orwards 1340 | 098

32 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The employes stock option plan (E30P) haz been designed to incentivise the employees of the Group. The Parent
Company has granted employes stock options in form of eguity shares linksd to the completion of a minimum
peried of continued employment and performance of the eligible employess of the Group, monitored ond
supervized by the Board of Directors. The employess can purchase equity shares by exercizing the options as vested
at the price specified at the time of grant.

The Parent Company have adopted Orbiz-Employes Stock Option Flan 2018, Orbis-Employes Stock Option Plan
2020, Orbis-Employee Stock Option Plan 2020-11 and Orbis-Employ=e Stock Option Plan 2022 in previous years.
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The details of the grants under the sforesaid schemes are summarnzed balow:

| 202425 202324 202425 2023-24| 202425 202324
1. Exercize prices per INR 10.00 to INR INR 12.00 IMNR 1500 INR 40.50 to INR
aption 1200 13580
2. Exercice dates 20 Juns 2018 10 September 2020 31 lanuary 2021 11 October 2022
onwards onmwards
3. Vesting commences on 20 June 2019 10 September 2027 31 lanuary 2022 11 October 2023
onwards onwards onwards onwards
4. Options-granted 1,874,500 | 2015500 | 2,565000| 2,855,000 | 3,500,000 | 3,500,000 | 5,115,000 | 2,337,000

and outstanding ot the
beginning of the year

5. Options grantsd : 2 2 - %
during thevesr

1,580,000 | 2,891,500

& Options exsrcised 1,017,000 147,100 755000 300,000 = -| 619,300/ 100,500
_during the year
7. Options lapsed - - - - - - 8200 13.000

during the year i 1 i ) ! ) , — —
& Options granted and 757,500 | 1.87%,500( 1810000 2.565000 | 3,500,000 | 3,300,000 | 5,997,700 | 51150003
outstanding at the end

of the year

- Options vested T57.500 | 1,874,500 | 1,810,000 | 2,565.000 | 3,500,000 | 3,500,000 | 1,543,430 599,100
_ -Optonzyettowest | = -| izl = B =l __-|4453,650| 4,515,500
9. Weightad average .02 258 .88 303 257, 3.57 3.84 623

remaining contractual
life of options {in years)

The following table illustrates the number and weighted evemge sxercise prices (WAEP] of, and movementsin, share
options during the year:

Atat31 March 2025 | Atat31 March 2024

Mumber | WAEP [INR) Number | WAEP [INR)

Options outstanding at beginning of year 13,054,500 18909 10,717.600 1880
Options granted during the year 1,510,000 135.00 2,801,500 6200
Options exsrcised during the year 2A491,100 | 20.69 541,600 1685
Opeinns Ipsed tiring tha yelr 2200, an . 200 SR
Options outstanding at the end of year 12,064,600 4506 13,054,500 1899
Option exercisable ot the end of year 7650950 21.47 8,535,600 14.82

The fair value of each option is estimated on the dete of grant using the Black Scholes Merton{BSM) farmula: The
following mbles list the inputs 1o the Bleck Scholes Merton{B5M) used for the years ended:

[ Asat | As at

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Weighted average fair value of the options ot the grant dates (INR) | 73.00 | 62.00
Dividend yield {28) | 0.45% | 0.65%
Risk fres interest rate I;E!J | 6.52% | 7.08%
Expected volatility (%) i 1675% | 27.75%
Exercise price 13500 5200
‘Weighted avarage share price (INR} | 175:00 12290
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

Name of related parties and description of relationship as identified by the Group are provided below:

Individual exercising control

Atul Gupta {Founding Promotor and Executive
Chairman)

Subsidiary Companies

Orbis Trusteeship Services Private Limited [OTSPL]

Orbis Financial Services [IF5C) Private Limited (OFSPL)

Key Management Parsonnel (KMP) & relatives

Arul Gupta (Founding Promotor and Exscutive
Chairman)

Shyamsunder Agaraal {Managing Director & Chief

Exe cutive Officer]
Rup Chand lain {Directar]

Abhimanyu Remanujacharyas Siddhartha (Director)
Manesi Gupea (Director and Daughter of Atul Gupta)

Om Prakash Dani {Director) wef 01 April 2025

Ashu Aggarwal (Chief Financial Officer) w.e f238

October 2023

Shachindra Nath [Director] till & May 2023

pichae! Johann Eduard Jeeggi {Director] till 12 May 2023

Mikhil Gedika (Director) till 20 September 2023

Pranay Kothari (Directar) till 23 March 2025

Rishav Bagrecha {Chisf Financial Ofhcer) till 25 Oceaber 2023

Rashmi Gupts [Spouze of Atul Gupta)
Karan Gupta (Son of Atul Guptra)

Other related parties - Entities in whom Key Management Parsonnal Is interested:

Orbiz Foundation
RC Jain Famnily Trust

Detalls of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business for the year ended:
| Other related parties

Mature of transactions

Sanjiv Sarits Conzulking Private Limited

KEMF and Relathes

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Jecovery ol Supenres - zl s ae:
Rendering of services = - o -

Reimbursement of EXpEnIes 0.28 031 | - -
Remunemtion paid 25,14 17.69 | : s
Dividend paid 359 286 G.82 0.85
Rent paid 038 037 " =
Imterest on margin deposits - - - 013
Cesh collazeral received - -| 660 -
Cesh collateral repeid - -| 563 6:63
Issue of Equity Shares (including Securities 0.52 0.36 - -
premim)

Year end balances

Other financial liabilities 0.01 004 I 150 -
Trade receivables -~ - - -

* Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties and key management personnel

The tranzactions with related parties and key menagemsent personnel are made on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm’ fength transactions and in ordinary course of business. No borrowings end/or loans and
sdvances transactions with related parties have been entered during the year. There have been mo guaraniees
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment s undsrtakesn each financial y=ar
through sxemining the finandal position of the related party and the market in which the relsted party operates.
Further, the Founding Promotor and Executive Chairman has givén personal guarantee against the credit facilitiss

availed by the Company (refer note 41{all
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34 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Group operates in o single business segment and iz primarily engaged into custody, clearing and zettiament,

depasitory, fund scoounting, registrar and share transfer agent, trusteeship and reporting services. Shyamsunder
Agarwal, Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM], reviews the operations of the Group as one cperating segment
Hence no separnte segment information has been fumished herewith.

Geographical revenues are segregated bazed on the location of the customer in relation to which the revenue s
recognised.

Revenus from Operations | 526.20 | 20.96 | 556,16

Revenus from Operations | 20693 | 17:21 | 42424

MNon-current operating assats
The Group has common non-current operating assets for domestic as well as overseas. Hence, separate figures for
these aszets are not required to be furnished.

a5 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The fair vatlue of other current financial assets. cash and cash eguivalents, bank belances other tham cash and cash
equivalents; trade receivables, investments, trade payables, and other financial fiabilities approximate the cammying
amounts because of the chort term naturs of theze financial instrumeants.

The smortized cost using effective mterest rate (EIR) of non-current financisl assets consisting of security and
term deposits ars not significantly different from the carrying amount and therefore the impact of fair value iz not
considersd for the purpose of disclosure.

Financial aszets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other
than cash snd cazh equivalents, security deposits, term deposits, trade receivables, investments and other financial
mssEts.

6 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The following is the hisrarchy for determining and dizclozing the foir value of financial instruments by valuation
technigue:
~Lewel 1 - Quoted prices lunadjusted) m ective markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Lewsl 2 - Inputs other than guotsd prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lisbility, either
directly {i.e. as prices] orindirectly {ie derived from prices],

sLawvel 2 - Inputs for the assat= or lisbilities that ars not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)

N financial aszets/liskilities have been velued wsing level 1, level 2 and level 2 fair value meazurements except
mentionad in balow table.

There wers no transfer between level 1 and lavel 2 during the year.
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The following table prezents fair value hisrarchy of azsets and labilities measirad at fairvalus on a recurring basis:

Asat Han:h 31 IDE
Financial assets memured at amnrtlmd cost
 Securitydepost 73 - - -
Fixed depaosits in banks with remaining maturity 557 - - -
lsr ot fioh- 12 minthe:
Trads rEtE}vnhiE p63a [ - - -
Cach and cach. Equwnierru E-B:r B? [ - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash [ 5-.593:? [ - - -
equivalents
Recoverable from exchange {neat) 4261 - - -
Interest accrued 3157 | - - -
Imvestment in Government Securities 58.03 | - - -
Flnandﬁmls measured at FVTPL |
Kutual Fumis 2298 2219 - -
'Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Trade Payables 7137 - - -
Other financis! lisbilities | 328862 - - -
Leaze Linbilities 927 - - -
As at March 31, 2024:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposit 574 - - -
Fixed depozits in banks with remaining maturity 11.83 - - -
for more than 12 months
 Trad= receivables 3549 - - -
Caszh and cash equivalents 59977 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash | 398095 - - -
EququE nts
Recnunruhle ﬁ'ﬂﬂ" a:r.chnnge [net]- 174,57 - = =
l.r.::l.:eéstn cl:mEd ...... 4276 - - -
lnuutrnent in Gu.'ernment Se:urn:res ?:_’..ﬁﬁ ] - - -
Financial assets mnmred at FVTPL
Mutual Funds 20.80 20.80 - -
Financial llabilitles carrled at amortised cost
Trads Payobles 6439 - - -
Other financial liabilities | 4,211.78 - - -
Lease Linbilities [ 1o - - -

The carrying amount of cash and cesh eguivalents, trade recefvables, fted depesits, investments and other financial

nzsets, trade payables and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values.

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to various finandal risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and figuidity
risk: The Group risk management is monitored by the Board of Directors who focuseson securing fong term and
short term cash flows. The Group does not engage in trading of inancal assets for speculative purposes.

Market risk

Market rizk iz the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of o financial instrument will fluctuets because of
changes inmarket prices. Market risk comprizes three types of risk interest rate risk, currency riskand other prica risk,
such as equity price risk and commaodity risk. Financial instruments affect=d by market risk include borrowings and
derivative iinancial mstruments. Group does not have material inmvestments inmarket linked financial instruments.
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{1} Interest rate risk

Imtarest rate risk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuste because
of changes in market interest rotes. The Growps exposure to the rizsk of changes in market mterest rotes relates
primarily to figuid instruments, government securities and other debt instruments. The interest mtes on these
instruments are relatively stable but mey impact in case of major market fluctuation. The Group does not have
long-term debt obligations. However, the Group has exposure to bank guarantzes but the commission razes on
such Bank Guarant=es are not linked to markst interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group does not have floating interest rmte borrowings and hence interest rate sensitivity iz not epplicable.

(i} Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk thot the fair value or future cash flows of a fineandal instrument will fluctuats becouse
of changss in foreign exchange retes. The Groups exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchangs rates relates
primarily ta the Group® cperating activities (when revenue or expenze iz denominated in a different currency from
the Group's functional currency).

Forelgn currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to o reasonably possible change in the US dollar sxchangs mte,
with all other variables held conztant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assats and labilitizs). The Groups exposurs to forgign currency changes for all other currsncies iz not material.

Liabilities - —) N
United states dolor (USD) 59 f 215
Assatls

United states dellor (USD) | 264 550

Year ended March 31, 2025 +2% | 816
=249 | 0.18)
Year ended March 31, 2024 +2% | 8.1
=249 | 011}

(E] Creditrisk

Credit rizk is the risk of financial loss to'the Group i 8 customer or countsrparty to a financial instrument fails to
miget its contractual obligations. Credit risk arizes principally from the Group's receivables, deposits with landiords
and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cazh held with banks and financial
institutions. The maximum exposurs to credit risk iz 2qual to the carrying value of the financial azsetz. The objective
of managing counterparty credit risk iz to’ prevent losses in financial assets. The Group sssesses the credit guality of
the counterparties. taking into account their fmancial position, past experience and other factors.

Loss allowance

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following finencial assets and cradit risk exposure:

{a) Financial asssts that are debt instruments, and are messured at amortizsed cost 2.9.. leans, debt securities,
deposits and bank balance.

(b} Trade receivables or any contmctuel right to receive cash or another finencial asset that result from transactions
thiat are within the scop2 of Ind AS 115

The Group follows zimplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowsanc= on

(il Trade receivables or contract revenus receivables; and

(i} All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of ind AS 116.

Further for the majority of the Group®s receivables, the Group howve assees of zuch customers under its custody.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and
institutions and retaining sufficient balances in bank accounts required to meet operational costs on ongoing basic
The Management reviews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensure that thers
iz minimal surplos cash in bank accounts. The Group do=s not foresee any credit rizks on deposits with regulatory
authorities and the credit risk on other remaining financial assets is not moeterial.

The Groups maximum exposure to credit rizk for the components of the balance shest a1t 31 March 2025 and 31
Miarch 2024 js the respective carrying amounts.
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{C) Ligquidity risk
Liquidity risk iz the rizk that the Group will not be able to meat itz financial obligations as they become due. The
Group manages itsliguidity risk by ensuring, as faras possible, that it will abways hove sufficient liguidity to mestits
liabilities when dus. Liguidity management practices are followed in the Group te ensure availability of funds for
the required purpose. Group also has aveilable credit limits which may be utilised in case of ne=d.

The tabie below summarizes the maturity profile of the Groups financial fiabifities besed on contmctual
undiscounted payments:

Lease liabilities 235 773 174 1202
Trade paynbles 1737 - - I7IT
Other financial liabilities 328852 - -| 228362

3,368.94 7732 1.74| 3.378.41
31 March 2024 Upto 1 year | 1to5years| More than 5 years | Total
Lease liabilities il 249 | Gig| 288 14.5]
Trade payables 6439 - - £330
Other financial liabilities 2321178 - - 421178

4.278.66 9.14 288 4,290.68

18 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Groups capital management, capital includes issued equity capital;, securities premium and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of thr Parent Compamy. The primary objective of the
Group’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value and to enzure the Group’s abifity to continue as
& going concern.

The Group manages it capital structure and mizkes adjustments in light of changes in aconomic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenantz, if any. To maintein or adjust the capitel structure, the Group reviews
the fund menagement ot regular intervalz and toks neceszary actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
Miarch 2025 and 31 March 2024

9 REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS

{a) Revenue recognized from Contracts

‘ Year endad Year ended

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Revenue recognized from Customer contracts 556.16 | 424.24
Total 556.16 | 434,24

{b] Dismggregated revenue information

The Group dizaggregates the revenue from customers by geagraphy and nature of services. The Group believe that
this dizmggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, iming, uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are
affected by industry, market and ather economic factors.

Geographic revenues
| Yearended  Yearended
| 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Qrutsids India 20.96 | 17.31
india 526.20 | 406.93
556.16 424,24
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Mature of Services
| Yearended| Yearended
| 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
- Custody Service 198.80 | 11586
- Professional Clearing Membership {PCM} Services 2133 1265
- Registrar and Transfer Agent IRTA) Services 2457 0.94
- Trusteezhip Services and other allied services 478 112
- Interest on Bank Deposits 325:23 28281
- Interest income on bondsand Government securities designated at amortized cost 3158 186
556.16 | 424.24
40 Thers were no emourts which were required to be trensferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Group.
41 CONTIMGENT LIABILITIES
al The Group has availed bank guarantees fram various banks issued in favour of clearing corporations aggregating
to INR 846,00 (31 March 2024 INR 581.00) towards exposure deposits. Out of which, INR 946.00 (31 March 2024:
IMR 387.00) = backsd by irrevocabls and personal guarantee of Mr. Atul Gupta (Founding Promotor and Executive
Chairman).
b} On geoing direct tax litigation:
Name of the statute | Nature of dues Amount | Period to which | Fﬂmﬂm|hn-h.lflly
the amount disparie is
Income Tax Act. 1861 | Disallowance WRO.13| AY2014-15 | T (Appeal] | Amount of MWR 0.53]
under section disallowed by AQ under
56{2}{viib) and Section 36{2}iviib], which
asdded backto reduced carried forward
income under losses pertaining to AY
Section 53 read 2014-15, whose credit
with zection hes been taken by the
T13BBE of ths Act: Farent Compony  in
subseguent years
¢} The Group does not have any material pending litigationz which would impact its financial position:
42 COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exzcuted on capital account and not provided for is INR 0.0 {net of

advancesINRT.21) [31 March 2024: INR0.12 (net of advonce: INR Nilll
The Group does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts forwhich there were any material
foreseeable loszes

b

43 DIVIDEND
{i} Dividends declared and peid by the Parent Company during the year:

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024: INR 1.00 per equity shars (31 1234 210

March 2023 INR 0.80 per equity chare}

1234 9.10

(ii} After the reporting dates the following dividends were proposad by the directors of Parent Company subject to
the approval of the sharsholders ot the annual gensral mesting; the dividends have not been recognised as lishility

ar end.

at the

Proposed dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025; INR 1.80 per =quity
share (31 March 2024 IMR 1.00 per equity share]
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a4 DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO FIXED DEPOSITS IN BANKS:

B3343| 248271 :
fii} Pledged with banks towards bank guarantees & 194 238.20 | -

i Fedued with clepring corporations thweds phposie deposits | 20892 |
|
| :
fiii}) Pledged with banks towards bank overdraft foclity - : - 648 =
|
1

(] Unencumbered _ | _ hos : 10.77 | 337
| 296.43 | 859.40 | 2,739.17 5.57

{i Pledged with clearing corporations towards exposure deposits 54504 52822 3,30303 1.12

(i} Pledged with banks towerds bank guarantses -| | 146.12 | 300
{iii) Pledged with banks towards bank overdraft facility JE| | 108 | -
() Unencumbered o7 250 I

546.11 528.22| 345273 1.8

45 OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(il The Group deoes not have any Benami property end no procesdings hes been initisted on or pending against the
Group under The Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 {ss amended in 2016} Formerly The Benami
Transzactions {Prohibition] Act, 1022 (45 of 1922} and rulzs made thersunder
(ii) TheGroup does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013,
(ifi} The Group does not have amy charges or satizfaction which iz yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.
(vl The Group heve not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(v} The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persaniz) or entitylies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries] with the understanding that the Intermadiary shall:
(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Group (Ultimats Benehiciari=s) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behslf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
{wi] The Group haz not received any fund from eny personis] or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwize} that the Group shalk
(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an
behelf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Bensfciaries) or
(b} provide any guamantes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimats beneficiaries.
{vii} There iz no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tex assessments
under the Income Tax Act 1961, that hes not been recorded in the books of account
{viiil The Holding Company hes used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has o featurs
of recarding the audit tmil (edit log) facility, excapr that audit trail fearure wes not enabled throughout the year
for certmin transactions/felds/tables recorded in the accounting software st the spplication level Further, the
audit trail feature was not enabied at the database level within the accounting software to log any direct changes.
Further, to the extent =nabled. the audit trail festure haz operated throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the accounting software. Also, we did not come acrozs eny instence of the sudit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of such sccounting software. Additionally, the audit trail feature of prior
years has been preserved by the Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the
extent it was enabled and recorded in respective years.
{ix) The quarterly returns/ statements fled by the Parent Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of
sccount

{x] The Group has not been declared as wilful defoulter by any Banlk; Financial institution or any other lender,
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ORBI&: ivcins

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

45 STATUTORY GROUP INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE Il OF THE COMPAMNIES ACT, 2013
As at and lurlhurn-md!d 31 March 2025

Share in net asset | Share in profit and Share in other :Slu'ahtulinnn-
L& total assats mi-
| mus total Habilities

As%of Amount| As%of Amount| As%of Amount As%of Amount

comprehensive | prehensive income
ncome

Parent Company:
Cirbis Financial
Corporation Limited

1075

007 |

Subsidiary
Companles:
Crbis Truzteeship
Services Privote
Limired

7% |

om

191 267

Crbis Financial
Services (IFSC) Privats
Limited

0%

(0.14)

(0.13)

0%

0| (0.3)

Total

100%

B99.60

100% | 20462

100%

(0.06) |

100% | 204.58

_Parent Company:
Crbiz Financial
Corporetion Limited

.!.i at and lnlliu]la-'-mdul 31 Masrch 2024
Share in not assot

Le total assets mi-

m:u_tnlﬂ_l?ﬂ.llhl
Az % of | Amount As % of

98%

672.69

Q8%

- |

Share in othar | Share in total com-

As%of | Amount| As% of Amount

Consol-

05

98%, 13883

Subsidlary
Companies:
Crbis Trazteeship
Services Private
Limited

15.54

Eol]

(0.0

Orbis Financial
Services (IFSC) Privats
Limited

Total

0%

_100%

10,07}

688.22

100%

= Amount below roundimg off norms sdopted by the Group:

108

0.02)

141.28 |

025

100%

0051

0| (0.02)

100% 141.23
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FINANCIALS

F“n
URBI I‘... '.I.‘

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

{Amount in INR crores, unlesz otherwise stated)

a7 RECOMCILIATION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FORMING PART OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES IN
ACCORDAMNCEWITH IND A5 7:

Particalars | As at | Cash flows (nat) Hon cash Asat
|01 April 2024 | chamnges | 21 March 2025

Lguse fiabilities i_C!.?_i I I,_I_‘iﬂ? | 'I.ﬂﬁ_; B.27
o 1071 (2.50) 1.06 9.27
| 0l April 2023 changes | 31 March 2024
Lesse liabilities | 1260 (2501 081 | 1871
! 12.60| (2.50) | 0.61 | 10.71
Az per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Orbils Financlal Corporation Limited
For M 5 K A & Associates CIN- U67 120HR2005PLO036952
Chartered Accountants
Firmn Registration Moz 105047W
Sripama De Atul Gupta Shyamsunder Agarwal Ashu Aggarwal Prachl Khanna
Partrier Executive Chairman Managing Director and CEQ Chief Financial Company Sscretarny
Wembership Mo DE0E7E DN Mo DD523086 LM MNo- DES16709 Officer M.MNo. AZT428
Place: Gurugram Flace: Dehradun Place Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date- 5 September 2025 Date: 5 Sepramber Ciates 5 Septembear 2025 Dite: 5 September  Dates 5 September
025 2025 2025
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Our Team
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Orbis, Mumbai Team

. R |
Gurugram Office: A snapshot of I
collaboration and commitment — the '
vibrant team that drives our operations
from the heart of Gurugram. \

Mumbai Office: Our dynamic feam
fuelling growth and driving client success.

GIFT City, Gujarat Office: At the forefront
of financial innovation — our growing —

team at GIFT Lity, shaping the future from Orbis, GIFT City Team
India’s emerging global financial centre. .
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Offsite Retreat in Thailand

Beyond work and meetings — our offsite brings rogether teams from acrass locations
to celebrote, connect, and collaborote. A time to recharge, build deeper connections,
and rewrn inspired for the journey ahead.
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Orbis Financial Corporation Limited
4A, Ocus Technopolis, Sector 54, Golf Club Road
Gurugram, Haryana— 122002, India

CIN: U67120HR2005PLCO36952

Website: www.orbisfinancial.in

Email: compliance@orbisfinancial.in

Detailed version of our Annual Report 2024-25 may be reached at:
https://www.orbisfinancial.in/orbis-annual-report-fy-2024-25



